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UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD,

,

In the Matter of: )
) Docket Nos.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF ) 50-443-OL
NEW HAMPSHIRE, et al., ) 50-444-OL

) OFF-SITE EMERGENCY
(SEABROOK STATION, UNITS 1 AND 2) ) PLANNING

,

EVIDENTIARY HEARING
,

Tuesday,
March 21, 1989

Auditorium
Thomas P. O'Neill, Jr.

Federal Building
10 Causeway Street
Boston, Massachusetts

i
The above-entitled matter came on for hearing, I

- pursuant to notice, at 9:15 a.m.

BEFORE: JUDGE IVAN W. SMITH, CHAIRMAN
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, D.C. 20555

JUDGE KENNETH A. McCOLLOM, Member
| Atomic Safety and Licensing Board

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, D.C. 20555

JUDGE RICHARD F. COLE, MEMBER
Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, D.C. 20555
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2 JUDGE SMITH: We are on the record.

3 This is the opening session of the evidentiary

4 hearing on the Seabrook offsite emergency planning hearing

5 proceeding. In particular, we will receive evidence in the

6 following weeks on the Seabrook plan for the Massachusetts

7 communities which is a plan developed by the Applicants in

8 anticipation of the nonparticipation of the Massachusetts
|

| 9 state government and the local governments. |

|

| 10 We will also, in a second phase of the proceeding,

11 hear evidence on the FEMA, Federal Emergency Management

12 Agency, exercise of the Seabrook emergency plans with

13 respect to both the Massachusetts communities and the New

(') 14 Ha 3. hire communities lying within the Emergency planning
v

15 zone of Seabrook.
|

16 Last year we completed the hearings on the )

17 emergency plans for New Hampshire. We issued an initial

18 decision in December of 1988, leaving this session for the

19 balance of the proceeding.

20 Our agenda this morning will be rather versatile.

21 We will begin with, first, if there is any miscellaneous
|

22 business that the parties want to address or need to address |

|

23 p.eliminarily. Then we will receive opening statements from

24 tia parties. There will be no opportunity for opening

25 e ;atements from nonparties, or statements from nonparties or

n
() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 the public.

2 The opening statements will begin with the'

3 Attorney General of Massachusetts, Interveners,

4 Massachusetts towns and cities, New Hampshire Attorney )

5 General, the Applicants, and NRC Staff and FEMA. Then we
1

6 will hear arguments, oral' arguments on the status of the

*/ Massachusetts Attorney General in this proceeding.

8 With that, is there any preliminary business that

9 should be attended to before we open up the evidentiary !

~

10 session?

11 (:No response.)

12 JUDGE CMITH: We will ask as each party takes the

13 podium for their opening stetements to introduce their

(]) 14 colleagues at counsel table.

15 Mr. Shannon, the Attorney General of

16 Massachusetts.

17 OPENING STATEMENT BY JAMES M. SHANNON

18 MR. SHANNON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of

19 the Board.

20 I would like to begin by introducing my associates

21 from the Massachusetts Attorney General's office. Mr.

22 Traficonte, who is the head of our Nuclear Safety Unit / Ms.
:|

23 Talbot and Mr. Brock, who will be participating in these |
|

24 proceedings.

25 My name is James Shannon. I am the Attorney

| O mritase everein , corporation

| (202) 628-4888
i

t - - . _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _



-

hr

16036

1 General of the Commonwealth Massachusetts. I want to

2 welcome you to our state and extend to you all my

3 appreciation for conducting this proceeding in Boston. Now

4 I have looked forward to testifying this morning, because

5 while the Seabrook Nuclear Power Plant may be actually sited-
q

6 in New Hampshire, it is of great concern to the people of |

7 Massachusetts.
.

8 The position of this Commonwealth is that no

9 evacuation plan can ever adequately protect our residents in

10 the event of an accident. In the weeks ahead, we will |

11 submit compelling evidence to show why this utility plan i

12 cannot protect the people of Massachusetts. t

13 It is now almost 18 months since I gave the j

f (]} 14 opening statement for the Commonwealth in the licensing

15 proceedings on the New Hampshire evacuation plans. At that
. i

16 time I expressed my grave concerns about the failure of any I

. |
17 plan to protect the public. I must tell you that today, if 1

1

18 anything, my concerns have only grown. It has been more

'

19 than 15 years since Massachusetts first raised its

20 objections to the location of this nuclear power plant.

21 I come before you to say once again that this

22 plant should never be allowed to operate. No adequate,

23 effective and reliable emergency plan can be formulated for

24 the tens of thousands of Massachusetts residents who live

25 within 10 miles of this plant, or the tens of thousands more

1

my Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 who visit its beaches each summer.

O
2 I wish to address first some questions which have

i

3 been raised about our appearance in these proceedings.

4 My office is authorized by state law to represent

5 the Commonwealth before many tribunals, including this one. 1

6 Here, we have essentially spoken on behalf of the

7 Commonwealth, including both the citizens and its

8 government, and made its views known to the Board. This

9 proceeding does not put directly at issue or challenge the

10 actions, prerogatives or legal obligations of any of the

11 three branches of governme.nt known as the Commonwealth of

12 Massachusetts.

13 I do speak for and on behalf of these branches,

14 but my office may not bind or commit them in this proceeding
(~}

15 to actions which remain within their prerogative under our

| 16 constitutions and our laws. Mr. Traficonte, the chief of

17 our Nuclear Safety Unit, is prepared to address this

18 question is greater detail with you later today.

19 Turning to the heart of your deliberations, Mr.

20 Chairman, let me say that we will show that the plant's

21 owners have not and cannot meet the legal requirements of

22 your agency for an operating license. Ten years ago this

. 23 month the rules of the game changed following the accident
l

24 at Three Mile Island. The NRC that year took an important

25 step that has changed the standards nuclear power plants

Og Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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1 must meet. |

2 The agency found that commercial nuclear power

3 plants do pose a risk to citizens, particularly.those living

4 closest to the plants. With that recognition, the NRC

5 adopted an emergency planning rule that, prior to granting a

6 license to a new nuclear power plant, an emergency plan

7 would be prepared, reviewdd and tested to ensure that

8 " adequate protective measures can and will be taken in the

9 event of a radiological emergency."

10 Adequate protective measures: Emergency plans

11 must be designed to protect people against the full range of L

,

12 possible accidents, including fast-breaking accidents that

13' release radiation within a very short period of time. We !

14 urge you to judge the adequacy of these plans based on their i(}
15 effectiveness in these potentially most devastating

16 accidents.
i
'

17 Adequate protective measurements must by

18 definition and meaning significantly mitigate the

19 consequences of these severe accidents. In short, they must

20 save lives and limit injuries.

21 In our view, there is no emergency plan that can

22 accomplish that for the tens of thousands of people who go

23 to Hampton Beach, New Hampshire, and Salisbury Beach in

24 Massachusetts each summer. In fact, our analysis has found
1

l
25 that it would take even more time to evaluate people at

0 -riea. =rew c-ration
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1 Salisbury Beach than it would at Hampton Beach. There 'are

2 nearly 100,000 people in the New Hampshire and Massachusetts !

3 beach area, all within a few miles of Seabrook on busy

4 summer weekends.

5 The, Commonwealth has tried to formulate plans that

6 would properly and safely evacuate these people. Emergency

7 planners worked literally for years on such-a plan. In

8 1986, Governor Dukakis reviewed'the state's attempts and
~

9 found that no plan could adequately protect the citizens of

10 this state. In that year the Governor withdrew from

11 planning.

12 It is his view and it is mine that we can best

13 protect the health and safety of the citizens of i

I
14 Massachusetts by ensuring that this. plant is never licensed(])
15 to operate. A plan the utility paid for and sponsored that

16 depends on a loose association of " volunteers" who for a

17 $500 annual stipend will leave their own families and home

18 to usher this emergency plan through is no plan at all. ,

19 There is also considerable wisdom to be taken from

20 those most familiar with the area. Those who live in and

21 work in and around the Seabrook Nuclear Power Plant know

22 that they cannot be adequately protected from a radiological

23 emergency. It cannot be done.

24 First, there is the question of time. Now simply

25 put, it will take significantly greater time to evaluate

O erica,e =ererei , corger eio-
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1 people from the beaches than it will take for the radiationg3

Q)
2 to reach them. These people simply cannot be evacuated to a

| 3 safe distance from a radioactive plume in a timely manner.

4 Second, there are no shelters. There is no place

5 to send these people as an alternative to evacuating-them

6 into a gridlocked road system.
;

7 For these reasons, the Governor withdrew the I

8 support of the Commonwealth.

9 What we are left with then is a regulatory

|
10 impasse. Your agency, the NRC, requires that adequate

11 euergency planning be in place before an operating license

12 is issued, and yet only state and local governments have the

13 legal authority required to implement and test such a plan.

(} 14 What the owners of Seabrook are attempting to do is show

15 you, through their own planning, that the government of a 1

16 sovereign state was wrong when it determined that its public

17 could not be protected. It won't work. Effective emergency

18 planning requires intimate knowledge of local conditions,

19 including schools, hospitals, day care centers, special

20 needs populations, and a variety of very site-specific

21 considerations that only local and state governments truly

22 know and understand.

23 Local and state officials did thoroughly review

24 the planning options. What they determined, using their

25 collective expertise and insight, is that this plant poses a

| O erita,e erum, c - raelen
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1 substantial risk to.the people of Massachusetts and should 1

0
2 not be granted a license.

3 Nonetheless, with all their paid volunteers and

4 experts, the owners of Seabrook have not solved the !

5 fundamental planning problems specific to the Seabrook site.
,

i 6 The owners have taken a different tact. They have |
,

|
!7 repeatedly made it clear to this Board and the Appeal Board

8 that, in their view, planners must only do the best they.can

9 do. They have said if the public cannot be adequately

10 protected from a fast-breaking serious accident, then

11 somehow that's acceptable because they have given planning

12 their best shot. .

|

13 Now if we had felt that there was an evacuation

{} plan that would work for the Seabrook plant, Mr. Chairman,14

15 we would have filed one. Massachusetts has always had a !

| !
i 16 special and critical interest in emergency planning even |

|
17 when that emergency planning involved New Hampshire. |

|
18 Seabrook is just two miles from our border. Boston lies !

19 only 40 miles to the south. The safety of Massachusetts
|

20 citizens is inescapably tied to the safety of this plant and )

21 to the adequacy of evacuation plans in the event of a

22 nuclear accident.

23 We have spent 15 years opp 6 sing this plant.

24 Attorney General Quinn first raised the objection of

25 Massachusetts long before billions of dollars were sunk into

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 the plant. Mr. Chairman,_the plan before you amounts to,

b
2 nothing more than a dangerous gamble. It offers only the

3 illusion of emergency preparedness and that illusion would

4 quickly become a nightmare should an accident ever occur at ;

5 the Seabrook plant.

6 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

7 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Backus, do you have an opening

8 statement?

9 OPENING STATEMENT OF ROBERT A. BACKUS

10 MR. BACKUS: Chairman Smith, Members of the Board,

11 my name is Robert Backus, of Backus, Meyer & Solomon, a

12 Manchester, New Hampshire. I am here to represent the

13 Seacoast Anti-Pollution League, a citizen's group which is ]

14 centered in New Hampshire, which does include.among its
[}

15 membership many citizens of Massachusetts that live in the

16 northeast part of the state.

17 I have with me Jane Doughty, who will be attending

18 these hearings, I believe, most days when I will not since

19 we have a limited number of contentions in issue.

20 The only opening statement I wanted to make is

21 that, as the Attorney General said, so has SAPL been

22 concerned about the unique problems presented by the

23 Seabrook site since almost the day of the organization's

24 founding, which was 20 years ago. And that as a result of

25 that concern about this site, we have been asking for a

O rie 9- eerei o cereer tiee
(202) 628-4888
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1 serious and meaningful consideration of the problems at that

O 2 site, at least since the NRC made such a consideration
.

3 mandatory with the adoption of the Three Mile Island

4 regulations requiring emergency planning back in August of

5 1980. We requested a show cause proceeding to be instituted

6 by the NRC Staff, which was declined. We took the denial of.

7 that review to the United States Court of' Appeals in
|
1

8 Washington, D.C., which said~in 1982 that this site will

9 appear to require the most careful consideration by.the NRC.

10 In our view, the site problems for offsite

11 emergency planning have not been improved one bit since that

12 time, at least insofar as the physical constraints of the

13 site are concerned: The limited road network, the fact that
.

y

14 we are dealing with beach populations on barrier islands

15 where people could be potentially in a sense trapped in the

16 event of an accident. And we have come to the point where

17 we are dealing with these problems, not with the use of a

18 governmental plan, a governmental authority, but because of
i
'19 Massachusetts decision, which we certainly adopt, by the use

20 of the utility plan.

21 We think the critical decision facing the Board

22 here, as it was in the New Hampshire decision, is what

23 standard are you going to apply to these plans. Is it going

'' 24 to be merely a best effort standard; you do the best you can

25 no matter how bad the site is?

O a te 9- ror**=9 cerrar tio-
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1 We would say again, as we said in New Hampshire, 1

0
2 that's not good enough, and we think that's not an

&

3 appropriate legal standard. And we call on the ultimate

4 decision to involve an express discussion of the standard ;

5 that is going to apply to emergency planning.
;

| 6 We'believe.the Commission, when it adopted the

7 emergency planning requirements, meant what it said when it

'8 said emergency planning was an essential safety feature;

9 that we are not to trust the safety of the citizens around

10 the plant simply to'the concrete, the containment, what's-

i

11 called the engineered safety features; that that safety, to

12 the extent assured by that is inadequate, and must be

13 bolstered by' adequate emergency planning.

14 You will have to tell us what that is. We think,
(])

15 in the case of Seabrook, the requirement of adequacy simply

16 cannot be met.

17 JUDGE SMITH: The Town of Amesbury is represented 3

18 by Barbara Saint Andre. I see Mr. William Lord.is also

i 19 present.

20 Are you going to speak for the town, Mr. Lord.

21 MR. LORD: Yes, I am.

22 OPENING STATEMENT OF WILLIAM LORD

23 MR. LORD: My name is William Lord. I am special

24 municipal employee of the Town of Amenbury, no longer a

25 selectman, and have been asked by the town to continue

O serita,- gereins cerroration
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1 representing the town in these proceedings and to keep them

O
2 abreast of acti'vities.

3 The town is represented by lawyers engaged with

4 Kopelman and Paige on Franklin Street in Boston. Barbara !

5 Saint Andre, as you've stated, will be our lead counsel and

6 will attend whenever appropriate.

7 My reason for being here today is to try and

| 8 answer to you and to your new board members and to those

9 present the big question of why is the Town of Amesbury ;

10 continuing to be involved in these hearings, going back for ,

J

11 a number of yee.rs before your presence on the Board. )
12 There is only one simple common denominator that

13 we can put to answer this in a short time. The Town of

14 Amesbury just refuses to accept the lies that have been put()
15 forward to it. Those lies go back to the early '80s, when

16 our own state, Mass civil Defense proffered plans that they

17 said were going to work for the. Town of Amesbury, and were

18 grossly deficient. And-through the work in the town, as

19 alluded to by the Attorney General, we tried to improve

20 those plans.
,

l
21 We went through eight to ten draft plans, and

22 finally reached the conclusion that it is in fact a lie.

23 You cannot provide for the safety of the people in this

24 ' region.

25 It does not get any better when you then bring in

O seriease aererei , correraeien
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1 .the Applicant to turn to the public and say essentially, I'm

O.
2 from the government and I am here to help you. That is one

3 of the famous lies along with the check is in the mail'that

4 we have all learned to stand back from and be careful. We

5 have learned that the offer of lights on athletic stadiums

6 will not make a plan work better. We know quite well that
|

|7 the offer of portable classrooms won't empty any faster in

8 the event of an accident. We know that hundreds of
|

9 thousands of dollars that were offered to.the Town of j
i

10 Amesbury to build an underground bunker command center won't

11 stop the panic of the elderly in the event of an accident at
i

12 Seabrook. i

13 We have been told by the Applicants that they had

{) developed a list of shelters at the beaches to help those14

15 people that again the Attorney General alluded to, hundreds
1

16 of thousands on the summer weekends. And then when those j
|

17 property owners revolted about that, we heard that the NRC

18 and FEMA and the Applicants have decided there is no~need

19 for shelters. So we are faced with that question, which

20 part of this is a lie. Do we need shelters or don't we need

21 shelters?
i

22 Then the Applicant comes out with the emergency

23 planning calendar that says there will be times when you

24 will need to shelter. The Town of Amesbury again refuses to
.

t,,

25 accept these statements and will continue its role here.

O- eriease aegerein , correlation
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1 Redacted resources: The Applicant has stated over

2 and over again it wanto to work with the population, work

3 with the government, be our friendly neighbor. Who are the

4 bus companies that are going to pick up your school kids?

5 Who are the. ambulance companies? Where is the resource
,

|

6 centers? They don't want to tell anybody. I view that as a

7 lie to the public.

8 The other great lies that have been proffered by |
l

9 Applicants: The Coalition for_ Reliable Energy, a spin-off

10 group for public relations purposes, funded almost entirely

11 by the Applicants just to try and undermine the positions of.
(

12 the governments.

13 Consultants hired by New Hampshire Yankee under

{) the guise of helping the towns plan; another lie that we14

15 have seen and we will not accept. Volunteer workers that

16 are paid money. It is almost a redundancy to hear those

17 words in the same sentence.

18 But the greatest lie that has been told in this

19 case I think is what they call the realism theory. What a

20 great stance for the federal government to take. So look

21 down at a local official or a state official who in all
l

22 honesty states, I will not be there in the event of an

23 emergency, or my family comes first; and then to read into

24 that that you won't believe them. Are you stating that

25 official then has perjured themselves before this hearing?

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 That's how it reads to me.

() j

2 JUDGE SMITH: Are you addressing your questions to

3 the Board?

4 MR. LORD: I think I am addressing them to the

5 event. I don't know if necessarily there is an answer
1

6 needed at this time, but maybe one during dell'berations in

7 your own mind.
i

8 Our position, again, is that we will not stand by

9 idly and let a lie, a pack of lies be put forward on behalf

10 of the Applicant solely for the financial advantage without

11 mounting the best fight we can to protect the citizens our

12 town.

13 I thank you.

14 JUDGE SMITH: The City of Newburyport is also
)

15 represented by Ms. Saint Andre. Who will speak for the City j

16 of Newburyport?

17 MS. O'MALLEY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and

18 Board members.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Good morning.

20 MS. O'MALLEY: My name is Jane O'Malley. I am

21 with Kopelman and Paige also.

22 The City of Newburyport is waiving an opening

23 statement.

24 JUDGE SMITH: Thank you.

25 MS. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

O a rie 9- 9erti=9 corror tioa
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Have you filed a notice of i

2 appearance?
i

3 MS. O'MALLEY: Yes, I have, Mr. Chairman. |

4 JUDGE SMITH: May I have your name again,.please?
!

5 MS. O'MALLEY: Jane O'Malley.

6 JUDGE SMITH: The City of Haverhill and the Town

7 of Merrimsc,are represented by Ashod Amirian.
8 Good morning, Mr. Amirian.

9 OPENING STATEMENT OF ASHOD AMIRIAN

10 MR. AMIRIAN: Good morning. The city of Haverhill

11 and Town of Merrimac would adopt the arguments of Amesbury |
|

1
12 and the Attorney General,:but specifically would state that |

|
13 both the Town of Merrimac and the City of Haverhill feel I

| )
that there is no adequate plan that could make this work,14

,

15 and that's their basis for opposing the plan.

16 Thank you.

17 JUDGE SMITH: The Town of Newbury is represented

18 by Mr. Hill-Whilton. !

19 MR. HILL-WHILTON: Mr. Chairman, members of the

20 Board.

21 JUDGE SMITH: Good morning.

22 MR. HILL-WHILTON: Mr. Machiros, the Chairman of

23 the Board of Selectman of the Town of Newbur' , would like tof
I

i

24 make a statement. !

25

i

O rit 9- e reias career ti -
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1 STATEMENT.0F ANGELO MACHIROS |

O 2 MR. MACHIROS: Good morning.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Good morning.

4 MR. MACHIROS: My name is Angelo Machiros. I have

| 5 been a Selectman at the Town of Newbury for nine years. I

6 lived on Plum Island for more than 15 years.

7 The Town of Newbury has cooperated in good faith

8 with the Applicant for about three years in attempting to

9 devise a means of evacuating the town if there was an

10 emergency at Seabrook. During that time, the town honestly |
!

| 11 attempted to arrive at some means by which an evacuation |

12 plan could take place in a manner which was orderly, safe

|
13 and timely.

|

14 But we came to realize that with the resources
)

15 that we have, the roads as they exist, and the population

16 characteristics of the town, that no evacuation plan could |

17 be developed which would lead to a reasonable degree of

18 safety to the citizens of the town and its residents.

19 Given that fact, and the years of attempting to

l 20 devise an evacuation plan, the inhabitants of the Town of

21 Newbury voted to stop participating in the evacuation

22 planning process. It is not the goal of the Town of Newbury

23 to interfere with the licensing process or to obstruct this

24 process. Instead, our goal is pure and simple. It is to

| 25 demonstrate to this Board why our road system is inadequate

| ,O rie 9- a eare1=9 corvor eioa
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1 if there is to be a safe evacuation, and why the safety of

9
2 thousands and thousands of people on Plum Island is at peril

3 if there is an emergency, and why we do not feel that the

4 proposed bus routes can be driven as planned, and why we

5 believe that the health and safety of the school children in

6 town is at jeopardy.

7 In short, the sincere goal of the Town of Newbury

8 in participating in this proceeding is to demonstrate to

9 this Board that Seabrook station is simply built in the
,

10 place where it*should not have been. Regardless of what

11 this Board does, we know that we will not be able to

12 evacuate our inhabitants before their health and safety have

13 seriously beea jeopardized.

14ggg Thank you, gentlemen.

15 JUDGE SMITH: The Town of Salisbury is represented

16 by Mr. Charles Graham. Mr. Graham.

17 (No response.)

18 JUDGE SMITH: There is no representative for the

19 Town of Salisbury?

20 The Town of West Newbury is represented by Judith

21 Mizner.

22 OPENING STATEMENT OF JUDITH H. MIZNER

23 MS. MIZNER: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members

24 of the panel.

25 JUDGE SMITH: Good morning, Ms. Mizner.

h Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 MS. MIZNER: For more than a year the Town of West I

C) l

2 Newbury actively participated in and cooperated with

3 emergency response planning for Seabrook station. A

4 committee composed of members of the Board of Selectmen,

5 members of various town departments and interested citizens
,

6 met regularly in good faith to review drafts of plans. The

7 town and the committee sought additional information from

8 consultants provided by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

9 and the Applicants, and sought this information to address

10 concerns that arose from the committee's review of the

11 drafts that had been provided, and it worked to see if it

|12 could make those drafts into a workable plan that would

13 adequately protect the citizens of the town in the event of

14 a radiological emergency at Seabrook station.

15 At the end of its review, the committen could not |
|

16 say that any of the drafts reviewed were adequate or |
1
'

17 acceptable. After study, a number of members of the,

18 committee, like Governor Dukakis, believed that there could i

19 be no adequate plan for Massachusetts communities within 10

20 miles of Seabrook station given the population and road

21 patterns in that area.

22 West Newbury has done nothing to obstruct any

23 efforts to Seabrook station. We haven't narrowed our roads

24 or unpaved our streets to block a license. The roads exist

25 as they have always existed. We haven't thrown away any

O erie se aererei=9 cereere'ie"
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1 town equipment or fired people so that we could say, well,

O 2 we just can't respond to an emergency.

3 The simple fact is that, given the road structure

4 and the personnel, there is simply no way to get people out

5 in a way that will protect them. We can't accept the
1

6 concept that a plan is adequate simply because people say,

7 well, we have done the best we can under the circumstances.

8 If the plan will not provide protection against significant
1

9 exposure to radiation for people in the emergency planning '

10 zone, including West Newbury; if it will not, as the

11 Attorney General has stated, save lives and limit injuries,

12 we believe that the plan is not adequate or acceptable, and

13 we hope to demonstrate that the current plan being

14 considered by this Board does not provide West Newbury

15 residents or residents of other affected communities with

| 16 reasonable assurances that their health and safety will be

17 protected against unwarranted exposure to radiation in the

18 event that Seabrook station went on line and an accident

19 occurred.

20 Thank you.

21 JUDGE SMITH: I'm not clear, is the Town of

22 Hampton going to be active in this stage of the proceeding?

23 Do you know, Mr. Brock?

| 24 MR. BROCK: Your Honor, 7 believe that at least

25 for purposes of the exercise portion of the hearings, I

O aerit 9- a rorti=9 cor9er tioa
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1 would expect some presentation and appearance by Hampton.
O 2 JUDGE SMITH: Thank you.

3 (Continued on next page.)

4
.
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6

7
|
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Huntington, do you have an

2 opening statement? Mr. Huntington is Assistant Attorney

3 General of New Hampshire.

4 MR. HUNTINGTON: I'm going to waive the State of
.

5 New Hampshire's opening statement for today except to say

6 that the State of New Hampshire will continue to participate

7 in these proceedings as an interested State to citizens who

8 are directly affected by the licensing of Seabrook. And
i

9 will be available at any time the Board requests. Even if j

l
10 my chair is not filled there will be someone in the audience |

11 at all times to answer any questions that the Board might |
l

12 have for the State of New Hampshire. |

13 JUDGE SMITH: Thank you.

14 The Applicants are represented by the law firm of(}
15 Ropes and Gray, Mr. Dignan.

16 OPENING STATEMENT BY THOMAS G. DIGNAN, JR . '

17 MR. DIGNAN: Mr. Chairman and Members of the
|

18 Board, a formal appearance matter, my name is Thomas G. !

19 Dignan, Jr. I am a member of the law firm of Ropes and

20 Gray, One International Place, Boston, Massachusetts.
,

i
21 With me in this matter are my colleagues: George j

22 H. Lewald; Kathryn A. Selleck; Jeffrey P. Trout; Jay,

23 Bradford Smith; and Geoffrey C. Cook, all of whom will be

24 appearing at various times before you.

25 With respect to an opening statement I should like

O Heritage aegerein, Corgeraesen
(202) 628-4888

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _



,
- ____

l

16056

1 to rely in the main on the trial brief which has already

2 been filed with the Board.
|

3 Briefly, however, I do wish to address since an |

4 opening statement in an NRC proceeding is mainly for the

5 benefit of the public and we have the public with us both in

6 the form of individuals and the press. I would like to ,

7 address certain remarks made to you by people who have !

l

8 preceded me to the podium. ;

9 The learned Attorney General of this Commonwealth

10 tells us that no plan is possible for Seabrook. With the

11 great deference his office is owed I muet say~he is wrong. ,

!

12 He is wrong as a matter of fact. He is wrong as a matter of j

13 law. The Federal Emergency Management Agency, the federal
.

14 agency charged with reviewing nuclear power plant planning(])
15 for safety purposes, has found the plan to be adequate for j

|

|
16 the Commonwealth of MassacPtsetts and has found the exercise

'

17 of all the plans regarding the Seabrook Station to be

18 deficiency free.
I

19 Under NRC regulations this provides a rebuttable j

20 presumption that the plan is adequate and is implementable.

21 We believe the evidence in this case will demonstrate that t

22 that rebuttable presumption should hold and that FEMA's

23 decision is correct. |

24 What the Commonwealth continues to argue basically
i

25 for, I submit to the Board, is a risk free situation. That

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 legal proposition in nuclear technology and law was rejected.

2 tzrmly over 16 years ago in the Maine Yankee proceeding
,

3 which was affirmed by the United States Court of Appeals for

4 the District of Columbia Circuit. The regulations of this

5 agency; the law passed by the Congress never demanded or

6 anticipated a risk free society.;

7 It is dramatic to come before this Board, the

8 press, and the public and to suggest the possibility of

9 disaster at a nuclear power plant and then to say it can't {

10 be planned for.

11 But I would submit to this Board and to the public
I

12 that indeed competent people to analyze these matters would

13 tell you that the odds of the kind of accident that is being
.

I

(]} 14 talked about by the prior speakers has a less likely chance

15 of happening than an event such as a 747 crashing into

16 Fenway Park in Boston during a Red Sox's ball game.
\

17 And if the Commonwealth truly believes that this

18 risk free society is what they want I can only assume that

19 my learned friend will be in the Superior Court before

20 opening day to enjoin the Red Sox's from playing. However,

21 I doubt it. But yet, we take in society these risks all the |

22 time. And the law does not require a risk free situation

i 23 and we believe the plan and the evidence will show the plan

24 meets all of the regulations of the Commission. And that
|
| 25 the exercise has demonstrated it is fully implementable.

|

O Beritae. megereim , Cerebration
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1 Thank you.

2 JUDGE SMITH: Who will represent the NRC? Mr.

3 Turk.,

4 Good morning, Mr. Turk.

5 OPENING STATEMENT BY SHERWIN E. TURK

6 MR. TURK: Good morning, Judge Smith and Members

7 of the Board.

8 My name is Sherwin Turk, I'm here today on behalf

9 of the NRC Staff. With me at counsel table are: Elaine

10 Chan; and Mr. Edwin Reis, also of NRC Staff.

11 Let me begin, first of all, by describing briefly

12 the role of the Staff in this proceeding and then I would

13 like to address also the concerns raised by Attorney General

(]) 14 Shannon earlier today.

15 First I would note that the role of the Staff in

16 this proceeding is to present the views of our witnesses and

17 to present our views of the law. We have done that in past

18 phase of this proceeding and we intend to continue doing

19 that now to the best of our ability.
J

20 Congress, as the Board knows, has given the NRC

21 Staff a statutory role in these proceedings and we expect.to

22 fulfill it.

23 Then I would like to turn to the question of why

24 we are here today. As the Board is aware and parties fully

25 recognize the Commission regulations require that prior to

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 licensing a nuclear power plant that there's a reasonable |

2 assurance that adequate protective measures can and will be
\

3 taken in the event of an emergency.

4 In a normal course of business we expect
i

5 cooperation from the various States where nuclear power j
>

6 plants.are sited and the States contiguous to borders where
)

7 nuclear power plants are sited. Where there~is no j

8 cooperation, such as is the case here with Massachusetts' !

9 position in the proceeding, Congress has authorized-the NRC

10 since 1980 to license a plant where a utility plan is

11 adequate under the regulations.

12 In this case, in 1987 the Applicants did submit

13 the Seabrook plan for Massachusetts communities. That plan

(]) 14 has been reviewed by FEMA. As the Board is aware FEEA has
|
'

15 found that plan to be adequate. FEMA has also conducted an

16 exercise of all emergency plans for the Seabrook Station.

17 In 1988 that exercise was conducted and found to

18 be adequate. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts would
i

19 disagree with these findings. They also would disagree with j

20 the NRC rule which in 1987 stated that even where a State is
i

21 not cooperating in emergency planning we will presume that

22 the State will use its best efforts. And also we will
|i

23 presume that the State will follow the utility plan unless

24 they can show through rebuttal that that is not the case.

25 Attorney General Shannon contested that rule

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 change and he lost before the First Circuit Court of

2 Appeals. The First Circuit upheld the NRC's rule and its

3 presumptions. ;

'

4 Our position here today on behalf of the Staff is

5 not to advocate a license procedural. That is not my

i

6 position; that's the Applicants' position.

7 Also our position before you will not be for

8 disregard or have you dieregard the views of the State.

9 Throughout the history of nuclear power plant siting and i

10 regulation the views of States has been important to the NRC

11 and indeed Congress has mandated that the NRC provide an

12 opportunity for interested States to present their views on

13 whe.ther a nuclear plant can be operated and should be

(]} 14 licensed.

15 We intend to listen to the evidence presented by

16 Massachusetts Attorney General Shannon and other

17 Interveners. And it may be that at the close of this

18 proceeding we urge you to take a different view than we have

19 at this time. Indeed we may be persuaded by the evidence

20 that we should recommend a license not be issued.

21 However, I would expect that after hearing FEMA's

22 views we will come to you in our proposed findings and

23 recommend the issuance of a license.

24 I would like also to address for one moment some

25 concerns raised by Attorney General Shannon this morning.

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 He has advocated before you today and he had advocated in

2 the past that no evacuation plan can work for Seabrook.
1

3 As the Board is aware, in the past several weeks

4 we have been having pre-hearing conferences and at that time
.

;

5 it was represented by' Massachusetts Attorney General )
j

6 Shannon's attorney in the case, Allan Fierce, that certain

7 traffic modeling should not be permitted as part of the

8 evacuation time estimate. And as the Board is aware,"this

9 particular discussion centered on the intersection of Route

10 110 and Interstate 95 located in Amesbury, Massachusetts.

11 The Attorney General's office represented at that

12 time that this particular intersection causes a 25 percent j

13 delay in evacuation. That would be on the order of one and

(]) 14 a half to two hours if there was a crowded beach population

15 present on a Sunday during the summer.

16 At that time I suggested that the Applicants could

17 simply pay to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts sufficient

18 funds, perhaps $10,000, simply to pave over a medium between

19 two ramps connecting these roads. That's all it would take

20 to eliminate a 25 percent delay evacuation time. That offer

21 has been rejected by Massachusetts. In that vein, I wonder

22 how serious are their concerns that they express before you

23 about the difficulty of evacuation planning procedural. If

24 $10,000 can save two hours in evacuation time and

25 Massachusetts refuses to censider that offer how serious can

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 their concerns'really be?

O
' 2 And that's all I have.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Joseph Flynn' representing the

4 Federal Emergency Management Agency.

f 5 OPENING STATEMENT BY H. JOSEPH FLYNN

6 MR. FLYNN: Good morning, Your Honors. I am

7 Joseph Flynn representing the Federal Emergency Management

8 Agency and I am pleased to present to the Board and to the

9 parties my colleague Linda Huber McPheters who will also be

10 representing FEMA throughout these hearings.

11 I do not have an opening statement. I think that

12 the position of FEMA has been stated succinctly in our pre-j

l

13 trail brief and I would respectfully refer the Board to that

l'4 brief.

15 MR. TRAFICONTE: Your Honor, I would just like to

16 add in the way of opening statements'that two individuals:

17 Representative Lawrence Alexander who is the House Chair of

18 the Energy Committee; and S6nator Nicholas'Costello who is
.

i

19 the Senate Chair of the Energy Committee, because they don't |

20 represent parties to the proceeding are not able to make an

21 opening statement.

22 JUDGE SMITH: That was the Board's -- they

23 requested permission to do that and we turned them down.

24 MR. TRAFICONTE: But they would like to file and

25 intend to file through our office written statements.

O .ritas. -rea, c-r ei- 1
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1 JUDGE SMITH: And-I understand they are present

O
2 this morning. They have been present. We hoped that.they

3 could address'the Board. We,will accept the_ written' i

-4 statements and remind any member of the public that they can

5 file their views.in writing on the issues of this case and-

6 be assured that the Board will read it.
l

!

7 We may not, however, consider those views as I
\

8 evidence upon which a decision is:made.- If those, views and )
9 opinions should demonstrate to the Board or.to the parties

10 the need to develop a record for additional evidence we

11 would do that. But the statements themselves may not be a

12 part of a basis for our decision.

13 I'm aware of a lapse of manners on my part, I

14 didn't introduce to the parties new members of the Board.(}
15 You recall that Judge Cole was with us in Boston when we had

16 the pre-hearing conference. Dr. Richard Cole, who.is to my

17 left, is serving in the traditional role as Environmental
l

18 Scientist on Atomic License and Safety Boards -- Atomic

19 Safety and Licensing Boards. Dr. Cole came to the NRC, I

20 guess it was the Atomic Energy Commission at that time in

21 1974 --1973. We get old fast enough, Dr. Cole. From the

22 University of North Carolina. He is also a registered

23 engineer in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

24 Dr. Kenneth A. McCollom, to my right, is

25 performing the traditional role of the nuclear expert. Dr.

O eriease negorei-, cor oration
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1 McCollom recently retired as the Dean of the Division of.

2 Engineering, Technology, and Architecture at Oklahoma State '

'

3 University. He is an electrical engineer and a nuclear

4 engineer by discipline. He is still active in the College

5 of Engineering, Technology, and Architecture. Dr. McCollom 1

6 has been a member of the Licensing Board panel for many

7 years, longer than I have, so I don't know when you began,
1

]i 8 1972. And the bad news is, we still have the same old

9 Chairman, Ivan Smith, I'm the lawyer member of the Board.

10 Are we ready for our first witness, first panel of

11 witnesses? I believe so. I don't know the exact sequence,

12 it will be one of the towns as I understand it.

13 MR. TRAFICONTE: Your Honor, I had thought that we
i

14 might --

15 JUDGE SMITH: That's right, excuse me. We have

16 our arguments on the status of the Massachusetts Attorney

17 General.
1

18 MR. TRAFICONTE: If Your Honor wants to pass on.
<

19 (Laughter)

20 JUDGE SMITH: I think that Attorney General

21 Shannon gave us additional insight as to how the Attorney

22 General views his role here and defines it. However, I do

23 think that more extensive discussion and debate on it would

.

24 be very helpful to the Board.
|

| 25 Would you care to lead off, Mr. Traficonte?
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1 ORAL ARGUHENT BY JOHN C. TRAFICONTE

L() ,

2 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's fine, Your Honor.
,

|

3 Just as a preliminary matter, the record having 1

4 opened this morning and statements having been made in the

5 openings concerning the FEMA reports I just' don't want an

6 opportunity to go by for me and for the Attorney General to

7 object to the accept nce into the record with its attend and )

8 consequences of the FEMA report, both as to the .)
9 Massachusetts plan, the utility plan, and.the exercise

-W

10 report.

11 As I know you are familiar with, Your Honor, and I

12 assume that your two Board members are also familiar, we had

13 made a legal -- we have presented a legal challenge to the
!

)
status of FEMA under the regulations -- both its own14

15 regulations and NRC regulations -- when FEMA is reviewing a

16 utility plan.

17 I certainly don't want to reproduce and I don't
!

18 think the record needs to be extended on this point. This

19 is essentially set forth in a contention that we filed in

'

20 September 1988 with regard to the FEMA exercise review and

21 report. We challenged essentially on two grounds that: one,

22 FEMA was acting outside of its legal authority and beyond

23 the scope of its own regulations when it, FEMA, was

24 reviewing a utility plan. That was the first prong.

25 And the second prong of our challenge was that the

O -it 9- a e-eine c - r tion
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1 regulations, the NRC regulations do not indicate that a FEMA

O
2 review of a utility plan is entitled to a rebuttable

3 presumption.

4 And the only point I want to add today in

5 reviewing these documents in preparation for today is that I
i

6 believe that the Authorization Act of 1980 which I believe
'

,

7 my brother Mr. Turk made reference to, the Authorization of

8 '1980 that indicated that Congress contemplated a utility.
1

9 plan might be formulated to substitute for a state or local
'

10 government plan. That Congress when it adopted the

11 Authorization Act distinguished between state and local l

)
12 planning which would be reviewed by FEMA and did not

13 indicate that utility plans would be reviewed by FEMA but

14
)

only by the NRC.

15 So that wasn't intended to reargue the-point. We

16 have argued it or at least we have put it in the fashion of I
!

17 a contention at which the Board rejected in its December

18 16th ruling. I'm not going to be surprised by the ruling

19 that I'm sure is going to issue again. But we want for the

20 record at the point of which those reports are accepted into'

21 this evidentiary record, we would like to object to that. I

22 don't know if that has happened yet.

23 JUDGE SMITH: No, it hasn't happened yet.

24 MR. TRAFICONTE: All right.

25 JUDGE SMITH: I thought now we were going to hear

O riteo- rerei 9 correraeio-
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1 from you on your views as to whom you represent in this
-O 2 proceeding and to what extent you represent them.'

3 Did you care to add anything?

4 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, I did. I was under the

5 impression we were going to turn to a panel of witnesses.

6 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that was a mistake on my part.

7 I had previously set the agenda that would be this argument. |

8 I have about the same enthusiasm for the argument

9 as you do, Mr. Traficonte. That slipped my mind.

10 (Laughter)

11 MR. TRAFICONTE: I thought I sounded enthusiastic.

12 I would like to begin. I'm actually going to make

13 fairly brief comments and they are I believe a gloss on what

14 Attorney General Shannon already stated in his opening this
)

15 morning.

16 I would like to begin with a preliminary point

17 that is I believe undisputed and it really is the NRC's law

18 in the first instance that I think is relevant here. I

4

19 would cite the Board to the Consolidated Edison Company of

20 New York case which is 15 NRC 715 at 718-19, and that is a

21 1982 case, involving the question of the status of the

22 representative of an interested State under 2.715C.

23 And in that discussion I believe it is clear that

24 -- in that proceeding at least there was the issue of

25 whether more than one entity or official, if you will, could

O rit 9- a rorti=9 corvor tio=
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1 be the representative of an interested State under NRC law.

.O 2 In addition I would cite the Board to a case in

>3 this proceeding. 'One of the beauties of the Seabrook case

4 is that there has been enough case law in this proceeding

5- that you probably don't need to refer to any other case law.
|

"

6 But in the Seabrook came itself at 25 NRC 144 which is a

7 1987 case at 149 there is also the discussion of the
I

8 question -- in this instance by the Appeal Board -- of what

9 the interested State status or what the representative of an

10 interested State status means and how it is to be

11 interpreted.

12 I think that it is beyond dispute that the two

13 cases I cited stand for a relatively simple proposition

14 which is that the relationship between the representative of
)

15 an interested State and that State under NRC law is a

16 question itself of State law. In other words, the NRC is

17 prepared to accept the representative of an interested State

18 under the law of that State. However the State law

19 describes, defines or postures the official representative
|
I20 that has appeared in the proceeding.

21 Now with that as a preliminary I'm going to refer j

22 to State law because I think that is the dispositive issue

23 before us. And I'm going to be referring to chapter 12,

24 section 3 which is one of the sections of chapter 12 --

25 chapter 12 being a jurisdictional, if you will, a
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~

jurisdictional statute that defines the duties and1

2 obligations of the Department of the Attorney General.

3 I believe that we are here in this proceeding and

4 I believe that we have been here in this proceeding from day
1

5 one pursuant to section 3 of chapter 12. And I would just 1

1

6 like to read into the record and for the benefit of the i
1

7 Board I believe the relevant language of section 3. f
|

8 "The Attorney General shall appear for the

9 Commonwealth and for state departments, officers and

10 commissions in all suits and other civil proceedings in
|

11 which the Commonwealth is a party or interested. Or in

12 which the official acts and doings of said departments,

13 officers and commissions are called in question."

14 I have gone back and -- on the record I want to
)

15 express my appreciation to NRC Counsel Turk who provided me 1

|
16 yesterday with a large volume of old pleadings that I

17 grabbed on to because we didn't even have some of them in

18 our office, they go back so far. I reviewed a whole series

19 of documents going back to I believe 1981 concerning the

20 role of the Massachusetts Attorney General in this j

|
21 proceeding. And on the basis of that review and on the

22 basis of our own understanding of what we have been doing

23 here for the last seven years at least, and actually much,,.

24 longer than that, I believe that the Attorney General is

25 here and has been appearing here for the Commonwealth and

O rie 9- rorei-9 correr tie-
(202) 628-4888

- _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ - - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _



--_.

|
i

16070

1 for the state departments, officers and commissions to the

O 2 extent that the Commonwealth is interested in the.,

3 proceeding. Has an interest in the proceeding. !

!

4 That is to say, the Commonwealth and therefore the

5 citizens of the Commonwealth, the Executive Department of

6 the Commonwealth, the government of the Commonwealth has an
!

7 interest in the question as to whether or not Seabrook |

8 Station is going to be given an operating license under NRC
|

9 law. :

10 In that capacity the Attorney General is |

11 functioning as the spokesman or the spokesperson on behalf

12 of the Commonwealth. On behalf of its citizens. And on

13 behalf of its government.

14 That however, the nature of that representation is .

15 to be distinguished however from cases in which the Attorney

16 General represents the Commonwealth and the state government j

l
17 when the official acts -- and again I'm quoting from section

I

18 3: "When the official acts and doings of said departments, !

19 officers and commissions are called into question."

20 It is our view, and I don't believe it is

21 disputed, although I am always willing to learn new things,

22 it is our view that our acts and our doings, if you will,

23 have not been called into legal question. That there is no

24 legal prerogative, legal duty, legal obligation under our

25 law; under federal law; under constitutional law that is at

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 issue in the proceeding. |

)
2 As a consequence the Attorney General is not here j

3 defending the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. It is not here

4 defending the state government. He is not here representing

5 in response to a challenge in the proceeding. He is not

6 here representing the actions or omissions of state

7 government. Because those actions or omissions, those
]
1

8 derelictions of duty, if they were alleged, those

9 affirmative actions which perhaps were too vigorous, if that

10 was alleged, nothing like that is on the table before you in

11 the proceeding.

12 Essentially, and this is not an easy matter. I'm ;

1
.

13 hoping I am clear because I have spent three or four days |
q

14 basically being briefed by our government bureau on these{)
15 matters. It has been a wonderful education for me because I

16 frankly was not fully aware of the complexities of the

17 nature of the Attorney General under Massachusetts law in

18 the various hats that he can wear. 1

J

19 But I hope I am clear if I say the following: ]
1

20 depending on the nature of the proceeding the Attorney

21 General is the spokesperson for the Commonwealth. If the |

22 government of the Commonwealth, the governor or the

23 executive departments, if the actions of the Commonwealth

24 are challenged at law, if their prerogatives are challenged.

25 If they should be doing something they are not. If they are
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1 doing something they should not be. And someone makes a |

O- 2 legal challenge the Department of the Attorney. General is

3 exclusively their proper legal representative.

4 In those settings the Attorney General can bind

5 his client. That is to say the Attorney General can in the

6 appropriate circumstance, in consultation with the client,

7 can bind the client. In those circumstances the Attorney

8 General represents that client in the proceeding.

i
9 In this proceeding however the Attorney General is

10 not in a position to bind state government in the same way.

11 Because the prerogatives of state government, the

12 obligations, the duties are not at issue. Have not been

13 challenged. There is no allegation of a violation of law

14 either in affirmative or by omission.

15 As a consequence, although we are here as the

f16 cookesperson for the Commonwealth and for the government, we
i

17 are not in a position to bind it. The prerogatives, for i

18 example, the Department of Public Works has under our

19 statutory law have remained there with the Department of j

20 Public Works. The Attorney General cannot bind that ;

21 department in this proceeding, because what the Department
i

22 of Public Works has done or has not done'has not been i

23 legally challenged before you. !

24 I'm going to come around to it one more time.

25 Therefore, although it is accurate to say'that we are h
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1 speaking on behalf of the Commonwealth and all of its
.( I

2 executive agencies and the executive department we are not '

3 l?.in a position in this proceeding to bind that government.

4 And I'm obviously more than willing to come back
'

5 to this. I'm sure that counsel -- I know that counsel for

6 the NRC Staff is going to be perhaps puzzled by these

7 distinctions. I believe these are the distinctions that are

8 rooted'in state law. I think that they're not -- they're

9 certainly not common to the relationship between a lawyer

10 and his client.
|

11 Before I pass the baton I do want to make some

12 corrections in the record to statements that-I made during

13 the last conference call that we were together. And I chalk

14 this up to the lasting fruit of my labor which is the self

15 education. I just wish -- again, I think I said this a

16 couple times -- I just wish this wasn't a public education.

17 But I do want to correct some statements in the

18 record so that we won't be -- we will absolutely be clear

19 with each other as to what our position is.

20 I am going to make some page references. They are

21 to a conference call that was held on March 15, just last

22 week, and the first page reference I am going to make is to

23 page 15988.

24 And, Your Honor, you asked me a direct question:

25 is the Governor of Massachusetts represented in this

O rit 9- eartias careor tio=
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1 proceeding? And you followed it up before you gave me a 1

O i

2 chance to answer and you said, "Is he a party?" And I think ]
1

3 the short answer is -- well,.I will even read my answer. j
j

4 I said: "Your Honor, I am not -- I am
|

5 hesitating." I'm no longer, going to hesitate, I'm going to {
l

6 answer both questions. I think the questions are different. J

7 Is the Governor of Massachusetts represented in
l

8 this proceeding? Yes, he is. To the extent that the
1

9 Governor of Massachusetts is part of the government of the

10 Commonwealth the Attorney General.is the spokesperson for i

11 the Commonwealth.

12 Is the Governor a party to the proceeding? No, I

13 don't believe the Governor is a party to the proceeding. I

14 don't believe his office is a party. But to the extent that
({}

15 his office is part of the Commonwealth, the Attorney General

16 is the spokesperson as the representative of the interested i

17 state, the Commonwealth.

18 Understand however that because the Governor or

19 just because the Governor is represented as part-of the

20 Commonwealth in the proceeding by the Attorney General my

21 comments earlier still hold. We cannot bind the Governor.

22 The prerogatives that both our constitution and our statutes

23 give to the Governor have remained his. Because his. actions

24 have not been challenged here.

25 Next correction and this is on the next page in
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1 the transcript, 15989. You asked me another direct

.2 question: "Are you the constitutional lawyer for the

3 Governor?" And this time I should have hesitated and

4 didn't. I answered: "No." Let me clear that up.
1
'

5 In my own defense, the Governor has legal counsel.

6 If what your question intended was: "Are you the

7 constitutional lawyer for the Governor in the sense that 1

I

8 this office, the Department of the Attorney General

I
I 9 represents the Governor?" The answer is: "Yes, we do

i

10 represant the Governor." When the Governor either appears
|

11 as a defendant, for example, and his legal prerogatives are

12 challenged. Or when the Governor, as he is here, is

13 understood to be part of the sovereign power of the
]

() 14 Commonwealth on which the department or on which the

15 Attorney General is given the authority to speak or for

16 which the Attorney General is given the authority to speak.

17 The next question you asked me was and this is the

18 only one I am truly embarrassed by: "Do you represent the

19 Governor in court," you asked me. And I said: "No." And

20 the answer is: "Yes, we do represent the Governor in
!

21 court." We would represent the Governor in court if the

22 Governor were named in a lawsuit, for example. If what he
1

23 had done was challenged as being contrary to law or in fact '

24 that his failure to act was itself contrary to law.

25 (Continued on next page.)

O
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r~ 1 I want to clarify something in light of my
(

2 comments, and it's.a statement I made on page 15999 in the |

3 record, and I think.the colloquy is important. I am sure it

4 will come up again, and I want to make sure before I finish I

5 my comments that my brothers at the bar understand that |

6 there is a mea culpa here. I want to make sure everybody

7 understands what our position is.

8 on 15999, there is the following exchange. Mr.

9 Turk made the statement, "But I haven't heard him," and that

10 means me, "But I haven't heard him say anything about

11 whether he has authority to reach agreements or to bind the

12 Commonwealth to statements in this proceeding."

13 And Your Honor said, "That's our concern."

({} 14 And then I said, "Well, I will say, subject to
1

15 check, because I do believe there is a fairly comp 1ex issue |
1

16 here under our own constitution, that it is quite clear to

17 me and it's certainly the understanding of our office that '|
|

18 we, for example, could not enter into an agreement that j

19 would bind, in this litigation, that would bind the |

20 Department of Transportation to do anything to a particular
:

21 intersection." !

| |
22 Let me be absolutely clear, that is an accurate

23 statement, but it is crucial to understand that it is

24 limited to this proceeding. In this litigation, we do not
1

25 have the power to bind the Department of Public Works or the

i

A
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1 Department of Transportation. Because again, the actions, |

2 legal obligations and duties of those departments has not

3 been challenged. j

. |
'

4 But we do in this proceeding represent-those l
l

5 . departments in the sense that we speak on behalf of the I

6 Commonwealth, and they are part of the Commonwealth.

7 I am almost done. This is a very unpleasant task

8 to go back and tell you how many times I have been wrong.
;

9 on page 16002, I made the following statement.

10 "The Attorney General represents the people of Massachusetts

11 and not unless there is some special dispensation, he

12 doesn't represent the executive department as a part of the

13 larger government of Massachusetts." .

1

14 That is not correct. The' Attorney General |(])
15 appears, pursuant to Chapter 12 under Section 3,

16 representing the Commonwealth, the citizens of the

17 Commonwealth and the government of the Commonwealth as the

18 Commonwealth's spokesperson or spokesman.

19 Then you asked me a series of questions on page

20 16003 concerning the Attorney General's representation in

21 specific lawsuits of various departments. For example, when i

22 a Department of State or executive department is sued, do we

23 represent them. And we had the following exchange.

24 I stated at the top of 16003, and my response was

25 that there are circumstances in which our government bureau
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gg will end up representing departments of the Commonwealth.1

~2 You Honor stated, "Both defending and acting as

3 plaintiff's counsel for them?" !

4 I stated, "I didn't hear the first part of your i

i

5 question."

6 You stated, "Both defending the departments and

7 acting as plaint'iff's counsel. " J

8 I stated, "In fact, I think, although after I am

9 going to get off here I am going to check with our

10 government bureau, but I don't believe that the government

i

11 bureau can function as plaintiff counsel to these agencies."

12 The government bureau informs me that I put them

13 out of business with that comment and that, in fact, they do |

(]) 14 represent, frequently represent agencies as plaintiff's

15 counsel, but that there are a series of agencies in our

16 commonwealth that are statutorily permitted to represent
,

| i

17 themselves as plaintiffs in cases. So that the answer to j
!

18 that question is that it's a mixed bag and it depende on the
;

19 agency. j

i

20 JUDGE COLE: Is the Department of Transportation |
i

,

| 21 one of those agencies? j

22 MR. TRAFICONTE: I would have to go and look at |
!

23 the enabling statute. I would have to go and check it. I

i

24 will. j

| i

25 JUDGE COLE: All right, sir. j
'

i
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1 JUDGE SMITH: I think that you had already been

2 comfortable in stating that they would represent the

3 department in planned acquisition or condemnation

4 proceedings?

5 MR. TRAFICONTE: If it is that department that we

6 would be representing. That would be my only -- if it is

7 the Department of Transportation, for example, that does the

8 condemnation / if it isn't some other entity that condemns,
-.

9 for example. -

10 I am going to close with just a -- I think that =

11 was the end of my --

12 JUDGE SMITH: Well, you remember the Board let you

13 off the hook. You had another question, and that is, the

({}
'

14 relationship, the attorney / client relationship, if any,

15 between you and the Office of the Governor and the Governor.

16 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, I wanted to address that,

17 and I will.

18 JUDGE SMITH: And now is the moment of truth.

19 MR. TRAFICONTE: Fine, fine, that's fine.

20 The claim we made of lawyer / client privilege as to

21 communications between the Governor and the Attorney General

22 is a question quite distinct from the question as to whether

23 we represent the Governor narrowly, and I am now using the *

24 phrase " represent" in the narrow sense of being able to bind
.

25 the Governor.
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i

1 The question of the claim of attorney / client

2 privilege is distinct from the question of how in this

3 proceeding what our position is vis-a-vis the Governor, and

4 this is the easiest way, at least as I have been able to

5 understand this. 3

6 There are occasions when the Governor and the

7 Attorney General have exchanges with each other that are i

8 very similar to a client seeking the advice of its attorney.

19 The Governor can and does get legal advice from the Attorney

10 General inside and outside of particular pieces of

11 litigation, inside and outside of proceedings. Those

12 communications, our office claims, are attorney / client

13 communications.

({} 14 If at a later time, as for example in this

15 proceeding, those communications are requested in discovery,

16 we will identify or claim attorney / client privilege as to

17 those communications, as we did. That claim is logically

18 distinct from the claim that we are -- that is logically

19 distinct from the claim that we are representing the

20 governor in the narrow sense of being able to bind the

21 Governor in this proceeding. There are two different

22 matters.

23 In the one hand, we are identifying a

24 communication as privileged because we do on occasion stand

25 in an attorney / client relationship narrowly construed. We
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1 do stand in such a relationship with the governor. And in

2 other occasions, as in this proceeding, as I have indicated

I
3 now a couple of times, we are the spokesperson for the

i

4 Commonwealth, for the state government here, and that ;

5 includes the Governor.

6 So the short answer is that the attorney / client I

|
I

7 privilege that we claimed for those communications arises
i

8 out of a relationship that we had or have that's distinct |

9 from the relationship that we have in this proceeding

10 between the Governor and the Attorney General.

Hil , I want to make one further comment. Part of my

12 difficulty in preparing these comments, in addition to other
I

13 matters pressing on my work schedule right now, is that I- i

[]) 14 learned an important lesson about it's always helpful to i

15 have a question on the table. In some ways I am struggling

16 because we do not have a question really on the table. We

i

17 don't really have a motion. I certainly appreciate that

18 everyone, including myself, would greatly benefit from |

19 having a discussion like this. But the only request I would

20 make, and it's in part communicating to you the request of

21 our government bureau, is that we be permitted, if

22 appropriate and necessary, to file a written memorandum that

23 would clarify anything that is not yet clear, and certainly

24 be able to file a response to anything in the form of a

25 motion that would actually draw an issue.

O rien. =rew c-r ti-
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1 JUDGE SMITH: The question the table, although not '

'

2 specifically stated, was either you represent the
1

3 Commonwealth for all purposes and you have the right to bind

4 it and all the executives department, or perhaps you do not

5 have standing to prosecute certain contentions. However, we

'6 did not give you a contextual background as to what.

7 contentions, for example, might be beyond your standing.
'

8 So, you are right. .

9 MR. TRAFICONTE: Right, and I --
,

10 JUDGE SMITH: You are sort of shooting at a very

11 vague target here.
i

12 MR. TRAFICONTE: If the target gets, and I guess

13 all I am requesting is that when and if the target gets set

14 up for all to see, we would just like to be able to shoot at

I15 it again.

16 The answer to the last question, however, Your-

17 Honor, is that we do represent the Commonwealth in this

18 proceeding, but we are unable to bind it.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Counsel for the Appli. cants.
|

20 ORAL ARGUMENT BY THOMAS G. DIGNAN

21 MR. DIGNAN: Well, let me begin by putting Mr.

22 Traficonte's worries to rest. We have a motion. We'll try

23 to get it out on the floor. The motion, however, was

24 prepared on the basis of the representations that were made

25 during the telephone conference which have now been
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1 withdrawn.

O
2 However, what this motion does is seek a number of ,

1

3 documents which the Attorney General's office has admitted )

4 are relevant to the proceeding, but which have been withheld- |
|

5 on a claim of attorney / client privilege.

6 My problem with what I have just heard is, at j

7 least to my mind, the essence of the attorney / client

8 relationship, or certainly one of the major essences, is

9 that the attorney has the authority to bind his client.

10 Indeed, people lose vast amounts occasionally in court

11 because of a stipulation a lawyer has entered into because

12 the courts deem that lawyer able to bind the client in that

13 fashion.
|

(]} 14 If it be so, that the Attorney General of the
1

15 Commonwealth cannot bind the Governor and the various other

16 people who wrote the memoranda in this motion, then there is

17 no attorney / client relationship that has to be protected by

18 assertion of the privilege, and the documents should be

19 produced. And that is the position of the Applicant, and

20 that is the position of the motion which I will file. I
,

|
21 will apologize for the fact that there is at least one

22 representation in there about the Attorney General does not

23 purport to represent the Governor. That was on the basis of

24 what had been said at the prior conference. That obviously
,

I

| 25 has been withdrawn in some sense.
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1 But based on the assertions that have now been-

2 made that there is no power to bind the governor, no power

3 to bind any of the other departments, these documents which

4 are admittedly relevant should be produced. And with that,

5 I will file the motion, and I assume Mr. Traficonte will

6 want some time to reply.

7 HR. TRAFICONTE: Well, I would like time to read

8 it, at least.

9 MR. DIGNAN: I have no objection to Mr. Traficonte

10 be given an opportunity, (a) to reply; and (b) to reply in

11 writing.

12 MR. TRAFICONTE: Your Honor, if I can be blunt for

13 a minute, I think that a motion for the documents is small |

14 potatoes. I thought there was a more fundamental issue on/])
| 15 the table.

16 MR. DIGNAN: Well, the size of the potato may look

17 small to the AG, but it might be mashed potatoes, and they

18 are there so there is always enough. |

19 I'm serious in these documents. I want them.

20 JUDGE SMITH: Does that conclude your argument on

21 the role of the Attorney General in the proceeding?

22 MR. DIGNAN: Yes. The representations that have

23 been made to you this morning, I don't wish to argue with

24 the Attorney General's office on their view of their role in

25 a given proceeding. I think as independent constitutional
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1 officer of the Attorney General, he indeed has extremefg

V
2 breadth under our law to decide what his role is in the

3 proceeding.

4 I do take a minor umbrage every time the Attorney

5 General's office announcing it is " representing" the

6 citizens of the Commonwealth in this proceeding. I mean

7 there is few citizens right at this table that they

8 certainly aren't representing. And, you know, given the

| 9 last anti-nuclear vote in the Commonwealth, it may not even

10 be a majority of the citizens they are representing.

11 But leaving that problem aside, which is one of |

12 humor and nothing else, the fact of the matter is the

13 Attorney General can elect what his role is. That I am

/~T 14 clear on under our law. And he has made his election, and
U

15 the election, I do not believe, gives rise to an j

I
16 attorney / client relationship with these officials on these ]

- !
! 17 documents he is trying to protect.

'

18 The question of whether or not this election robs

19 him of standing to litigate certain issues, I frankly am not t

20 in a position to address at this time having now heard for

21 the first time exactly what the limits of the representation

22 are. I would like an opportunity to address that contention

23 by a contention later. I
1

24 But there is no doubt that the Attorney General,

25 in my judgment, has the absolute power to decide for his |
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1 office what the role in the proceeding is subject only to

O
2 the deference which it must show to a tribunal or a court to

3 obey its regulations and so forth and so on. And I don't

4 wish to argue with them og to whether their role is

5 something different than what they say.

6 But I do emphasize is that role vis-a-vis the
I

7 Governor and these other departments is not one of

8 attorney / client as I understand the role of attorney / client

9 if there is no power to bind.
|

10 MR. TRAFICONTE: Can I add one comment before Mr. j

11 Turk proceeds?

12 I don't think I said this, and something that Mr. i

)
13 Dignan said brings it to mind. We don't understand that the {

1

14 declaration that I made this morning is a change in our |(]}
15 position. We are trying to articulate as carefully as we |

16 can, upon a review of our law and our procedural law and the I

1

| 17 compendium of documents that I have reviewed and perhaps the

18 Board has reviewed ~from Mr. Turk, we are trying to state as

19 definitively as we can our view of our role essentially from

20 day one. So this is not a, and I don't want to say that Mr.

21 Dignan said it was, but we are just defining what we believe

22 has been the situation essentially from the beginning.

23 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Turk?

24 ORAL ARGUMENT OF SHERWIN E. TURK

25 MR. TURK: Your Honor, I have to admit I am in a
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1 position today that I never imagined I would be in.

2 Frankly, in response to Mr. Traficonte, I have to say I

3 don't understand his comments. I don't understand that'
:

4 there has been a clarification of the Attorney General's

5 role in the proceeding. If anything, I am more confused now

6 than I was last week when I started researching the matter. |
|

7 JUDGE SMITH: That's what research does. j

!
8 (Laughte r. ) 1

9 MR. TURK: Well, research and listening. |
|

10 MR. TRAFICONTE: No. It's the research, not the

11 listening. i

!
12 (Laughter.) |

!

13 MR. TURK: I had a conversation with Mr. [
!

14 Traficonte last week, which was pretty much impromptu and |/}
i

15 spontaneous. But I asked him at that time was the Attorney i

l
16 General participating in this proceeding at the request of |

|
17 the Governor or the executive department. He said no. I

18 I think that's correct; am I right?
I

19 Now I would ask Mr. Traficonte to respond, because

20 I think this question and a few others I am going to ask
3

21 have great bearing on where we go from here. So the j
!

22 question is, has either the Governor or the executive
,

23 department requested the Attorney General to participate in ;

!

24 this proceeding? j
1

25 MR. TRAFICONTE: The answer to that would be |

!
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1 buried in historical time. I would have to go back and find

2 the point at which we entered the proceeding in 1974,

3 whether there had been a request, written or oral, by the

4 then governor to the then attorney general to enter the

5 proceeding. Frankly, it is not a relevant question. I'll

6 defend that proposition at great length. It is not a

7 relevant question to ask. It's an empirical question and |

8 the answer I frankly don't have, and I would have to go

9 back. If that's the intent, I would have to go back and

10 find out what series of communications were exchanged in .
,

1
'

11 1974 between the then governor and the then attorney

12 general,

13 MR. TURK: Well, you may not have to search all

(]) 14 the way back to '74. You can start with the operating
i

15 license proceeding in 1981. If you wish to go back to '74

'
16 and construct a prior authorization as a basis for

17 participating in this proceeding, I'll hear what you have to

18 say.

19 But, Your Honor, I raise the question for a very

20 good reason. And incidently let me note on March 17th I

21 wrote a letter to Mr. Traficonte confirming his statement to

22 me that' in fact there had been no request to participate by

23 the executive department or the Governor.

24 Now why am I making a point of this? At the same

25 time that I mention that, I guess I should ask one other

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 . question and that is, has the legislative' department, has

% 2 the legislative branch of the Massachusetts government

'

'3- requested the Attorney General's participation here?

4 MR. TRAFICONTE: I believe the answer is going to

5 be the same, Your Honor. It's an empirical question, and I
,

|

6 take it it's going to be relevant to the time period 1974,

7 or relevant to the time period 1981. And without doing my

8 homework and going back and somehow trying to answer a

9 question that.it seems to me at this juncture is going to be

10 fairly hard to find the answer to, I can't comment. I don't

11 think it'n a relevant question, however, and I think the
i

12 statute that I referred to, Chapter 12, Section 3, makes

13 clear that the Attorney General ultimately can come into

[]} 14 this proceeding and represent the Commonwealth as it has.

15 MR. TURK:- Well,_ I am no expert in Massachusetts

16 law, Your Honor.

'

17 MR. SEANNON: Mr. Chairman?

18 MR. TURK: I am licensed in other jurisdictions,

19 not including Massachusetts. But I took a look at the

20 statute cited by Mr. Traficonte.

21 MR. SHANNON: Mr. Turk, if I might, if I could

22 just say to the Board. If you think that the relationship

23 between the Attorney General and the Governor is confusing

24 to you, you can imagine how confusing it is from time to

25 time to Governor Dukakis and me.

O orie m.goreim, corger tion
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1 The question that Mr. Turk asks is not only not

2 relevant, but it's rather specious. The fact of the matter

3 is the Attorney General of the Commonwealth has participated

4 in these proceedings since 1974, going back to the

5 construction permit phase. There would be no reason for any

6 governor then or subsequent, or any legislature then or

7 subsequent to ask us to participate because we were already

8 participating from that time consistently throughout. But

9 that doesn't -- whether there was a request or not, I don't

10 think defines the relationship.

11 Now this question of what the role of the Attorney

12 General is in particular litigation is one that has been

13 discussed at great length by our state's highest court and

(]) 14 defined by court decisions with respect. I do believe that +

15 Mr. Traficonte's suggestion that this matter is best dealt

16 with in writing rather than conversational 1y or in a kind of

17 a casual manner is a good suggestion, and I think this is a

18 question that bears considerable research, and would ask for

13 the opportunity for the Commonwealth to submit a memorandum

20 to the Board outlining our position as to what our role is

21 in these proceedings.

22 I point out that these proceedings are sui

23 generis; that this really is a case of first impression. We

24 aren't participating here as one would participate in normal

25 litigation. We are an interested, we're an interested

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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'

(g 1 state, and so that further confuses what I think is already
V,

2 a difficult question that has to be answered, and would ask

3 for the permission of the Board to have our office prepare a

4 memorandum outlining our detailed position as to what our

5 role here, appropriate role here is.

6 JUDGE SMITH: If it is necessary. It may not be

7 necessary if we don't have any particular contentions that

| 8 would be at risk or at issue, and I haven't looked at the

9 contentions myself to see if there are any, and I know that

10 you are all very busy. I hope that perhaps we can clear it

11 up this morning without more writing or reading as far as a

l I
12 that's concerned.

13 Do you want to continue, Mr. Turk?

() 14 MR. TURK: No, I hadn't finished, Your Honor.

15 JUDGE SMITH: You have?

16 MR. TURK: I have not finished.

17 JUDGE SMITH: Have not, yes.

18 MR. TURK: I appreciate the Attorney General's

19 offer to brief. And if the Board finds that briefs are

20 appropriate, I will be happy to file a4 responsive brief as

21 well. But let me indicate why I raise these questions.

22 When Mr. Traficonte cited Section 3 of Chapter 12

23 of Massachusetts law, he didn't give you a complete reading

24 of that statute, because that statute sets up a twofold

| 25 participatory scheme. It setta forth, first, that in the

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 state courts the Attorney General needs no authorization to0
| 2 represent the Commonwealth. However, in other tribunals,

3 and let me read you the direct langauge, he is authorized,

4 "in such suits and proceedings before any other tribunal,

5 including the prosecution of claims of the Commonwealth

6 against the United States, when requested by the Governor or

7 by the general court or by either branch thereof."

8 Now why do I read that? Because if there has been

9 no request that the AG represent the Commonwealth in this

10 proceeding, then he is here representing his own department,

11 not the Commonwealth, and that's an important distinction.

12 The Board may remember that back in 1986, the

13 Attorney General had a contention which was rejected by the

(]) 14 Licensing Board, and the Attorney General filed an appeal

15 before the Appeal Board. When he filed his appeal, he

16 indicated that the Attorney General had been dismissed as a

17 party, not that the Commonwealth was out, but that the AG

18 was out.

19 The Appeal Board wrote back a series of questions

20 and said, well, aren't you really here as the Commonwealth?

21 Wasn't the Commonwealth of Massachusetts admitted as an

22 interested state rather than the Attorney General? The

23 response by the Attorney General at that time was, oh, yes,

24 we are the Commonwealth.

25 But I, frankly, am not convinced that we have ever

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 had the representation clarified. After hearing Mr.

2 Traficonte's argument that he is the spokesperson for the

3 Governor but not his attorney, I am convinced that the

4 Commonwealth is not present before you. Rather, what you

5 have, it seems to me, is that the Attorney General's office

6 is before you.

7 JUDGE SMITH: You are convinced that the

8 Governor's office is not before us and only the Attorney

9 General is.

10 MR. TURK: Now that's based on my interpretation

11 of Mr. Traficonto's statements.
I

12 JUDGE SMITH: I wonder if we might not '

13 characterize the state of affairs somewhat like this. The

|14 Atomic Energy Act gives the right for parties who have an

O 15 interest in the proceeding to intervene. Obviously, you
|
'

16 can't intervene in a Nuclear Regulatory Commission |
|

17 proceeding as interested state and try to sue for damages in |

18 tort in state law. You have to advance issues with a

19 cognizable under the Atomic Energy Act, Energy

20 Reorganization Act and the various statutes within our

21 purview in our regulations.

22 To that extent, it seems to me that the Attorney

| 23 General would have the authority and responsibility to bind

24 the Commonwealth, including, as you state, the executive

25 department which includes the Governor. That is, either you

(3 Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 bring an action before the Nuclear Regulatory Commission on

(} 2 behalf of the Commonwealth, including the Governor, or the

3 Governor suffors from perhaps late filing or not being

4' admitted as a party at all.

5 Furthermore, if you succeed in establishing

6 prevailing on certain issues, the Governor is a party, the

7 executive department would be the beneficiary of that. As

8 the executive officer,lhe would in fact have that benefit at

9 his disposal.

10 On the other side of the coin, if you stipulate

11 away an issue, dismiss an issue, or fail on an issue, the

12 Governor as a part of the executive department will be bound

13 by that. He will have to live with that result, and it

14 could very much ara)ct him.

O 15 I think what you are saying is that the Nuclear

16 Regulatory Commission or the Applicants have no complaint or

17 cause of action against the Governor under the Atomic Energy

18 Act independently or as a counterclaim in a proceeding

19 before us. Therefore, the only thing the Governor can gain

20 or lose, and the only thing you can bind the Governor to |
|

21 winning or losing are issues that are properly before the

22 Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

23 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's it precisely, Your Honor,

24 and I realized when you commented that, for example, if we

25 miss a filing deadline, that would bind the Commonwealth,

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 ' including the Governor, the departments. There is no

. D'^s
'

2 question about that.

3 When I am using the phrase " bind", I wanted to

4 limit it to our capacity in this proceeding to bind.the

5 executive department and the Governor as to substantive

6 policy areas in our constitution and our state law have

7 assigned to those separate departments or branches of

8 government.

9 There is no question that we bind the' Commonwealth

10 in the procedural sense that what we do here, for example,
.

i

11 if we fail to carry a point, or if our evidentiary case'is

12 insufficient, or if we miss a filing deadline, we are

13 clearly binding the Commonwealth in that sense because we

14 are the legal representative in this proceeding of the

O 15 Commonwealth.

16 So please don't, and maybe Mr. Turk had heard me !

17 in that vein. That is not what I am indicating. What I am

18 indicating, and I think Your Honor has your finger on it,

19 there is no cause of action, if you will. There is no

20 challenge in this proceeding to the legal obligations, the

21 substantive policy determinations of the government of

22 Massachusetts that we are representing.

23 So for that reason, we are not in a position to

24 bind those departments as to their prerogatives which have
|

25 remained with them and are not being challenged here. But
'

i

l
!
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1 please don't -- )

2 JUDGE SMITH: Are you capable of binding

3 departments of the Commonwealth as to their prerogatives

4 within the venue and the scope of the jurisdiction of the

5 Nuclear Regulatory Commission?

6 MR. TRAFICONTE: I think the chort answer is, Your

7 Honor, that there is no -- that the prerogatives of our |

8 executive department in no fashion is within the purview of |

9 the regulatory --

10 JUDGE SMITH: There are no prerogatives that can |

11 fall within it. If there were, theoretically, you have --

12 MR. TRAFICONTE: If there were, and they were at

13 issue in this proceeding, and the Attorney General entered

14 the proceeding, we would be representing those agencies, and

O
15 we could be and would be in a position to be able to bind

16 them vis-a-vis their obligations, if their obligations were

17 at issue.

18 The classic example, or the clearest example would

19 be one that I am sure Mr. Dignan would wish were true, only

20 wish were true, if federal law obligated the Commonwealth to , :'

21 plan, if federal law obligated the Commonwealth to plan and

22 that issue was before -- as common sense would tell us it

23 probably would be -- if that issue were before this tribunal

24 and we were here representing the Commonwealth, we would be

25 in a position of being able to bind, because the legal
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1 obligations of the Commonwealth would be challenged, and we

() 2 would be in a position to be able to bind.

3 But there is no, there is no challenge here both
-

i
>

4 because there is no jurisdiction, and both because thero is j

5 no law governing, there is no challenge here to the actions

6 or inactions of the Commonwealth. That is not essentially

7 the issue before the house. So we are here as only their

8 spokesperson and as their legal representative. If we fail

9 to meet a filing deadline, they will suffer the

10 consequences.

11 JUDGE SMITH: The worst that can happen to the

12 Commonwealth in entering a proceeding with the Nuclear

13 Regulatory Commission is that you don't win. !

14 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's right.

15 JUDGE SMITH: That's the worst that can happen.

16 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's right.

17 JUDGE SMITH: The worst case is if you hadn't

18 intervened to begin with.

19 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's right. |

20 MR. TURK: I have a " worst case" proposition, Your

21 Honor.

22 In the past, the Commonwealth was engaged in

23 emergency planning. The Attorney General felt that those

24 plans were inadequato. You had a potential for the

25 Commonwealth to come before you with its own emergency plans ,

1
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e 1 saying we think these are adequate. And by Commonwealth, I

2 mean the executive department speaking through its Governor
'

'

3 and its Civil Defense Agency. On the other hand, the I

4 Attorney General opposing it.

5 And in fact that's what happened early in this
|

6 proceeding. I am going to find a citation to that appendix
|

7 that I filed in which the Attorney General's office

8 indicated that the Commonwealth had not yet cubmitted

9 emergency plans, but that the Attorney General remained free

10 to contest the adequacy of those plans.

11 And if you need a page reference, I will give it

12 to'you, but I think it's clear in Appendix A that that's

13 what happened.

(]) 14 So the " worst case" proposition that I am offering

15 to you is what happens in the future if Governor Dukakis

16 should change his mind. Or if after his term expires, the

17 new governor should change the executive department's policy

18 and enter into planning. You would have two commonwealths

19 before you located within the same borders.

| 20 MR. TRAFICONTE: No , you wouldn't, Your Honor.

21 First of all, it's fortunate for all of us that isn't our

| 22 situation. But even if you imagine it, the answer is quite

23 clear under our law that we would be the exclusive
,

l 24 representative of the Commonwealth. So Mr. Turk is just

25 wrong. You wouldn't have two representatives before -- two

1
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1 representatives of the interest at state. You would have

2 one representative of the interest at state, the Attorney i

3 General; and you would be in the odd posture of having the

4 executive department and the Governor having prepared a plan

5 and perhaps having submitted it to FEMA. But the Governor

6 would not be here in the proceeding before you, because we ,

j

? represent and would in those circumstances represent the j

8 Commonwealth and the Governor.

9 MR. TURK: Your Honor, with all deference to the

10 highest official of the -- how do I put this -- with all due

11 deference to the Attorney General's office, their law is,'

12 contrary. Their law says they are here on behalf of the

13 Commonwealth only if the executive department or legislative )

!(]) 14 department have asked them to come here. And so far we have

I15 not seen any proof that such a request had ever been made.

16 In'' fact, the contrary is true. Mr. Shannon is saying, well,

17 there was no need for them to ask us to be here. We were

IP here already. Someone was here already. But I submit it

19 was the Massachusetts Attorney General's office that was '

20 here, not the Commonwealth.

21 JUDGE SMITH: Let's take whatever scenario yo;

22 wish, Mr. Turk. Let's assume that the Governor says, I want

23 you to go in and intervene in that case and represent my

24 executive department, and I call upon you to do that. And

25 Mr. Shannon says, great, I was going to do it anyway, and
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1 that's what I am going to do.
s

d
2 What difference does it make in our case? How can

3 the Governor gain or lose anything that~is beyond the

4 purview of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission regulations or

| 5 the Atomic Energy Act?

6 MR. TURK: The question would turn, I believe, on

7 state law. If I am correct that it's the Massachusetts

8 Attorney General's office that's before you --
|

9 JUDGE SMITH: Well, postulate any state law that

10 you want, but address its impact on the Nuclear Regulatory

11 Commission proceeding.

12 j
J

13 |
1

! (~% 14
,l

| \_)
| 15

16 ,

I
17

|

18

19 |

20

21
'

22

23

24

25

1
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|

1 MR. TURK: There are several effects, Your Honor. !

(
2 In the first instance, I will not attempt to say what the

3 outcome might be under Massachusetts law. If the Attorney ,

4 General's office had been participating before you without 4

5 authority, I'm not raising that issue. That's a' question of |

6 state law. So let me leave that one aside.

7 It could be that someone in the state would tell

8 the Attorney General that his participation is unauthorized

9 and he is henceforth to desist, withdraw.

| 10 MR. TRAFICONTE: That would be big news, Your
i

f11 Honor.
i

12 MR. TURK: I am not suggesting that. I

13 MR. TRAFICONTE: If Mr. Turk has something in that

/}
14 vein we would like to hear about it.

15 MR. TURK: As I indicated, I am not suggesting

16 that is the outcome. That's a question of state law and I

17 have no ability to predict outcomes within state proceedings

18 or even to interpret state law authoritatively.

19 There is another potential and that is --

20 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's assuming that was a

21 potential.

22 MR. TURK: If the Attorney General's office was to

23 present witnesses before you in this proceeding, I would

24 submit that he does not have attorney / client privilege for

25 his communications with executive department witnesses

O serieave Reverei , cergeraelen!
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- 1 appearing in this proceeding. That's similar to Mr.

2 Dignan's statement that documents which have been requested

3 and then withheld as privileged by the Attorney General's

4 office were improperly withheld.

5 The next outcome that I could see as being

6 significant is what happens at the end of these proceedings

7 if the Attorney General should lose in his arguments and on

8 his evidence and should then take an appeal to the courts,

| 9 who is it before the court at that time?
l

10 I think the record should be clear now as to
1

11 whether it is the Attorney General or the Commonwealth of

12 Massachusetts that is the litigant in this proceeding.

13 JUDGE SMITH: I hear from Mr. Traficonte clearly

/'l 14 that the entire commonwealth is before the Board in this
'u s

,

'

15 proceeding including the Governor.

16 MR. TURK: I have heard him say it on the one
'

17 hand, Your Honor, but then I have heard him say that he is

18 here as the spokesman.

19 JUDGE SMITH: I think that you can pin Mr.

20 Traficonte down for the issues and for the law over which

21 this Board has cognizance. You represent the entire
1

22 Commonwealth.

23 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, Your Honor.

| 24 JUDGE SMITH: Including the Governor.

25 HR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, sir.

Heritage . Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ - _ -



v

16103 |

1 JUDGE SMITH: What he is saying, as I understand

2 it, is that he cannot bind the Governor nor anyone to

3 anything beyond the privy of the Atomic Energy Act.

4 MR. TURK: Your Honor, the word " represent" has l
|

5 such an ambiguous array of meanings.
|

6 Let me be sure I understand Mr. Traficonte's '

7 position, if you don't mind. Is it his position that the

8 state government, the executive branch in particular of the

9 Commonwealth of Massachusetts is his client in this

10 proceeding?

11 MR. TRAFICONTE: Your Honor, I don't know -- I
i

12 will say it again. I think that this is a fairly subtle

13 distinction. We are here as the representative of the

14 Commonwealth including the Governor and the executive

15 department and the agencies.

16 Because the actions of those agencies, their legal

17 duties, their obligations are not challenged our

18 relationship between -- the relationship between the

19 Attorney General's office and those departments is distinct

20 from the relationship between this office and those

21 departments if their legal obligations were at issue.

| 22 I am going to call both of those relationships,

23 both of the sets representation by the AG of the

24 Commonwealth number one type and two type.

25 The first type is as spokesperson pursuant to

1
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1 chapter 12, section 3 which says that we can go in as the

2 representative of the Commonwealth. I believe that is what

3 we are doing.

4 Representation's number two is if the agencies'

5 actions, the Governor'.3 actions, the legislature's actions,
.

6 the actions of the Supreme Judicial Court, if you could

7 imagine such a thing, if the actions of the government are

8 at issue legally. If they are challenged. If they are of

9 moment legally to the proceeding.

10 JUDGE SMITH: Not evidentiary but legally.

l

11 MR. TRAFICONTE: Not evidentiary. |

12 JUDGE SMITH: Substantive.

13 MR. TRAFICONTE: Substantive law issues are on the

14 table before the tribunal. In that situation if we are in
)

15 the proceeding we are representing those agencies just as I
|
.

16 Mr. Turk is indicating. That is very much like an

17 attorney / client relationship that we are all familiar with,

18 although by the way it has some distinctions with the normal

19 relationship.

20 But in any event, that isn't the relationship we

21 have. That isn't the nature of the proceeding, therefore
4

4

22 that isn't the nature of the relationship we have now

23 between our office and the rest of the government, although

24 we are still here representing that government.

25 JUDGE SMITH: If you were to dismies a contention

O Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 or whatever, would we hear the Governor himself -- the ;

'2 Office of the Governor come in and say, " Hey, wait a minute

[ 3 they had no authority to represent'us to do that."

L 4 If you were to stipulate.to a. dismissal of the

5 operating license proceeding, could we hear from the

6 Governor to say, "No, he represented himself. He had no )
I

7. authority to represent us in that." q
,

8 MR. TRAFICONTE: Here is what would happen under

9 state law and there are some cases like that, not.with

10 nuclear licenses. And again, on this point, even though I i

|

11 have done my homework this time I'm still going to hedge )
12 because this is a very subtle and hotly disputed area,

13 frankly, of state law. And we would, again, if this became

14 an issue we would like the opportunity to file something in

15 more detail.

16 The short answer is, if we decided to stipulate

17 away our case and essentially close down shop and decide

18 that we found nothing wrong any longer with emergency

19 planning or anything else, we would be -- the Governor, if 4

20 he disagreed, could come to the Attorney General and say, "I

21 want you to go in there again or I don't want you to do what j
1

22 you are doing, I want you to stay in there and battle for me I

23 if you're not going to battle for the Commonwealth."

24 And if the Attorney . General decided that he was

25 not going to do that the likely outcome would be that the

i
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1 Governor would request that a Special Assistant Attorney

2 General be designated by the Attorney General to represent

3 the Governor. In that capacity, however, the Governor would

4 not be representing -- and I want to emphasize this -- in

5 that capacity the Governor would not be representing the
>

6 Commonwealth. He would be representing the Governor.

7 JUDGE SMITH: That wasn't quite my question

8 however. I'm talking about~ binding the Governor. But to

9 shorten it, the res adjudicata actions of this Board and the

10 Commission will be as binding'upon the Governor as anything.

11 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes. There is not another part

12 of our government on the side, so to speak, who could come

13 in after we are done to take another bite of the apple.

14 MR. TURK: Your Honor, may I ask one other

15 question?

16 JUDGE SMITH: Just a minute, Mr. Turk.
|

17 (Board conferring.) |

18 JUDGE COLE: Mr. Traficonte. |

19 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, Your Honor.

20 JUDGE COLE: I want to make sure I understand Mr.

21 Turk's questions. He indicated that under section 3,

22 chapter 12 you are authorized to represent the Commonwealth
a
23 and the Governor in the state court system. And outside of

24 that state court system in other jurisdictions you would

25 participate if requested to do so by the Governor or the

O Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 legislature; is that correct, sir?

2 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, Your Honor.

3 JUDGE COLE: Let me finish my question.
4

4 MR. TRAFICONTE: I'm sorry.

|
5 JUDGE COLE: Now, are there other. sections in

1
i 6 section 3, chapter 12 that would permit you to represent the

7 Commonwealth and the Governor in jurisdictions outside of

8 the state court system absent the request of the Governor or

9 the legislature?
I

10 MR. TRAFICONTE: I think I got the thrust of it. q
|

11 Could you repeat the second half of that question just one

12 more time.
1

I13 JUDGE COLE: I will try.

14 Are there other sections or other statements in

O
15 section 3 of chapter 12 that would authorize your

1

16 participation in a jurisdiction outside of the state court
!
! 17 system without the request of the Governor or the

18 legislature? I thought that was the point that Mr. Turk was

19 making and I am not sure that you addressed that directly, 4

|
20 sir. |

|

21 MR. TRAFICONTE: There are two answers to that.

22 There are other sections of chapter 12 -- and unfortunately |

23 I don't have all of chapter 12 with me -- but there are

| 24 other sections, for example, that authorize the Attorney

25 General without a formal request mechanism to go into any

C/)
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1 tribunal, state, federal or other forum, to enforce the

O
2 environmental protection laws, for example. To enforce

3 certain civil rights statutes and protect certain civil

'4 rights.

5 There are statutes in similar vein that obligate ]i

6 us to regulate charities and utilities. A whole series of

7 separate sections of chapter 12 that do authorize us to go

| 8 in.

)
9 JUDGE COLE: The reason I raise that question is

10 you, in your introductory remarks, you justified your

11 presence here under section 3, chapter 12.

i
' 12 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes.

13 JUDGE COLE: Is it other than that then?

] 14 MR. TRAFICONTE: No. I was just going to comment,

15 although there are other sections of the statute that would

16 permit us to go into a forum we wouldn't be in this i

17 proceeding under those statutes. As I have indicated, we

18 believe we are in this proceeding under section 3.

19 The language that Mr. Turk has focused on has been

20 glosaed -- There are two points I would want to make in

21 response. It has been glossed by a particular fairly
1

22 significant case, the cite for which I will provide the I

23 Board -- a copy of which I will provide the Board -- that in

24 part dealt with this question of -- the language is, "when
,

!

| 25 requestod by the Governor or by the general court." Now our

O erieae. a.-ru , C-rauon
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1 general court is our legislature as both of its bodies.

2 Requested by the Governor or by the general court or either

3 branch thereof. |

4 There is a cass that discusses this language,

5 number one. And apparently this is much less a formal

6 requirement than may appear.

]}7 The second point is that you understand that the

8 Attorney General is funded, to the extent that he is funded
1
|9 --

10 (Laughter)

11 MR. TRAFICONTE: You understand that the Attorney

12 General is funded by the legislature and that in that

13 funding there is an appropriation that identifies the cost

] 14 and expenses of his proceeding in this case.

15 So that if the language is read narrowly -- I

16 mean, if this were in fact a requirement of our state court

17 that there has to have been a request by the Governor or by

18 the general court or either branch thereof, if that's

19 somehow a formal requirement which I don't believe the case

20 I mentioned says, even if it were, the fact of the matter is

21 that we are being funded to do this by our legislature. ;

l
'22 JUDGE COLE: You think that then is a hidden

23 request?

24 MR. TRAFICONTE: I think it is less than hidden |
|

25 I think it's, "Here is the money and here is the identified |

O R rieae. a gerei-2 correraeien
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1

1 purpose, we know what you' re up to. " j

2 MR. DIGNAN: Has that been rechecked with Mr.

3 Keverian?

4 (Laughter)

5 MR. TRAFICONTE: Here is more money.

6 JUDGE COLE: All right, sir, I think I understand

7 your position.

8 Did I characterize your concerns properly, Mr.

9 Turk?

10 MR. TURK: I think so.

11 Let me indicate so that we are all clear on what

12 my purpose is. I am not sugg'esting that the Massachusetts

13 Attorney General lack standing. On the contrary, he is

14 here, he has standing. My only question is, who is the(]}
15 party before you, is it the AG's office or is it the

16 Commonwealth?

17 If I may, Your Honor, I would like to raise one

18 other point before we drop off on this. We had served

19 discovery on the Attorney General's Office seeking to know

20 what steps the Commonwealth, not the. Attorney General, but

21 what steps the Commonwealth would take in the event of an
,

,

22 emergency. And the questions all were phrased in that

23 sense. They were identified -- they were served upon the

24 Commonwealth and the interrogatory said: "What steps would

25 you take in an omergency?"

|

-O eritas. Rogerei , correraeien i
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1 The answers that we received on behalf of

O
2 different governmental departments was signed by the

3 Attorney General's Office. Now if he is representing those

4 departments in this proceeding before you then he would have

5 the authority to sign interrogatories and whether or not

6 those were truthful answers would affect'whether or not the

7 departments had answered properly before you. |

8 And I would hate to be in a position where the

9 Attorney General's Office was screening answers that were

10 being provided to us and modifying them without'the

11 authority to represent those departments in the proceeding. 1

12 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Turk, I believe we are going to

13 have to address the issue again, if at all, within the

14 context of a particular motion for relief or some action by{])
1

15 the Board. I don't believe that we can do much more in a 1

16 broad discussion anymore of who is the client and who is the

17 lawyer. Bearing in mind that we have a regulation which
,

1

18 puts in factual issue. They presume then expected response ;
1

I19 of state and local governments in a radiological emergency.

20 And bearing in mind that the Attorney General has elected to

21 litigate those issues. )
i

22 If it comes up we might hear arguments more

23 narrowly focused on to what extent the Attorney General ,

!

24 might have to bind the Commonwealth to take certain !
i

25 emergency actions in an emergency or to refuse to or

(A Heritage Reporting Corporation)
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1 whatever. I don't know. Do we have that before us right
O

2 now? I don't believe.

3 I think the issue is difficult enough without

4 deciding things that don't have to be decided.

5 I am rather satisfied that they represent the

6 Commonwealth and all of its cognizant departments in this

7 proceeding within the privy of the Atomic Energy Act.

8 However that does not mean that we haven't looked

9 at your motion to compel and take that into account. I'm

10 just saying that is how I come away from the argument.

11 Anything further? Shall we take our mid-morning

12 break?

13 IT. TRAFICONTE: I have no objection to that, Your

(]) 14 Honor. Before we break I would just like to know what he

15 Board's wishes are as to some preliminary business. It

16 wouldn't take very long but we do have -- I do have several

17 minor motions. They may be minor but they are of great

18 moment to our office.

19 I just wonder if we could address those when we

20 return before the witness panel actually -- it will not take

21 very long.

22 JUDGE SMITH: Let's take the break and when we

23 return --

24 MR. DIGNAN: Your Honor, just to advise the Board,

25 it would be my plan before any witnesses take the stand -- I

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 guess the first witnesses will be witnesses of the Towns --rs
1

2 to offer formally into evidence both the SPMC, the plan, and i

'

3 the FEMA reports and give them a designation.

4 My understanding is everybody has been served with

5 these including the Board. The Board I think has made a

6 request that we have a set of>the plan here for its

7 convenience which we will arrange and we will supply the
4

8 documents to the Reporter and three copies later this
'

9 afternoon or first thing in the morning. We didn't bring

10 them down here through the rain because I didn't know how

11 far we would get today.

12 If that is agreeable to the Board I will make that

13 offer before the witnesses --

(]} 14 JUDGE SMITH: That's fine.

15 JUDGE COLE: I personally have not been served an

16 up to date copy of that plan.

17 MR. DIGNAN: Would you like another one here or

18 would you like it sent to your office in Washington?

|
j 19 JUDGE COLE: No, bring it here.

20 MR. DIGNAN: Bring it here.

21 JUDGE McCOLLOM: I have never been served any SPMC

22 because I am so new on the Board.
l

23 MR. DIGNAN: All right, Your Honor. Again, would

24 you like the copy brought here? |

25 JUDGE McCOLLOM: No, I would like it sent to my

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 home.

'
2 MR. DIGNAN: Sent to your home.

7.

3 JUDGE McCOLLOM: Yes.

4 MR. DIGNAN: That's what will be done.

5 JUDGE SMITH: 15 minutes.

6 (Whereupon, a 15 minute break was taken.)

7

8
|

9 |
|

10

11

12

13

O 4

15

16

17 |

'

18

19

20

21

22
|

23

24

25

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888

,
_ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _



_ ,
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

16115

1 JUDGE SMITH: You may proceed, Mr. Dignan.
O

2 MR. DIGNAN: Did Mr. Traficonte have some motions

3 that he wanted to bring before the Board first?

4 JUDGE SMITH: Do you want to take up your

5 preliminary motions?

6 MR. TRAFICONTE: Could we do that at this point? I

7 think it would be easier. ,

8 JUDGB SMITH: Fine.i

|

9 MR. TRAFICONTE: The first thing 'I would like to

10 do is respond to the Board's inquiry as to the proper

11 interpretation of that sentence that we were talking about a

12 few minutes ago.

13 The case that I was referring to is called Feeney

{]) 14 versus Commonwealth and it's at 373 Mass 359. And the

15 relevant sentence that I would just want to read is at 367.

16 It's a 1977 Supreme Judicial Court opinion. And it

17 interprets the line in chapter 12, section 3 that Mr. Turk

18 had just read and that Your Honor had askhd about.

19 It says: "The first sentence of chapter 12,

20 section 3 makes no distinction between the authority of the

21 Attorney General to appear for the Commonwealth and state

22 officers in the courts of the Commonwealth and his authority
23 to appear for the Commonwealth and state officers in other

24 tribunal."

25 According to this case the language that says --

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 that appears.to say that when the Attorney General appears

2 'in a non-state forum there must be a request, this case

3 interprets the statute in-a different way and says that is |

4 not the case. That's not what that sentence actually means, f

5 So just so that's clear.

6 MR. TURK: I'm sorry, could I get the citation
|

7 again.
'

8 MR. TRAFICONTE: Sure. It is '373 Mass 359. The

9 relevant discussion is at 366, 367 interpreting precisely

10 the line that Mr. Turk was focusing on. l
'

1

11 JUDGE COLE: ,That was a 1977. decision?
I 12 MR. TRAFICONTE: 1977 decision. I don't

1

13 unfortunately have the New England second cite, I'm sorry. !

14 We can provide it and we will provide a copy of the case to(]}
15 the Board. i

16 I have just some preliminary matters. |

J
17 MR. TURK: Your Honor, let me note.that I would |

18 respond to that, on the Feeney case just cited by Mr. |

19 Traficonte, if the Board is interested any further because

20 that was not a correct representation of the holding of that

l
1 21 case. 4 -

1

22 JUDGE COLE: Well, if you have something to add we
i

23 would entertain whatever you have, Mr. Turk. .And you of

24 course get a chance to respond.

25 MR. TRAFICONTE: I'm sorry I brought it up. I had

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 said there was a case that interpreted the precise language

2 and in the interim I got the case and I pointed to the I

3 sentences that interpreted the language. I'm more or less ')

4 inclined to let the document speak for itself.

5 I have a couple points, the most significant of

6 which is, I have to tell, Your Honor, I had a dream the ,

I

7 other night -- this is the truth -- I had a dream the other j

8 night and it was a forum in a dark and distant place and~I

9 was preparing as a litigant and I was appearing before you,

10 Your Honor, and as I came up before the forum that I

11 realized that I was supposed to do something or say

12 something and that there was some issue on the table and I

I13 wasn't sure what it was. And it was quite clear that I was

(]) 14 obligated to do or say or in some fashion respond to you and

15 the only thing I was able to say is that I asked for more

16 time.

17 (Laughter)
4

)
18 JUDGE SMITH: You were right, I-trust you were l

19 fully clothed.

20 MR. TRAFICONTE: I was.

21 (Laughter)
,

22 MR. TRAFICONTE: In my opinion this dream speaks !
I

23 volumes about my life over the last year and a half.

24 But in fact the department -- the Attorney General

25 in this case, I think it is probably fair to say, I' m

;
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1 representing in this motion my wife and my children as much
O

2 as I am the Commonwealth. But we are going to request an

3 extension of the second filing deadline which is now for the

4 rematning testimony on the contentions essentially connected

5 to tne exercise.

6 We are going to request an extension of one week,

7 from April 3 to April 10, with the consequence that the

8 subsequent filings be pushed ahead in the same course for

9 the following reason: we don't believe it will have any

10 impact on the schedule for the proceedings. That is the

11 number one reason and 3s why we bring it at this point.

12 We understood last week that the Board is not

13 planning on holding hearings in the first two weeks in May.

ggg 14 As a consequence of that or as independently of that our

15 office has been, as you know, engaged in trying to schedule

16 our already filed testimony, line the witnesses up, set up

17 the contention clusters to take us essentially from today

18 forward.

19 When we mapped that out we realized that -- of

20 course, there's always looseness because no one can

21 anticipate precisely -- but we believe there is ample

22 testimony already on file to take us through to the end of

23 April.

24 In that eventuality if the Board is still inclined )
l25 to break for those two weeks in May we can't see, since we

k Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 wouldn't be turning to this second wave of testimony until

2 the middle of May when we resume -- we can't see why the AG

3 could not have an additional week which would still permit

4' all the other filings to come in. I think that scenario

5 would be the'last filing due on the 24th of April.' And

6 there would still be more than sufficient time for everybody ,

7 to read the testimony and prepare for the hearings when they

{j8 resume in the middle of May. i

9 That's the primary, and I'm almost prepared to say

10 the exclusive reason. The only other point that I.would

11 want to raise is that, we are in this phase -- in the second

12 filing we are going to be filing our position on the state

13 response which is concerned -- of course the Board is

14 concerned, the parties and it's of I think of great moment.[])
15 And quite frankly, we would like to address this

16 issue in some detail in a trial brief. And I think the

17 Board probably has, if not ordered us to do that, certainly '|
i

18 indicated that we should. !

19 In light of the other obligations that our office

20 is facing right now, not only the beginning of the hearings

21 now but our appeal brief on your New Hampshire decision is

22 due this Friday. I don't know if the Board is aware of
,

!

23 that. Of course that's by our own postponement of it from

24 an earlier point but it as still due this Friday.

25 In light of that and in light of the fact that wc

() Heritage Reporting Corporation ;
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1 actually would want to do a fairly extensive brief on the
O

2 issue of state response in the trial brief set forth our

3 position clearly, we think that ultimately the issues are

4 going to be benefited if we are given to April the 10th.

5 And we don't think it could possibly delay in

6 which case it doesn't seem to have any negative impact on

7 anything.

8 JUDGE SMITH: While we're on that issue, have the

9 parties received a notice from the Appeal Board as to the

10 oral arguments on the onsite issue before them on April

11 21st?

12 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, Your Honor.

13 MR. DIGNAN: Yes, Your Honor.

ggg 14 JUDGE SMITH: Did that point out that we would not

15 be --

16 MR. DIGNAN: No , it did not. But I assumed that

17 there probably had been some coordination.

18 JUDGE SMITH: Yes, there was. We will not be

19 having hearings on that day.

20 Mr. Dignen, do you wish to be heard?

21 MR. DIGNAN: Yes, Your Honor. I oppose it. The

22 Board set a schedule. The Attorney General took it to the

23 Commission, took it to the Appeal Board. It got turned |

24 down. The schedule is fair.

25 I indicated up in New Hampshire -- I know you have
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1 heard it, the other Board members have not -- I was fairly

2 liberal in going along with extensions but I said there is

3 going to come a time when we are on the critical path.

4 Seabrook is now on the critical path.

5 We believe that we have satisfied the last

6 requirement of the Commission for a low power license and I

7 just simply cannot assent to pushing the schedule.

8 I understand Mr. Traficonte's theory about, we
1

9 have got enough to fill it up. I'm not at all clear we do.
i

]10 We don't intend to cross-examine as long as he does. And
1
'11 I'm not sure we do have it filled up.

12 But again, having said that I fully understand
,{
'

13 it's a matter well within the Board's discretion. But the

/]} 14 Applicant would not assent to the extension.

15 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Tark?

16 MR. TURK: I have nothing to say on the request

17 for the extension, Your Honor. I will abide by whatever the

16 Board's decision is on that.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Would you particularly address Mr. j

20 Traficonte's view that the delay in filing the testimony j

21 will not bring about any overall delay?

22 MR. TURK: I really don't know if that is correct

23 or not, Your Honor. It really depends on how much cross-
1

24 examination will come before you in the next six weeks of |
I,

| 25 hearing before the May break. j

.
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1 As usually happens in the Seabrook proceeding the
'

2 Staff's cross-examination is likely to be much shorter in
1

3 length than that of the Applicants or the Mass AG, so I |

4 really can't comment. It's speculation on my part. -

5 JUDGE SMITH: All right. We will take it under

6 advisement.

7 MR. TURK: I would like to comment on the Feeney

|
8 case cited by Mr. Traficonte, Your Honor, if'the Board

9 wishes because I think it's important to know that that case

10 did not address the question of whether authorization from

11 the executive or legislative branch need to be present in,

|

12 the first instance. That case only addressed the question

13 of what happens once the Attorney General is in the case who

/]
14 has control over litigation. And the answer to that was,

15 the Attorney General has control. In fact that control over

16 litigation is authorized by the same statutory section,

17 chapter 12, section 3.

18 The question that I addressed before is, who may
I

19 represent the Commonwealth in the first instance? Can the j

20 Attorney General do it on his own or does he need

21 authorization from the legislature or executive branch?

22 The Feeney decision cited by Mr. Traficonte does

23 not address that question. It merely addresses control of
.

24 litigation. I

25 And incidentally I would note that I spent more

|
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1 than several hours on Lexis searching.for all Massachusetts I-

|*

2 law on the issue and there is very little.
.

3 Let me give you a complete citation to the Feeney' )

4 case cited by Mr. Traficonte, 373 Mass 359, 366 Northwest

5 2d, 1262, that's a 1977 decision.

6 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Turk, I'm still having -- after
1

7 recess I realized after discussing with my colleagues, I'm

8 still having difficulty appreciating what your narrow |
l

l 9 position is. I
i

10 MR. TURK: In sum, we have no objection to the 1
|

| 11 Attorney General representing his department in this
j

12 proceeding. We have no objection to him representing the {
| \
| 13 Commonwealth in this proceeding. We only want it clear who

({} 14 in fact is the party before the Board. And I believe the

i
15 board is satisfied as expressed at the conclusion of our -

|

16 discussion before the break that in fact the Commonwealth is

17 represented here with all of its executive departments J

18 included.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Within the purview of the Atomic j

j 20 Energy Act.

21' MR. TURK: Yes.

22 JUDGE SMITH: In fact I sense, although it wasn't

23 stated, I sense that Mr. Traficonte agreed with me, you're |

24 agreeing with me, Mr. Dignan did not disagree with me. I

25 wonder if you agreed with that.

O erie se aegerei , cerger tio-
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1 MR. DIGNAN: No, I don't think I disagreed, Your
O

2 Honor, as marked. As I said, my interest in this is

3 complying to the discovery motion and the view that I am

4 expressing which is that I understand the breadth of the

5 representation that has been taken. I believe it to be a

6 lawful exercise of the Attorney General's authority to

7 decide for himself what the breadth of it is.

8 But as stated to the Board, I don't think they can

9 assert the attorney / client privilege on those particular

10 documents as a result.

11 JUDGE SMITH: These documents being something

12 other than the litigation within the purview of the Atomic

13 Energy Act. If the Governor is the client of the Attorney

ggg 14 General for litigation within the purview of the Atomic

15 Energy Act in this proceeding does not the attorney / client

16 or work product privilege apply?

17 MR. DIGNAN: Not if they're saying whatever the
s

18 purview is we cannot bind the Governor. We cannot -- as I

19 understand what they are telling us, I understand the

20 Governor is bound by any decision, mainly because it's too

21 late to get in by himself. But what I understand they're

22 saying, for example, is that they cannot bind the Governor

23 to doing anything in settlement and so forth and so on.

24 The attorney / client privilege, as I understand it,

25 is on the theory that there has to be a protection so that

h Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 the client'can communicate freely.with his lawyer with no

O-
2 hope that -- with no possibility that those. communications

3 will be breached by an outsider.

4' But that relationship is the relationship of f
J

5 attorney to client with the right to bind within that ]
|
'

6 representation. I haven't heard a power to bind the.

7 Governor yet. It's just that'all I'm told is,-well, if we

8 lose the Governor loses. That may or may not be so,

9 incidentally, I think under Massachusetts law. . But he

10 certainly would have an uphill battle to get in at this late

11 date. I will agree to that as a practical matter.

12 But I have not heard the kind of attorney / client ,

A

13 relationship that I think allows you to protect documents of )
14 the nature described in here, some of which are between two{)
15 executive offices. Understand, these aren't documents

|

16 written by the Attorney General to the Governor. |

17 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that's another issue.

18 MR. DIGNAN: And these aren't documents where the

19 Attorney General had written a letter to the Governor or.the i

20 Governor has sent a letter to the Attorney General seeking

21 advice and giving him views.

22 Here we got one, a memorandum from Robert Boulay

23 who is in the Civil Defense to Buzz Hausner. And another

24 one from Tom Hubbard to Peter Agnes. Hubbard is Dukakis'

25 political operative as far as I know and Agnes is an

O rie 9- eerei 9 career tio-
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|

1 Assistant Secretary up in the Public Safety Department. Now

O ,

2 these aren't privileged documents unless you're going to say 1
3

.

.g

3 it's a privileged document when one of my emergency planners i

4 writes a memorandum to the President of Public Service of

5 New Hampshire. And I don't think I would get very far
!

6 claiming attorney / client on that one.

7 Now the only way he can get an attorney / client
.

8 privilege on that is,1f somehow he comes in here and says, t
!

9 look, I'm the attorney for these people, these were prepared

10 at my request for purposes of litigation and this is my

11 client and I can bind them- I haven't heard that yet.
1
l12 JUDGE SMITH: Me will have to read your motion and

13 come back to it.

(]) 14 MR. TURK: Your Honor, let me note also, I believe

15 you summarized my position as.boing that I'm satisfied that ;

16 they do represent the Commonwealth. I'm not all that

17 satisfied. I will abide' by the Board's determination to

18 that effect. And I will not raise it on -- I will not seek

19 to appeal from that determination.

20 But I believe that it is not clear yet that Mr.

21 Traficonte and Mr. Shannon are the attorneys for the

22 executive department in this proceeding.

23 JUDGE SMITH: You don't believe it is?

24 MR. TURK: I personally am not satisfied, Your

25 Honor.

O neritae. Recorein , cergeration
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Well, for that matter, how do I know

2 you represent the NRC7
1

3 (Laughter) |

4 JUDGE SMITH: Now when you really stop to think

5 about it --

6 MR. TURK: I'm on a very short leash, Your Honor. i

7 JUDGE SMITH: Notwithstanding the fact that Mr.
'

8 Reis is sitting next to you.

I9 (Laughter)

10 MR. TURK: Let me say that Mr. Reis is here at my
1

11 invitation.

12 (Laughter)

13

0 24

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 |

24

25
|
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- 1 MR. TURK: But if I say something that my client, i
|

2 the NRC staff through its executive director does not like, ]

3 I'll hear about it. My client is the NRC Staff speaking

4 through its executive director. I don't know today who Mr. I

i|5 Traficonte's client is.
|

6 JUDGE SMITH: I have no difficulty understanding

| 7 that having served in the state government'with the attorney {
)

|

' 8 general for many years. I understand he is a constitutional J

9 officer elected to represent the state departments, to

10 represent directly the citizens and represent the body of I

11 the commonwealth. I have no difficulty understanding that, )

12 and I don't have any difficulty understanding the fact that

13 within the purview of this case when he onters the

] 14 proceeding representing the Commonwealth, he also represents

15 the Governor and can bind the Governor, and the Governor '

16 indeed will be bound by whatever we decide in thie

17 proceeding providing it is within the purview of the Nuclear |

18 Regulatory Commission's jurisdiction. That's simple. I

| 19 don't really have any difficulty with it.

20 I am asking questions and I am not getting -- I |

21 still don't appreciate, at this moment I don't appreciate |

22 what your concern is.

23 MR. TRAFICONTE: I think Mr. Turk's concern, and

24 I'm sure I am going to regret saying this, but I think his

25 concern is, going back to the example that gave rise to the

.O eritase - rei , C - raei-
| (202) 628-4888

|



v
- - _ _ _ _ ------ ---_______ __

16129

1 whole inquiry today, I believe his concern is, for example,g.
\al

2 take an intersection, take a given intersection. And there

3 is a traffic management plan that is set forth in a utility

4 plan. The Attorney General has come in, aided by experts,

5 arguing that the reconfiguration of that intersection will-

6 have the following result. And if it's changed, instead of

7 this reconfiguration if it's changed to another one, it will

8 have this result.

9 Mr. Turk, I think the intuition and the impetus

10 for his comments is that Mr. Dignan wants to stand up, or if

11 Mr. Dignan stood up on behalf of his client and said, we

12 will pay, and he would say it to me as an assistant attorney
!

13 general representing the Commonwealth in this sense, if Mr. i;

! !
! 14 Dignan would stand up and say, look, we will pay to pave !

{])
15 over that intersection; what do you say to that. Can we get

16 a binding commitment from you, in the sense that you are

17 representing the department in charge of that intersection,

18 to pave it over? And it's at this point that we say that in

19 this proceeding, the prerogatives, the control over the

20 intersection remains with whatever agency of government )
f

21 controls the intersection, and we cannot bind that agency in j

22 this --

23 JUDGE SMITH: Exactly, but you can indeed go to

24 that agency and say, look,.we can settle this case and to

25 further the public health and welfare by this agreement, and

O erie se neverti=9 cereereeie-
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1 seek their assent.

-( ) - l

2 I would imagine that Mr. Dignan would have

3 difficulty saying, well, look, I'm tired of this proceeding.

4 I withdraw our application. 'I am just~ sick of it'. ,

5 (Laughter.)-

'

6 JUDGE SMITH: And his client is sitting back there

7 saying, hey, wait a minute. You are ex post facto fired. <

8 (Laughter.)

~
|

9 JUDGE SMITH:_ And I would like to see it come up '

10 within the context of a particular-contention, a particular

11 factual situation, a particular item rather than the free

12 ranging, broad discussion which is entertaining all right,

13 but it is not really very helpful.
1

[}
MR.,DIGNAN: No,.no, Your Honor. I think, Your14

15 Honor, as you usually do, have come to another problem.as I !
!

16 see it aside from the discovery problems, and that's this.

17 On that phone call, and-I will do it now I am j,

:

18 prepared to tell my -- my. client is prepared to pay to pave ;

i

19 that intersection. We have'made that clear. Now what I j

20 want to know is the question you just. asked Mr. Traficonte.

21 Is the Attorney General operating on the principle that Mr.
.!

'

22 Traficonte will now go and get a good-faith response from

23 whatever department he has to as to whether they are willing

24 to let us do this for the Commonwealth? Or in fact is the |

25 Attorney General's office really taking the position, and is
'

'O rie e- ei-, co e eio-
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'l Mr. Traficonte under orders from the Attorney General to

O 2 esay, no, we won't do it because it improves the litigation

3 posture of the Attorney General to have that intersection

4 issue open.

5 Now, that's the nub of who are we representing

6 here. Is the Attorney General representing a policy
|

7 position of the Attorney. General that is anti-nuclear, or is

8 this an honest effort by the Attorney General to get the

9 best plan possible?

10 Anil I guess the answer is, the answer is probably

11 the former, and I don't say that pejoratively, because the
I

12 Attorney General stepped up here and stated his position. j
i

13 No plan can do it, and the Attorney General's office is

14 going to block with any legal, or at least they view, legal

15 method they have any attempt to come up with a plan, and

16 that blockage is going to take place in the hearing room in
i
i17 the usual form, and it's going to take place by using.the

18 instruments of state and local government to thwart any

19 effort of the Applicant to improve the plant that they can

20 thwart. And this was the nub of that sirens motion that

21 went down there. That, and as Your Honor correctly stated

22 was not rejected because the theory was bad, but was

23 rejected because the Appeal Board on that record felt that I h

24 had not demonstrated that the thwarting was the result of

25 activities of the Attorney General. }
}
i

!

O rie 9- a rotei-9 cerrer tioa
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1 Now, why do I extend this with these remarks?

O
2 This is why I want that discovery so' badly. I want to know

3 what went on inside that government and the tactical. 1

4 decisions that are being made, because I think I have got a

5 case here, or at least as a lawyer I am willing to represent

6 to a board that I think that discovery may lead to a case j

7 here that says there has been a deliberate attempt to

8 misuse, and I use that in a legal sense, not in a pejorative

9 sense, the legal process. At which time I think I am
/

10 entitled to come and use the doctrine of estoppel before f

11 this agency against the Attorney General, and that's what

12 this is really all about.

13 JUDGE SMITH: Do you think that paving that |

[}
intersection falls within the purview of the Atomic Energy14

15 Act?

16 MR. DIGNAN: I think what falls within the purview

17 of the Atomic Energy Act in the specific setting that we are

18 talking about is this. That intersection, as you know, got

19 some celebrated treatment in the New Hampshire phase of the

20 case and it's apparently due for more on the Massachusetts
)

21 side of the case. The original complaint was that the j
!

22 routing of the traffic was to cross, you will recall that |
t

23 median which is raised. I believe the technical term that |

24 is used is a mountable curve. That is to say it's not a 90-

25 degree angle, but a 45 degree. And the contention was that

O serie se aegerei e correr tie-
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1 the evacuation could not move as fast as our people said '

|' ( )
2 because it would take more time to cross it.

3 Now as Mr. Turk has pointed out, and granted, this I

4 is a little piece of the plan. Yeah, well, the problem goes

5 away if you throw some asphalt across there, cut the curb
.

1

6 and then put up some sort of a wire, I would assume, that |

7 would be removed in case you wanted to use it, and you would

8 move that traffic through. And all the experts seemed to |

9 agree at that point that the time flows that we say would

10 happen would happen.
|

11 Now that has, therefore, become within the purview )
I

12 of this proceeding because one of the things the Board looks-

13 at is, are the Applicants in this utility plan setting !

{) coming forth with the best plan they can. Now one short14

15 answer to that is, yes, we have. They won't pave it and i

16 they won't take it. The heck with it. We've got the best

17 plan we can get.

18 On the other hand, settlement -- the Commission

19 encouraging the settlement of issues between the parties.

20 And it certainly encourages the settlement of issues if the.|;

21 settlement is one which all persons agree will improve the
a

22 relationship to the public health and safety. And I don't

23 think anybody is going to stand up here and say that

24 anything that doesn't speed the evacuation process -- that |
|

25 does speed the evacuation process isn't within this ambit of
'

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 improving the public health and safety.

2 So to that extent, yes, it's right within the

3 purview of the Atomic Energy Act in this setting, in my
1

4 opinion. i
)
I5 MR. TURK: Your Honor, may I particularize it a

6 little bit more dealing with this one intersection?
|

7 If the Board wore to direct Mr. Traficonte to ask
1

8 his client whether they would accept an offer to pave that j
q

9 road, that intersection,- in the first instance Mr.
!

| 10 Traficonte has to decide who the client is; who does he go !
\

1

11 talk to. l

| |

| 12 Now' if it is indeed the Governor or one of his

13 executive departments, then the Board may inquire further |

14 and say, what would it take for the government, for the

15 executive department to resolve this issue? And Mr.

16 Traficonte would have to respond on behalf of the government

17 rather than on behalf of Mr. Shannon. That's an important

18 distinction because Mr. Shannon's litigative posture may be

19 that we won't do anything that will advance the licensing of

| 20 Seabrook.

21 Now with respect to Your Honor's question about

22 jurisdiction, I haven't looked at the question, but I would

23 imagine that you do not have jurisdiction to direct the

24 paving of a road in Massachusetts. You do have the

25 jurisdiction, however, to decide whether an issue before you

Q Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888,

_ _ _ _ _ - - _ - _ _ _



'<-
.

,

)

16135

1 can be resolved.

1()
~

2 For instance, if Mr. Dignan makes a proffer of the

3 money and offers to settle this part of the case, you can

4 presume-that the state'will use its best efforts and will

5 accept that money if the plant is licensed. Or you can

6 simply decide that even without an acceptance by the.

7 government of Massachus'etts, the plan has satisfied

8 emergency planning regulations.

9 JUDGE SMITH: With respect to.this issue, I was j
10 reminded after our telephone conference that it's somewhat a

11 paradox that if you will recall, and probably not many of

12 you do, but in the '50s when the interstate highways were

13 conceived and funded and construction began, it wasn't just

[)
so you could go visit grandma over in Ohio. It was to14

15 further the defense and civil defense and safety of the

16 population.

17 And here we are there is a highway that could be,

18 with a modest improvement, some of those objectives could be

19 accomplished.

20 It is relevant. Just how it actually fits into

21 jurisdiction and who your client is has to be sorted out.

22 There is no question in my mind it is relevant. I don't

23 know if we have at this posture a refusal to negotiate or a

24 refusal to even entertain the adjustment of that highway.

|25 It's not before us. But when it gets before us, yes, I t

O rie 9- eerei-9 corror eio-
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1 think we will zero in right then where are the fine points,

.O 2 what are the fine points of your representation; where does

3 our jurisdiction to foster settlements stop; or where does~

4 our-jurisdiction to issue orders stop and begin. But I

5 think that this will be, as we-all intuitively felt, a good

6 example to test who are the-real players in this proceeding. l
J

|
7 But it's not before us. You have to get it before us

8 somehow, and I know you haven't here.

9 I am a little bit troubled by how this motion.is

10 going to get it before us, but we will have to read it.

11 MR. DIGNAN: I don't think this motion gets before

12 you the question that Your Honor is directing his attention

13 to now. This motion is like any other motion to compel. I'

14 want some documents, and I believe the case for the
/)

|15 attorney / client privilege falling in this setting has been

16 made by the remarks made today as to the authority to bind, !

!
17 and the Board will read it and judge it on that basis.

18 JUDGE SMITH: We will have to.

19 MR. DIGNAN: As I have said to t'ne Board, the

20 motion, you should understand, was drafted on the assumption

21 that Mr. Traficonte was going to stick to the positions he 1

|
22 had taken on the telephone call. And to that extent, there |

23 are a couple of lines in here that are no longer operative

24 in light of what the assistant attorney general has said.

25 However, what he has said, to me is the critical

O rit 9- a vorei=9 career tio=
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1 thing, and this I don't have to rewrite to say, is when he

O 2 tells me I canriot bind certain individuals, then I say his

3 attorney / client privilege goes especially, and this is where

4 I want the Board to take the time to review the documents,

5 especially when the documents are passing not between the ;

i

6 A3torney General and the Governor or some other official who
'

7 he is stepping up here to say he's representing, but among

8 people in the executive branch of government.

9 To me, those documents are no different than a

10 memorandum that you would pass between the chief executive

11 officer of the New Hampshire Yankee Company and one of his

12 vice presidents. And if I came in and tried to assert a

13 privilege on one of those documents, I would be laughed out ;

14 of the hearing room. And the only reason they are trying to

15 assert one, is because they are putting on this aura of the-
,

16 Attorney General represents everybody and therefore what

17 everybody talks to everybody about anything, there's a

18 privilege to it. That's nonsense.

19 J DGE SMITH: Mr. Dignan, maybe you have covered

20 this in here, and if you have, tell me; we'll cut it short

21 and I'll read it. But every large organization, every large

22 national or international corporation may have going at any

23 one time many lawsuits, many law firms they pick for

24 different purposes.

25 MR. DIGNAN: Absolutely,

i

lh Heritage Reporting Corporation
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O
. And the' law firm they pick to bring1 JUDGE SMITH:

2 an action or defend an action within a particular statute,

3 within a particular court, within a particular jurisdiction

4 cannot bind that corporation to aspects of that lawsuit

5 which go beyond that cause of action and that jurisdiction.

6 MR. DIGNAN: I concur.
4

7 JUDGE SMITH: You probably would not be able to

8 bind your Applicants on rate matters before us, because we
1

9 simply don't have jurisdiction, and you weren't hired for
'

10 that purpose. That is how I think we are going to have to

11 view this. I don't know. That is the approach that I will

12 be taking as I review this.

13 MR. DIGNAN: I fully understand that,.Your Honor. W

14 But keep in mind that this is my point. I'll take that as

15 the rule. ]
1

16 On what basis do you call privilege a memorandum. I

17 from Mr. Boulay to Mr. Hausner, from Mr. Barry to Mr.
'

18 Boulay? Neither one of them is a lawyer.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that could have been raised

20 six months ago. ;

|

21 MR. DIGNAN: Well, it was. They said

22 attorney / client privilege and didn't produce them. And the

23 theory of the attorney / client privilege, as I understood it

24 when it was raised, was the basis that the -- first of all,

25 these documents were gone after late. I mean this was the

O rie=9- gereime career eien '
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1 late part of discovery. The Attorney General represented ,

- () 2 everybody and this was one big common defense effort is what.
'

'3 essentially the asserticn.was.

4 Now that's okay by me, but you are going to have

5 to do better on who you are representing'to put forth an

6 attorney / client privilege upon it.

7 JUDGE SMITH: I would just have to read it. Some

8 place I am missing. I am missing a vital link to the logic
i

'

9 of it.

10 MR. DIGNAN: You understand,.Your'. Honor, they have

11 admitted the relevancy of the documents.

12 JUDGE SMITH: Okay.<

13 MR. DIGNAN: As we point out in the motion, there

r) is no question about relevancy here. The' question is, is14
'

15 this -- and as I said, having made the motion I do not want
|c

16 or attempt to ask you to decide this without hearing from

17 Mr. Traficonte and in writing. He's got a problem here. i

18 JUDGE SMITH: Okay. Do you have other motions?

19 MR. TRAFICONTE: I do, and not so much a motion as
'

20 an inquiry. The first is very brief.

21 During the New Hampshire hearings, the Board made

22 available to the Interveners collectively the next day a

23 copy of tho transcript. I would like to request on behalf

24 of the Intervonors that we be given that same opportunity

25 the following day to see the transcript. We are going to

O aerie se neeorei=9 correlation
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1 request it, but we don't intend, at least at this point,

2 requesting next day.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Would you begin again?

4 MR. TRAFICONTE: Sure. During the New Hampshire
,

5 hearings, the Board made available to the Interveners --

6 JUDGE SMITH: No, no, no,. no, that's against the
,

7 law. We didn't do that.

8 MR. TRAFICONTE: You don't. All right.

9 JUDGE SMITH: What we did was we made one of the

10 Board copies available for the general public, to press,

11 whoever came into the hearing room.

12 MR. TRAFICONTE: I see.

13 JUDGE SMITH: The Interveners were not excluded

ggg 14 from looking at it by virtue of their status as Interveners.

15 But we are not authorized to provide any type of assistance

16 to the --

17 MR. TRAFICONTE: I see.

18 JUDGE SMITH: Now, I am glad you reminded us, you

19 know, that there is a problem here, because we do want to

20 have a quid pro quo with the Attorney General for

21 accommodating us beyond the requirements of the rules, the

22 literal language of the rules and giving us electronic form i

23 and things like that. I think a good working relationship
1

24 can be worked out. And I do want to accommodate, we do want

25 to accommodate the public. That is one of our

$h Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 responsibilities to have a public hearing, and we do want to

O
2 accommodate them by making as much as possible the

3 transcripts of the hearing generally available.

4 Does that satisfy your concerns?

5 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's fine, Your Honor.

6 The last point is just an inquiry as to what I now j

i

7 .think of as the satellite sanctions litigation that seems to !

I

8 be going on simultaneously with the other litigation. As j
i

9 you know, there was a sanctions motion, there was a response

10 on our part. There is recently, I believe I received it in j

11 my office yesterday, a response by Applicants to our cross- |

12 motion with accompanying affidavits.

13 Quite honestly, I don't know how the other side {

14 feels, but in the normal course in a situation like this we(])
15 would request an opportunity to file a response essentially

16 to the new affidavits that have come in that put at issue

'

17 quite clearly matters of fact. And I would like to request

18 that opportunity, frankly half-heartedly, because unless the
|

19 Board is interested in this in great detail, I think the I

20 pleadings, and please don't mistake my comments to mean that

21 I believe the last word has been spoken on these matters; I

22 obviously d'on't think that's the case. But if the Board is

23 interested in the inquiry, we would want the opportunity to

24 file further affidavits and a further response to the new

25 material that we just received yesterday.

O aeritase megerein , corgermeien
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1 I am basically, frankly, prepared to be guided by
9

2 the Board's own level of interest in the whole matter.

3 JUDGE SMITH: It's not so much interest as that's

4 what we get paid to do is rule on these things. And we were

5 prepared to deny the motion and the cross-motion before the

6 new filings came in. But the Board has not had an

7 opportunity to look at the new -- well, I have read them,

8 but the Board has not consulted, conferred among themselves.

9 Let's read them and see if we want more information.

10 MR. TRAFICONTE: That would be my position.

11 JUDGE SMITH: I understand you have for the first

12 time been confronted with a specific factual foundation for

13 the motion, and we are sensitive to that fact.

ggg 14 MR. TRAFICONTE: That would be my only point.

15 That we now have the affidavits, and we would re-examine

16 them. I only read them myself fairly quickly, but I read

17 enough to know that we would want to go back and check some

18 facts and look back and read them more carefully. And I

19 would just want the opportunity, if the Board wanted to have

20 another go around on this matter, I would just like to

21 preserve our opportunity to do so.

22 JUDGE SMITH: I don't know how we could decide it

23 without another go around when the factual underlyings of
24 the motion have just now been made available.

25 Now there is another motion which we haven't had a

|hk Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 chance -- well, you haven't addressed yet, and that's the
O

2 motion that you have abandoned or --

3 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes.

4 JUDGE SMITH: Can you work that out, or do you

5 wish to have a formal response to that?

6 MR. TRAFICONTE: I don't necessarily need a

7 written response, but I mean I think we might be able to

8 just have my side come in on argument, but not now.

9 JUDGE SMITH: But better yet, can you work it out?

10 MR. TRAFICONTE: We might be even able to work out

11 portions of it.

12 JUDGE SMITH: Well, let's see --

13 MR. TRAFICONTE: All right.

ggg 14 JUDGE SMITH: -- what survives then for us to rule

15 on.

16 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's fine.

17 JUDGE SMITH: After you have made that effort.

18 MR. TRAFICONTE: That's fine.

19 That's all I had in a preliminary way, Your Honor.

20 JUDGE SMITH: All right, then, Mr. Dignan, we will

21 continue until about 12:30, until you wind up your

22 preliminary matters, and then we will break for lunch.

23 MR. DIGNAN: At this time, Your Honor, I would

24 offer into evidence, and we will make available three copies

25 to the reporter, and my understanding is the reporter wishes

||h Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 one made available here and.two shipped down to Washington.
f

..

2 We will also be making available a copy to Judge Cole here; i

!

3 and to Judge McCollom, I understand, we will ship his to his !
-|

4 home, the Seabrook plan for Massachusetts communities. And |

5 that would be, I think, appropriately identified and

6 admitted as Applicants' Exhibit 42.

7 (The document referred to was
i

8 marked for identification as I

9 Applicants' Exhibit No. 42.)
i

10 I
i

11

12

13

14 i(}
15 1

16

17

18

19

20

21
.

22

23

24

25
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1 JUDGE SMITH: What is Applicants 42?

!

2 MR. DIGNAN: This would be the Seabrook Plan for

3 Massachusetts Community, the utility plan for Massachu'setts. j
,

|

4 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Traficonte? |

5 MR. DIGNAN: I should, by the way, I guess further
,

6 describe, Your Honor, it was through. amendment 6 which is

7 the last amendment.
1

'

8 MR. TRAFICONTE: The exhibit is limited to the

9 SPMC -- to the utility plan itself at this point.

10 MR. DIGNAN: It's the SPMC at this time. |

11 MR. TRAFICONTE: I have no objection to that, Your

12 Honor. i

13 JUDGE SMITH: All right, Applicants 42 is

(} 14 received.

15 Well, any other_ comments?
i

16 (No response)

17 JUDGE SMITH: Received.

! 18 (The document referred to I
|

19 having been previously )

20 marked for identification

21 as Applicants Exhibit 42

22 was received in evidence.)
23 MR. DIGNAN: You understand it's the plan plus the

24 appendices to the procedures and it is what we call the i

25 plan?

O aeritao. R.,oreio , corger eio-
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1 .MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes.

O
2 MR. DIGNAN: Fine. I just want to be sure there

3 is no confusion.

4 Now, Your Honor, at this time I would ask that ]
|

| 5 there be -- and again spiritually because they will be given ]
I

6 to the Reporter later -- marked for identification and

7 received into evidence a series of exhibits all of which I ,

)
8 will denote as Applicants Exhibit 43. ]

9 Exhibit 43 (a) being a letter of three pages from

10 Grant C. Peterson, Associate Director, State and Local |

11 Programs in support of the Federal Emergency Management

12 Agency to Mr. Victor J. Stello, Executive Director for

13 Operations, Nuclear Regulatory Commission.- And 'that would |

14 be dated December 14, 1988.
/}

15 (The document referred

16 to was marked for

| 17 identification as

18 Applicants Exhibit 43 (a) . )

19 MR. DIGNAN: As Exhibit 43 (b) a document of some

20 66 pages and it has been globally so numbered, Your Honor,

21 which will be Applicants Exhibit 43 (b) being the findings

22 and determinations for the Seabrook Nuclear Power Station by

! 23 the Federal Emergency Management Agency mnd dated December I
1

24 of 1588.

25

!

O orita,. R goreio, Co ,oratio-
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1 (The document referred

2 to was marked for

3 identification as
,

~ g'} k? 4
<

Applicants Exhibit 43 (b) . )

5 JUDGE SMIIH: Let me see that? What happened to

|
6 the one entitled " Evaluation?" !

7 MR. DIGNAN: We're getting there.

8 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, all right. -|

|
'

9 MR. DIGNAN: There's a series of the FEMA reports

10 that underlay the basic overall' finding and we're offering

11 them all.

12 Applicants' Exhibit 43 (c) is a document of 180

13 pages, so globally renumbered, being the review and,

(]) 14 evaluation of the Seabrook~ plan for Massachusetts '

15 communities by the Federal Emergency Management Agency,

16 dated December 1988.

17 (The document referred

18 to.was marked for

19 identification as

20 Applicants Exhibit 43 (c) .)

21 MR. TRAFICONTE: I just have to plead ignorance,

22 when he says globally renumbered.

23 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that's something -- ,

24 MR. DIGNAN: I don't know whether we want.to go

25 off the record for this or not. The Board had indicated

O .ritage - ,c r e a , c c - r a e i -
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1

. 1 in --

2 JUDGE SMITH: Let's leave it on the record.

3 MR. DIGNAN: -- there was a desire that the

)4 exhibits be renumbered globally when it had attachments and

5 all that sort of things in order to facilitate citation.

6 MR. TRAFICONTE: So you're giving us the page

7 lengths of these various documents but the numbers go from
|

8 one on through.

9 MR. DIGNAN: The last page of this document in the
i

10 printed form was paginated B-23, being the 23rd page of |
.

4

11 exhibit D of the document. We have renumbered them in the

12 right hand corner of the copies we will be giving everybody.

13 And our numbering says on there page 180 of 180. So I'm

(]) 14 just giving the global number.

15 JUDGE SMITH: Yes. That was at our request

16 earlier because we had such a difficult time understanding

17 what documents were being alluded to. But this is the time

18 where I just wonder if that -- I understand you comply with

19 our request to do it that way, but how are we going to refer

20 to them in cross-examination, globally; is that the way?

21 MR. DIGNAN: We did it and we're willing to adopt

22 any convention anybody wants. I think it will probably --

23 what my guess is, I always prefer to cite with the kind of

24 precision that would say Applicants Exhibit 43 (c), let us
1

25 say, appendix two, page B-2 with the original pagination. I

O emita,e ortin, cor , oration |
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Both ways.
O

2 MR. DIGNAN: But I think what this will

3 facilitate, Your Honor, is: (a) the description, so that

4 everybody knows it's 180 pages or whatever it is.

.

But the other thing is that it will facilitate5

| 6 when we are ell looking for a given page because then when a
|

7 witness is under cross a simple reference would be page 186.

8 So that's why we did it.t

|

| 9 JUDGE SMITH: Is this going to be bound as a
|

10 single document?

11 MR. DIGNAN: Each of these are single documents:

12 43 (a) ; 43 (b) ; 43 (c) ; 43 (d) are each single documents. And

13 we will serve them globally renumbered. We will have them

[]} 14 down here tomorrow. At lunchtime we will have them down.

15 We didn't know things would go as fast as they did and we

16 weren't going to bring them through the rain.

17 Applicants Exhibit 43 (d) which is 209 pages being

18 the review and evaluation of the State of New Hampshire

19 radiological Emergency Response Plan for Seabrook Station by

20 the Federal Emergency Management Agency, December of 1988.

21 (The document refer ~_ d

22 to was marked for

23 identification as

24 Applicants Exhibit 43 (d) . )

25 MR. DIGNAN: Applicants Exhibit 43 (e) le the

O seritage Re-runs c-mauon
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1 report entitled -- it's some 25 pages, a report entitled
O

2 Status of Corrective Actions for the 1988 FEMA Graded

3 Exercise for Seabrook Station by the Federal Emergency

4 Management Agency, December of 1988.
.-

5 (The document referred

6 to was marked for --

identification as

8 Applicants Exhibit 43 (e) . )

9 MR. DIGNAN: Finally, Applicants Exhibit 43 (f) is

10 the 428 page document entitled Exercise Report, Seabrook

11 Nuclear Power Station at Seabrook, New Hampshire, Licensee

12 Public Service Company of New Hampshire, date of exercise

13 June 28-29, 1988. Exercise of the Offsite Response Plan

(]) 14 Preparedness Prepared by the Federal Emergency Management

15 Agency, Region 1, Boston, Massachusetts and dated September

16 1, 1988.

17 (The document referred
18 to was marked for

19 identification as

20 Applicants Exhibit 43 (f) .)

21 MR. DIGNAN: And the Applicant offers at this time

22 Applicants Exhibits 43 (a) through 43 (f) into evidence.

23 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Traficonte?

24 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes. The Mass AG would object to

25 the admission of those portions of 43 (b) that contain or

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 reflect FEMA's review and evaluation of the utility plan for
O

2 Massachusetts.

3 We would object to 43 (c) .

4 We would object to 43 (d) .

5 We would object to those portions of 43 (e) that

6 concern FEMA's ongoing review of utility planning for

7 Massachusetts.

8 And we would object to those portions of 43 (f)

9 that contain FEMA's evaluation and conclusions as to the

10 performance of the utility personnel during the 1988

11 exercise.

12 Just so the record is clear, I don't think we need

13 to belabor it at this point, I earlier today made references

[]) 14 to the contentions we filed in September 1988 that raise the

15 issue -- the legal issue -- that we believe is present when

16 FEMA is acting to review utility plans.

17 I would just refer, so that the racord is clear,

18 we set our legal theory forth at Mass AG Exercise Contention

19 No. 6, pages 27 through 31 of our September 21, 1988 filing.

20 And in addition I would refer to page 32 of that

21 same filing, MAG Exercise Contention No. 7 Basis A.

22 I don't believe the Board wants me to restate

23 those views. I'm more than willing to do that.

24 JUDGE SMITH: No. I think we can cut it short.

25 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes.

O seriease a e rein, c - raeien
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1 JUDGE SMITH: You are just remaking those

2 arguments. There is nothing new to them.

3 MR. TRAFICONTE: No.
1

1 4 JUDGE SMITH: And it is all predicated upon your

5 view that FEMA may not -- there is no rebuttable presumption

6 in SR proceedings attended to FEMA's review of utility plan.

7 And we have already ruled that we don't agree with you.

8 MR. TRAFICONTE: Right.

9 JUDGE SMITH: And so the same ruling would apply.

10 Are there any other objections?

11 (No response)

12 JUDGE SMITH: So that objection is overruled.

13 (Pause)

(]) 14 JUDGE SMITH: However, we have not received the

15 exhibits because I didn't know if you had other objections.

16 MR. TRAFICONTE: Oh, I'm sorry. Those were our

17 objections. We otherwise don't have any problem with having

18 those received.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Are there any other objections?

20 (No response)

21 JUDGE SMITH; The 43 series of exhibits are

22 received.

23

24

25

O He ucase Regerun, Corgrauen
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1

1 (The documents referred to,-

2 having been previously
I

3 marked for identification as

4 Applicants Exhibits 43 (a),

5 43 (b) , 43 (c) , 43 (d) , _ 43 (e) ,
i

6 and 43 (f) were received
|

7 in evidence.)

8 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Dignan?

9 MR. DIGNAN: That was what I had at this time, -

10 Your Honor. I~believe the next order of business would be a

11 witness from the Towns.

12 JUDGE SMITH: All right.

13 MR. DIGNAN: Your Honor, in connection with that I

14 have distributed those motions in limine which I ~ filed this j(}
15 morning. One of those will run to the very first witness

|
l 16 who I understand will be Mr. Cronin.

1
t

| 17 The Board might wish to review that motion as it

18 applies to Chief Cronin. Basically what you will find is

19 the motion goes to specific points in the testimony and I

20 don't want to belabor it. I mean, the Board can read it.

21 We have laid it out and I really have nothing to add to the

22 written document. I

23 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Traficonte, on behalf of the j
24 Joint Interveners, will the witnesses be appearing in the

|
'

25 sequence that was offered -- that's what you-said, the

|

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 sequence should be as follows. Do you still plan to have

2 Cronin first, O'Connor, et cetera?

3 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, it's that way. Your Honor,

4 are you talking about a March 16th letter?

5 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.

6 MR. TRAFICONTE: I just want to make sure. Yes,

7 it is that way.

8 MR. TURK: Your Honor, I would like to ask Mr.

9 Traficonte to provide us a copy of that letter; wo have

10 never received it for the Staff.

11 JUDGE SMITH: He doesn't want you to know the

12 sequence in witnesses. Let's read the sequence now.

13 MR. TURK: Mass AG is providing us a copy.

() 14 JUDGE SMITH: Incidentally, Mr. Turk, the Board

15 did not receive your inner office mail on the history of the

16 Commonwealth's intervention in this proceeding until just

17 moments bsfore we left for this trip. About all we did was

18 flip through them and look at the nature of them and we

19 didn't receive it. There was a failure there some place.

20 MR. TURK: Your Honor, I handed it to someone and

21 I asked them to take it your office Friday afternoon. He

22 came back and told me he had done that. I don't know what

23 he did if he didn't.

24 JUDGE SMITH: Well, if you were to see my office

25 you might understand how that could happen. We got another

O Heritage Re-run, c--rauen
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)

1 copy delivered right at the last minute, I don't know how-

2 that happened either. )
!

3 MR. TURK: I'm very sorry, Your Honor.

4 JUDGE SMITH: It's very possible that it was

5 delivered to my office and I didn't see it. Notwithstanding |

6 the fact you didn't' receive Mr.'Traficonte's letter, do the

7 parties nevertheless know the sequence of the witnesses?

8 You seem to know it, Mr. Dignan.

9 MR. DIGNAN: Well, I'm going on the basis that --

10 we got the letter.

11 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, you have the letter.

12 MR. TRAFICONTE: Yes, I thought we faxed it.

13 MR. DIGNAN: Chief Cronin and then City Marshall

() 14 O'Connor.

| 15 JUDGE SMITH: I thought you didn't receive the |

16 letter. Mr. Turk did not receive the letter.

17 MR. DIGNAN: Oh, no, we received the letter. Oh,

| 18 yes. Oh, I'm sorry, if I left that confusion. No, we

19 received the letter.

20 JUDGE SMITH: So everybody knows the sequence.

21 MR. TRAFICONTE: Except Mr. Turk and I don't have

22 any explanation for that. Apparently, he doesn't -- we

23 faxed it but perhaps we faxed it again at a wrong number.

24 MR. TURK: Mr. Dignan informed me yesterday of the

25 sequence, Your Honor.

O erieae. Re-rei , C-rati-
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, you have it. All right.

2 MR. TURK: As of yesterday I do.

3 JUDGE SMITH: So let's adjourn until quarter to

4 2:00, that's an hour and 15 minutes.

5 (Whereupon, at 12:26 p.m. the hearing was recessed

6 to reconvene at 1:45 p.m. this same day, Tuesday, March 21,

7 1988.)

8

9

10

11

12

13

Q 14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1

1 AEIEEHQQH E&aRIQH

2 (1: 45 p.m. )

3 JUDGE SMITH: Is Chief Cronin ready to take the

4 stand? I

5 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor. On behalf of I

6 the Town of Amesbury my name is Barbara Saint Andre and I'm
I

| 7 ready to offer Chief Cronin as the first witness.
l '

8 JUDGE SMITH: Chief.'

9 Whereupon,

10 MICHAEL A. CRONIN
,

11 having been first duly sworn, was called as a witness

12 herein, and was examined and testified as follows:

13 JUDGE SMITH: Be seated please.

(]) 14 DIRECT EXAMINATION

15 BY MS. SAINT ANDRE:

16 Q Would you state your name?

17 A (Cronin) My name is Michael A. Cronin.

18 Q Where do you live?

19 A (Cronin) Amesbury, Mass.

20 Q And would you tell us what your occupation is?

21- A (Cronin) I'm the Chief of Police in and for the

22 Town of Amesbury.

23 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, if I could, we had

24 profiled the testimony of Chief Cronin and I noted that it

25 was in a single space format. I have reprinted it in a

0 emitas. errei, c - r eien
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1 double space format; I do have copies for the Board. I have
O1

2 given them to the parties previously.

3 MR. DIGNAN: Your Honor, is it the Board's

4 preference to rule on a motion in limine before the offer or

5 wait for the offer and treat it as an objection?

6 JUDGE SMITH: I think to wait for the offer and

7 treat it as an objection appeals to my sense of logic more.

8 (Discussion off the record.)

9 JUDGE SMITH: Back on the record.

10 Bf MS. SAINT ANDRE:

11 Q Chief, let me show you a document, it's entitled

12 " Town of Amesbury, Prefiled Testimony, Testimony of Police

13 Chief Michael A. Cronin," and it's dated February 21st,

[]} 14 1989. I just ask you if you recognize that document?

15 A (Cronin) Yes, I do.

16 Q Would you tell us, is that a copy of your prefiled

17 testimony in this hearing?

18 A (Cronin) Yes, it is.

14 Q Now have you had a chance to review this document

20 prior to coming here today?

21 A (Cronin) Yes, I have.

22 Q Would you tell us whether or not you have noted

23 any changes that you wish to be made in your testimony?
24 A (Cronin) No, I made no changes.

25 Q Do you swear that the testimony that's contained

O 8eritage Re-run, c - mauon
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1 in this document is true and correct to the best of your
O

2 knowledge and belief?

3 A (Cronin) Yes, it is.

4 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I would like to offer this as
|

5 the Town of Amesbury Exhibit No. 1.

6 MR. TROUT: At this time, Your Honor, Applicants

7 would like to object along the lines of motion in limine we

8 have already filed.

9 JUDGE SMITH: Just a moment. Let's go over the

10 procedure here. This testimony is bound into the transcript

11 as if it was read. As if it was orally delivered and it is

12 actually pulled and bound into the testimony, so it does not

13 have an exhibit number. It is just his testimony.

[]} 14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, then I offer this at this

15 time as the testimony of the Chief.

16 JUDGE SMITH: All right. And there is an

17 objcction.

18 And your objection is set out in the motion in

19 limine which was filed this morning. Have you had an

20 opportunity, Ms. Saint Andre?

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, I have, Your Honor. I

22 looked at it this morning and if I could, Your Honor, I went

23 through and I noted the pages that he is referring to in the

24 double space copy which I have just given you. Perhaps to

25 make things easier for the Court I could just give you the

O neritage Re-runo C-r uon
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1 revised pages so that you can follow the argument, if you

2 wish, or I can do it as we go through, however you want it.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I think, if you don't mind,
;

4 let's take enough time to constructively change the pages to

5 the current pages so that it will comport with the actual

6 testimony in the record. So when we talk about page three

7 before we are talking about another page now. Let's

8 identify it.

9 MS. SAINT ANDRE: That's correct.

10 JUDGE SMITH: We are now addressing which part?>

11 MS. SAINT ANDRE: If you look at the motion in
|

12 limine No. 1 which says: " Testimony concerning population,"

13 it says page three, it is now page four.

14 JUDGE SMITH: Page four.{}
15 MS. SAINT ANDRE: On No. 2 --

16 JUDGE SMITH: Well, okay, let's go through it.

17 MS. SAINT ANDRE: On No. 2 " Testimony concerning

18 driver behavior" A says page seven, .it is now page 10.

19 B which says page 11 is now page 18.

20 MR. TROUT: You said 18?

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: 18,

22 MR. TROUT: Thank you.

23 MS. SAINT ANDRE: No. 3, " Testimony concerning

24 hilly terrain" refers to page seven, it is now page 11.

25 No. 4, " Testimony concerning broken down vehicles"

O eritese aerereias correretie-
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1 it's now page 18.

2 JUDGE SMITH: Instead of?

3 MS. SAINT ANDRE: It doesn't give a page there,

4 Your Honor, but it's page 18.

5 No. 5, " Testimony concerning uniforms" A, page

6 seven is now page 12.

7 B, page 11 is now page 18,

8 And C, page 12 is now page 19.

9 And No. 6 is now page 21. It says page 13.

10 I would like to be heard on the motion if I could,

11 Your Honor.

12 JUDGE SMITH: Certainly. 1

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Regarding No. 1 the testimony

(]) 14 concerning the population, there's a reference to a joint

15 stipulation on contention No. 2. My understanding of that

16 stipulation was that it was between the Mass AG, the Town of

17 Amesbury, and the Applicant and in fact that stipulation was

18 not in fact entered into is my recollection of what

19 happened.

20 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, I would beg to differ.

21 There was and is a stipulation that has been signed and is

22 in effect. There is a question as to whether the Attorney
23 General of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts still attends
24 to abide by that stipulation, although there has been no

25 motion to that effect or pleading to that effect.

() Geritage Reporting Corporation
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1 But there certainly is on file with this Board and j'

2 has been for more than a month more than -- certainly since
1

3 prior to the filing of Chief Cronin's testimony the !

l

4 stipulation to which Amesbury was a party represented by f
1

5 Mess AG in which they withdrew this assertion as part of a i

|
6 larger contention.

7 JUDGE SMITH: But that is the stipulation that has

8 never received the approval of the two cognizant Boards. Is

I

9 that a different contention?

|10 MR. TROUT No, this is the ETE' stipulation, yes.

11 I understand that the status of that stipulation has been

12 the subject of some controversy. If we need to get into

13 that now I guess we should.

(]) 14 JUDGE SMITH: I'm surprised it's coming up. I

15 thought that it was well settled that bilateral stipulations

16 aren't acceptable, that it has to have Board approval.

17 MR. TROUT: Is that the Board's ruling with

18 regards to all five of the stipulations that have been
'

19 entered into in these proceedings?

| 20 JUDGE SMITH: I don't know. I don't know, I would

21 have to look at the other stipulations. I guess it's

22 possible to stipulate a simple withdraw over a contention

23 and assume Board approval. But a stipulation of February.

24 16th was far broader than that. There were elements I

25 believe that could have been stipulated with automatic

|.O mita,. Regerein, correraeien
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1 approval by the Board without further ado because they are
(

2 rather straightforward.
'

3 But the basic stipulation has been disavowed by ;

4 the Attorney General before it was approved. I might.say

5 that I don't think this was handled in as neat a way as I
!
'

6 would like to have seen it handled. It's sort of -- it's a

7 mess is what it is.

8 We pointed out to you that we didn't have ;

9 jurisdiction, that the stipulation wasn't severable for us

10 to approve part of it. I don't think you have a
1

11 stipulation. And I thought that was the understanding at

12 the end of our telephone conversation on that subject

13 matter, the one we had before last. The one on February 9th
4

(]} 14 I believe,

t

15 MR. TROUT: I'm not sure I understand what the !

16 Attorney General's position on the stipulation is, Your

17 Honor.
'

18 JUDGE SMITH: Wera you on that telephone

19 conference?

20 MR. TROUT: I was present, Your Honor,,yes.

21 JUDGE SMITH: Well, Mr. Fierce isn't here. I'm

22 surprised this is coming up right now and the participants

23 aren't here, don't seem to be here.

24 Ms. Doughty?

25 MR. BROCK: Your Honor, I don't know that this has

'

O Herieae. aegerei , correraelen
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1 to b'e -- I think that the Board is correct that we do not

O-
2 have a stipulation at this point with respect to ETE and I

3 think that is dispositive of the point raised in the motion

4 before the Board and I don't know that it has to be pursued
i

1

5 beyond that at this point. i

6 JUDGE SMITH: There is a broader problem and that

7 is, there is no current stipulation but the Board still

8 harbored some hopes that the stipulation could survive or be

9 revived. And apparently there has been no further

10 discussion or conversation. '

11
~

MR. DIGNAN: That's not so, Your Honor. What has

I 12 occurred is in line with what was said'in that conference I

13 redrafted that paragraph that was the sticking point to add
{

{]) 14 a couple of sentences to what I hope was to obviate the

15 Attorney General's problem. )
16 I sent it up there -- Jay, when was it sent up?

17 MR. TROUT: Friday morning.

18 MR. DIGNAN: Last Friday morning and I had been

19 advised that they are still looking at it. That is where it

20 sits.

21 MS. TALBOT: Your Honor, may I make'a suggestionj

1

22 that we put this issue off until Mr. Fierce'is here or Mr.

23 Traficonte who were party to the telephone cally

24 JUDGE SMITH:- Yes. If you're expecting Mr.

25 Fierce. Mr. Fierce clearly is the one who -- both Mr. '-

!O riea. erei, co m tion
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!

1/ Traficonte and Mr. Fierce were involved in it and I wouldn't |#

)
2 hold you to it right now.

1

3 Can we skip over this matter?
,

.

4 MR. TROUT: Absolutely, Your Honor. Why don't we
.

1

5 at this time just delete paragraph one of the motion and
'

6 Applicants would just ask to reserve the right to move to

7 strike the testimony at a later time if and when the status

8 of the stipulation is clarified.

9 JUDGE SMITH: Do you wish to skip over it or

10 delete it? Do you want to return to it later, just let it ;

i

11 hang there?

12 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, we will delete it'in the I

13 motion.
l

14 JUDGE SMITH: Delete it. But you do want to{}
15 return to it?

16 MR. TROUT: If it turns out, Your Honorf.that we

17 do have a stipulation covering this issue then I most
I

18 certainly would like to reserve the Applicants the

19 opportunity to strike the testimony, because it then becomes -

|

20 irrelevant.

21 JUDGE SMITH: All right.

22 MR. TURK: Your Honor, may I also note that at

23 this point all of the other parties or at least the Staff

24 and the Applicants have proceeded on the understanding that

25 there is no issue as to ETE matters that needs to be

O a rit 9- a eortia9 corror eio-
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1 litigated.*

O
2 For instance, we have not filed testimony on

;;
|

| 3 contentions one through three nor has the Applicant. Nor in i

4 fact has Mass AG. So in the present posture of the case -

|
l 5 some of ths Towns will have testimony on these issues

t

6 despite the fact that the stipulation had contemplated that

7 the Towns would be bound by Mass AG's signature on the ETE

8 stipulation.

9 So it may be that at some later point we have a

10 record where the Towns had been permitted to file testimony

11 on the issue but the other parties have not filed testimony.

12 I don't know where that's going to leave us down the line

13 but I can perceive that we may need to supplement the

14 record.
{)

15 JUDGE SMITH: But the Attornsy General has been

16 given to file the testimony late.

17 MR. TURK: On evaluation time issues?

18 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.

19 Everything has assumed that the stipulation has )
, ,

'

20 failed up to this time and there is ne stipulation that I'm !

21 aware of.

22 I suggest and it may be premature for this
i

23 suggestion but we don't want to bring Chief Cronin back. 1

24 Well, I think you should proceed as if the stipulation will

25 not be revived. Take advantage of your cross-examination --

O- rie 9- eoreia, corror tio-
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|

1 the opportunity to cross-examine Chief Cronin. If the !

O 1
2 stipulation should be revived or there's another j

I
3 interpretation put on it, then you can always move after the 1

!

4 fact to strike the testimony as irrelevant und you may not

i
5 even have to because counsel probably will accommodate you

.:

6 if the stipulation takes it out. !
!

7 So for that reason let's keep your cross- q
i

8 examination of Chief Cronin very discreet so that it will be 1

9 very easily identifiable what is involved. Do you
F

10 understand that?

11 MR. TROUT Yes, Your Honor.

12 JUDGE SMITH: Is that satisfactory?

13 MR. TROUT: That's perfectly satisfactory.

14 JUDGE SMITH: Number two, Ms. Saint Andre? |
| 15 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor. This is with

i
16 regard to testimony concerning driver behavior allegedly.

17 The first item they wish to strike is on page 10. And the |

18 first sentence says: "The splitting of westbound traffic on

19 Route 110, sanding one lane south on Route 95 and the other

20 west to either turn on Route 110 to head east on Route 110

21 and then south on Route 95 or continue west on 110 until

22 reaching that 495 south is an ill-conceived and holding

23 impractical plan."

24 I would suggest that there is nothing in that

25 sentence that deals, first of all, with driver behavior. It

O a ritas- earei-9 career tioa
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1 simply says that it's an ill-conceived and holding

O
2 impractical plan. So I would suggest that as far as that

3 sentence goes there is certainly no grounds to strike, even

4 if you assumed that their argument'is correct.

5 The next sentence that they wish to strike --

6 JUDGE SMITH: Wait a minute, let me catch up with

7 you.
'

8 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I'm sorry.

9 MR. TURK: May we go off the record for a moment,

10 Your Honor?

11 JUDGE SMITH: All right, just give me a moment and

12 then we will do that.

13 (Judge Smith reviewing document.)

(:) 24

15

16
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20
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Off the record, bet. Turk?
~ i

2 MR. TURK: Yes, Your Honor.

3 (Discussion off the record)
4 JUDGE SMITH: Back on the record.

! 5 While we were off the record, dialogue between Ms.

6 Saint Andre and the Board was that we characterize her
'

7 response to the objection that since this is not a human

8 behavior in radiological emergency issues, it is a normal

9 human response to a normal ambiguous traffic situation.
'

10 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor. _

11 JUDGE SMITH: It could happen-just as easily to'a
<

12 family leaving a football game dn a crowd, for example, as

13 any other situation.

14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Exactly, Your Honor. As I said,

O
15 the only mention of any human behavior is the fact that if

'

16 families are traveling in two cars, they would tend to stay t

!

17 together, and I don't think that that's the type of behavior )
|

18 issue that was litigated in the New Hampshire proceeding.

19 (The Board confers. )
i

20 JUDGE SMITH: Objection overruled for the reasons

21 argued by Ma. Saint Andre.

22 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, the next objection

23 is page 18, and it's Question No. 30. And I believe, Your
4

24 Honor, that the motion to strike is directed at the second

25 sentence which begins with the phrase, "As mentioned

O Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 ~ earlier, in indicates that the TCPs. failed to account for-

"D 2 things such as_ obstructions, traffic volume, breakdowns,; 3

J

3 panic, speed of approaching vehicles, et_ cetera."
,

4 I would suggest again the only issue as far as

5 human behavior that's mentioned there is that one word

6 " panic".i

|

7 JUDGE SMITH: Do you agree that their objection is |

8 well made on that one?

9 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I would agree that their
i

10 objection is directed toward that word, and that I would

'

11 agree that was an issue that was litigated. I obviously

12 would still press the' testimony in order to save my rights,

13 Your Honor.

14 MR. TROUT: . Well, Your Honor, I am not sure how

15 deleting parts of sentences and leaving the rest.of the

16 sentence standing, it's difficult to judge now whether

17 taking out part of the basis for a witness's statement would

18 change the witness's statement. Our approach to this and a

.19 few other sentences like it was that when there was

20 something obviously wrong in the sentence, we would just try
'

21 to take out the whole sentence.

22 Obviously, if the Board feels that it can parse

23 the sentence, the Applicants will defer.

24 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, I would suggest that

25 that certainly can be asked of the witness on

Q Beritage Reporting Corporation
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1 cross-examination, but it's no reason to strike the entire

2 sentence.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Is it just the one sentence that is
,

4 involved?

5 MS. SAINT ANDRE: At this particular point, yea,

6 Your Honor.

7 MR. TROUT: And I'm not sure, Your Honor, that Ms.

8 Saint Andre is correct in characterizing just the word

9 " panic" as being the human behavior portion of the sentence.

10 I think also the whole reference to cut-throughs raises a

11 human behavior issue use of cut-throughs to evade the

12 traffic management plan.
:

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, again, Your Honor, I don't

14 believe that that's the type of human behavior that the

15 Court's order was directed toward. In addition to that,

16 Your Honor, it goes obviously to the accuracy and

17 completeness of the diagrams; the fact that they failed to

18 acknowledge where these cut-throughs exist.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I think some of them are

20 clearly physical features of the TCPs, and some do have

21 human behavior aspects, and some also have other aspects
22 that we addressed and already decided. For example, speed

23 of approaching vehicles, the frictional issue. I think that

24 the frictional issue was decided, panic was decided. I

25 don' t see any of the others having be en decided, and I don't

] Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 understand your argument, which seems to be that if we were

2 to remove those aspects that were already decided, the whole
1

1 3 sentence fails. It seems to me that the sentence would

4 survive as logic would survive.

5 Unless I am missing somethingr unless obstructions

6 means -- I understand obstructions now, the chief will

7 testify that obstructions mean obstructions that are now to

8 be seen; not obstructions caused by panic and by refusal to,

9 you know, disbandment of disabled cars and refusal of people

10 to push a car aside, which type of issues we already

11 decided. But I understand this sentence now, Chief, is this

12 correct, you are describing what exists right now,

13 obstructions which already exist?

14 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Yes.

15 JUDGE SMITH: All right. Traffic volume, we know

16 what that means. Breakdown, I don't know what the context

17 of that is. Again, we have already litigated that the

18 population will not sit idly by and allow a car broke down

19 in front of it to bring an evacuation to a dead halt. But I

20 am making these arguments. You are not making these

21 arguments. I don't feel comfortable doing this.

22. MR. TROUT: Well, Your Honor, this particular

23 sentence that we are discussing we object to in three

24 different points in this motion in limine for three

2.5 different reasons. If you will look to No. 4, Item No. 4 on

Q Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 the bottom of page 3 of the motion,.the'whole question of

2 breakdowns is raised, because.the' Board-has ruled that

3 breakdowns is not going to be an issue in this litigation.

4 We litigated it in New Hampshire.

5 Then you turn to --

6 JUDGE SMITH: How did'you happen to come back to

7. breakdowns? I have not followed the logic of your motion,

8 which is understandable because I haven't read it. I am

9 reading it for the first time right now. .,

'
10 MR. TROUT: The logic to the motion,- to the extent

'll' there is any, Your Honor, was to' divide the objections.by

12 the topic of the objection.

13 JUDGE SMITH: All right.
,

14 MR. TROUT: Instead of going through line by line

15 and objecting to each one, we took all the places where we

16 thought the Chief was talking about human behavior, we

17 objected to all of them as a group. We took all the places

18 where we thought the Chief was talking about whether it

19 makes a difference to have the traffic guide in a uniform or '

20 not, we treated them as a group. We thought it would be .;

21 easier for the Board to rule on the group of issues as a

22 group. It wan just a mechanical decision in formulating

23 this motion and the other motions that were filed.

24 JUDGE SMITH: All~right, going back to --

25 MR. TROUT: I apologize if it's --

O Heritage Reporting Corporation
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- Going back to 2 (b), which talks1 JUDGE SMITH:

( about the second sentence in response to Questi'on 18, which2

) 3 .begine -- Question 30, which begins, "As mentioned earlier",

4 do you agree with that?<

5 MR. TROUT: Yes. -)
6 JUDGE SMITH: . Mould you identify the language

7 there to which your objection to 2 (b) pertains? j
|

8 MR. TROUT: With the new explanation of i

I
9 obstruction, oh, just 2 (b) ?

10 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.-

11 MR. TROUT: With the new explanations of

12 obstructions, I gather it's not obstructions. But it would

13 be panic, speed of approaching vehicles, and nearby conflict
i

14 points, which is conflict points, parking. lots, blind

15 corners, cut-throughs. It's basically everything except )

I
'16 obstructions, traffic, volume and breakdown which we deal

17 with later on. 2

18 JUDGE SMITH: How do the existence of parking
"

19 lots, blind cor,em.* and cut-throughs pertain to drive

20 behavior?

21 MR. TROUT: My understanding of the theory of the

22 testimony, Your Honor, is that the witness intends to argue,

23 or believes he has argued that people are going to use

24 Dunkin' Donut parking lots to evade traffic control.

25 JUDGE SMITH: Okay. Now maybe it would be better

* ,

Q Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 if we deferred your motions until cross-examination and we

O )
'

2 knew exactly what he meant by it.

3 MR. TROUT: All right.
,

4 JUDGE SMITH: We already -- well,-we haven't

5 reached breakdown because that seems to tus covered in a

6 different part of your objection.

7 NW. SAINT ANDRE: .Your Honor, I have no objection

8 to taking that up at this point if it's easier for the --

9 JUDGE SMITH: But the thing is we are speculating

10 about what the Chief intended by some )f this testimony

11 needlessly, because the Chief is here to tell us what he
1

12 meant by the testimony on cross-examination.

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Exactly. And part of my

14 argument is going to be, again, that it's more proper for

15 cross-examination rather than a motion in limine.

16 JUDGE SMITH: Well, let's start fresh. We will

17 preserve the ruling we made on objection 2 (a), overruled.

18 We already pretty well know what we'are. going to rule on

19 2 (bl with respect to panic and speed of approaching

20 vehicles. As a matter of fact, let's rule on those. And

21 then from that you have got to start fresh and make your

22 case again on cross-examination.

23 MR. TROUT: Very well, Your Honor.

24 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, and then we will take it up,

25 as you cross-examine. We will look at the particular item

O Heritage Reporting Corporation
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'

1 of testimony. You can establish,y if necessary, .what is'
.

2 meant by it, and we will rule. Rule to strike rather than:

3 fail to admit.

,4 All right, with that understanding, we~ will ' accept '

5 the testimony. And then at the end when it's'all.done, it

6 'will be the responsibility of you and NW. Saint Andre'to

7 conform the written. testimony, which goes into:the

8 transcript, to our rulings.

9 MR. DIGNAN: Are we not going to address the

10 balance of the motion then at this time?

11 The reason I say that, Your Honor, ' for exaraple,

12 No. 5, testimony concerning uniforms. We think'that.one is

13 pretty clear. You made a ruling on that-already.in a

14 memorandum of order.
O-

15 JUDGE SMITH: Well, it may be, Ite. Dignan. It may

16 very well be if we went through and read your motion, we

17 could rule on a lot of it. But I am having difficulty

18 juggling, leaping back and forth in the motion to the

19 testimony and it is an organizational matter as far as I'm

20 concerned. 'I am having difficulty juggling all this

21 information at once. <

22 My observation was right from the very beginning

23 we had to ask the Chief what he meant by certain words in

24 there before we could rule, and I assume that that is a

25 problem that pervades the motion and the testimony. If I am

]-_ Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 wrong, then the ruling is wrong.

O 2 Do you think I'm wrong?

3 MR .. DIGNAN: Your Honor, the Court is never wrong.

4 If the Board prefers to go that way, fine. I mean I

5 unde.rstand the difficulty with the first ones. But I am

6 looking at No. 5, for example. He has testified that a

7 bunch of nonuniformed traffic guides, as he calls them, are

8 not going to be obeyed.

9 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, we didn't get that far, see.

10 MR. DIGNAN: Okay. That's my point. You had said

11 let's go ahead, admit the testimony. What's going to happen

12 is it will have to be cross-examined. Then, I don't know,

13 what do I do to it? .% argue about whether the cross-

14 examination somehow got it in and so forth. It seems to me

15 that one's a clean one. I mean --

16 JUDGE SMITH: Well, all right.

17 MR. DIGNAN: -- the Board has made it clear they

18 are not going to take that contention.

19 JUDGE SMITH: It's going to be one way or the '

20 other, and I don't think you are going to be prejudiced.

21 When we get done with the cross-examination, we will know,
22 because we will be marking on that testimony, what is in and
23 what is out. |

24 Now, you have a dual responsibility. You have to

25 conduct your cross-examination and keep your eye on your

g Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 motion. And when you think part of your motion is ripe for

O 2 ruling, move it.

3 MR. TROUT: Which is complicated even more by the

4 fact that --

5 MR. DIGNAN: Mr. Lewald is going to do the cross-

6 examination, Your Honor, just to interject a little further

7 confusion into it. We understand the ruling.

8 JUDGE SMITH: Now, wait, we have got to get Ms.

9 Selleck and Mr. Smith into this argument.

10 (Laughter.)

11 MR. DIGNAN: No, no. No, the organization is

12 really very simple. Mr. Trout is the keeper of the motions

13 in limine, did the drafting and the work and was arguing

14 them. But the cross-examination is -- he will have some of

15 that, too, but some other people do. We are not trying to

16 confuse things.

17 JUDGE SMITH: Okay..

18 MR. DIGNAN: I guess we are. But Mr. Lewald is

19 duly warned to keep his eye on the motion while he cross-

20 examines.

21 (The Board confers.)
22 JUDGE SMITH: Judge Cole says I did something I

23 haven't done. I thought that clearly we've ruled on 2 (a) .

24 That one, the objection is overruled. I first said you can

25 anticipate our ruling on 2 (b) , panic and speed of

|g) Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 approaching vehicles. And I said, well, why anticipate,

O 2 let's do it.

3 JUDGE COLE: And then you didn't do it yet.

4 (Laughter.)

5 JUDGE SMITH: The objection is sustained with

6 respect to " panic" and " speed of approaching vehicles".

7 Is there any confusion about that?

8 MR. TROUT: No, Your Honor.

9 Is it Your Honor's pleasure that we then suspend

10 argument on the rest of the motion and go to the testimony,

11 and we will take up the motion at the conclusion of the

12 testimony?

13 JUDGE SMITH: Would you repeat that, please?

14 MR. TROUT: I'm sorry.

15 Is it Your Honor's pleasure that we then move to

16 the cross-examination and after the cross-examination we
17 will resolve the status of the motion?

18 JUDGE SMITH: If you encounter a matter in the

19 course of your cross-examination that you think relates to

20 the motion to strike or the motion to not admit, address it

21 there, with the advantage of the Chief's explanation.

22 To go back, my concern is your motion should have

23 been denied out right because we don't know what he is

24 talking about, and you are assuming what he's talking about.
25 These words do not speak for themselves, which may be a

||| Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 problem of the testimony. That's what cross-examination is

O 2 for.

3 In each instance I have had to ask him what he

4 means by it before we could rule on your motion. So now we

5 are getting two testimonies from the Chief. We are getting

6 the one that we need from the motion to strike, and the one

7 we are going to need in cross-examination.

8 I t'ish I hadn't got involved in this, and we just

9 would have taken it the way you started out. But proceed

10 with your cross-examination. And when you see when your

11 motion is ripe, you take over and make your motion.

12 MR. TROUT: Very well, Your Honor.

13 MR. LEWALD: The objection that I think follows

14 from your ruling to proceed in with cross-examination

15 without knowing what testimony you are cross-examining

16 causes great problems, because I.might be inquiring in a

17 matter that is going to be stricken, and I might be putting

18 it in evidence when it otherwise wouldn't be in evidence.
19 JUDGE SMITH: All right, let's take our afternoon

20 break, 15 minutes.

21 (Whereupon, a recess was taken.)

22 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, to review, we already

23 overruled the objection to 2 (a) . 2 (b) , we sustained it with

24 respect to the words " panic" and " speed of approaching
25 vehicles" in answer to Question No. 30 on page 18, and

|
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1 that's where we are.
.-

'

2 And we are ready now to hear arguments on the

3 hilly terrain question on Item 3-'of the motion in limine.

4 The disputed language appears on page 11 in response to
'

5 Question 23. ,

!

6 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Thank you, Your Honor.

7 This testimony is on page 11 of the testimony. -|

8 First, I would like to point out that there is'an. objection
'

!

9 tained that this was not contained in our responses to. j

10 discovery. It was in fact included in our second i

11 supplemental response to the Applicants' second set of

12 interrogatories, and it was on page 3 of that response. So )
.i

13 we did in fact include this in our discovery.

14 with regard to the merits of their motion in |

15 limine, they apparently are arguing that this particular

16 i; sue is outside the scope of the contention. However, this

I
17 Contention 4, as you know, Your Honor, goes'to the issue of 1

;

18 whether or not the traffic plan for the SPMC is in fact'
l

19 adequate. And I think that-the peculiar topography of ]

20 Amesbury, in terms of the very steep hills and the terrain,

21 which certainly has an effect upon any traffic in the town,

22 whether it's evacuating from the town or whether it's

23 regular traffic, is certainly an issue that is within the

I24 scope of that contention.

25 And I would suggest that for that reason it is

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 admissible, and I would ask that you overrule the objection.

O
2 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, if I might speak first to

3 the discovery argument.

4 JUDGE SMITH: ,Would you give me just a moment, Mr.

5 Trout? I want to get the contention. None of us brought

6 the contentions up to the table with us.

7 Ms. Williams, would you get the contentions? We

8 have several documents back there which contain all of the

9 SPMC contentions. Any one of them will be fine.

10 Go ahead with your argument while she is getting

11 that, Mr. Trout.

12 MR. TROUT: With regards to discovery, Your Honor,

13 it is true that in a document that was filed concurrently

14 with the testimony and received -- and since it was filed by

15 regular mail received by Applicants after the testimony, we

16 heard for the first time about hilly terrain.

17 In the discovery responses made in September,

18 October, November and December, and of course we didn't hear

19 from Newburyport in January at all. We never heard about

20 hilly terrain, nor did we hear about hilly terrain back in

21 April when the contentions were being filed. The first time

22 we hear about hilly terrain are in these two documents that

23 are filed on or around the 21st of February.
|

24 Now it may be, Your Honor, that the Town of |

25 Amesbury may wish to litigate the issue of whether it is

1
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1 different from all of the rest of the world because of the

O 2 peculiar topography of Amesbury. But I would respectfully

3 suggest that if they wanted to do so, they either should

4 have filed a contention to that effect back in April of

5 1988, or at least made a late filed contention. And I

6 think, I might add, if they had made a late filed

7 contention, you would have heard the Applicants argue that
i

8 they probably should have known that the terrain of Amesbury

9 was hilly long before February of 1989.

10 (Pause while Board reviews documents.)

11 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, they try to smuggle this

12 in as a criticism of the traffic control point diagrams.

13 And we asked in discovery questions about the alleged flaws )

14 with the traffic control point diagrams. We finally got an ],

15 answer in December.

16 The answer was there are such and auch and so and

17 so flaws with the traffic control diagrams.

18 We asked at the end of that series of questions,

19 are these all the problems that you allege? And.their

20 answer came back was, yes, these are all the problems that

21 we allege. That's their answer in December.

22 In February, when it's time to file Chief Cronin's

23 testimony, they suddenly discover that Amesbury is hilly.

24 JUDGE SMITH: Their argument is that it's more

25 than a late filed discovery answer. It is an after-the-
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1 fact amendment to your pleading of your issue, and I think

O 2 you should approach it that way in your argument.

3 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Very well, Your Honor.

4 Your Honor, obviously we did not discover in

5 February that Amesbury has hilly terrain. What happened

6 was, in reviewing, obviously for the prefiled testimony, we

7 went over, obviously, all of the various contentions, and we

8 felt that this issue as to the terrain was something that

9 was within the scope of Contention No. 4, which we had

'
10 neglected to put into our filed interrogatories.

11 I would suggest that when you look at the answers

12 to interrogatories that we filed, we did our best to be as

13 thorough as possible.

14 JUDGE SMITH: We won't be looking at them.

15 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Okay. Well, in any event, we

16 certainly did try to be as thorough as we could in filing

17 our interrogatory responses. We did file a supplemental

18 response when we realized that this had been overlooked. I

19 apologize that it did not reach them until the 21st, but

0 that was mainly because when I tried to deliver it by hand,

21 apparently they were in the process of moving their offices

22 so that they did not get it until the 21st.

23 JUDGE SMITH: Chief, is this a big problem, the

24 hilly terrain?

25 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) It's a big hill.

||| Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 JUDGE SMITH: I know, but is'it a big problem?

2 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Yes, it is actually.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Well, how does it happen that you

4 just didn't think about it earlier?

5 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Well, I used it to
:

6 describe a problem relative to one of the traffic control

7 points. For example, our downtown area contains one of the

8 hills that causes problems during winter storms, and we have

9 to reroute traffic and bring special equipment in just to 1

'

10 keep that particular street open. I was using it in that-

' 11 context.

| |
12 JUDGE SMITH: In the first place, I can't even R

13 find our original allegation. Where is your original. q

14 allegation, your original contention? What's it called now?g~g
V

15 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Oh, it's now JI No. 4.

16 JUDGE SMITH: Is that your original allegation, or 1
l

17 is that a joint allegation with your original allegation

18 incorporated as a basis?

19 MS. SAINT ANDRE: It is a joint allegation from a ;

20 number of towns, Your Honor.

21 JUDGE SMITH: All right. Now where is your town?

22 MS. SAINT ANDRE: If I may have one moment, Your

23 Honor.

24 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, 4 is one of the

25 contentions where the bases were revised, rewritten by the

|

O$
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1 Interveners during the consolidation process'and the old

2 bases were superceded. They no longer exist. And it was

3 the Board's ruling and the parties' stipulation that they

4 are no longer relevant.

5 I added, just for historical purposes, to the

6 motion the comment that there was nothing in the original

7 Amesbury contentions either talking about hilly terrain.

8 But the operative language, as far as the parties and the

9 Board are concerned, are the four corners of JI-4.

10 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I would for once agree, I think,

11 with the Applicants that because of the rewriting of the

12 contention, although at one point there were Town of

13 Amesbury contentions, those had all been rewritten at that

14 point into JI-4.

15 My argument is that this issue with regard to the

16 terrain is within the scope of JI-4, which is now the

17 contention that's before this Board.

18 (The Board confers.)
19 JUDGE SMITH: Well, when I was focusing on the i

20 lateness of including hilly terrain in response to your

21 interrogatory, my colleagues on the Board were focusing on
22 the contention itself. And they don't seem to be able to

23 find that hilly terrain is within the scope of the

24 contention to begin with. So I have been looking elsewhere

25 for it. Let me see. |
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1 The board sustaine that objection. So that first

2 sentence, "The TCPs do not eucounts for Amesbury hilly

3 terrain" will be stricken.

4 All righty the nu;g? one.

5 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, the objection went to

6 three sentences, that sentence and the two sentences which

7 explain it.

8 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.

9 All right, the sentence beginning on page 11, "The

10 TCPs also do not account for Amesbury hilly terrain", and.

11 the next two sentences, the last word being " vehicles", are

12 stricken.

13 Now we go back to broken down vehicles.

14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, the next objection

15 is found on page 18, Question No. 30. And I believe, Your

16 Honor, that the objection here is to the use of the word

17 " breakdowns", although it's somewhat unclear, in the

18 sentence that begins, "As mentioned earlier"; the second

19 sentence of the answer to Question No. 30.
'

20 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I am not able to comment on it

21 at this time because we do not have our Part 2 ruling.
22 Would you help us on that, Mr. Trout?

23 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, the passage in the Part 2

24 ruling is found at page 32. I believe Ms. Chan has a copy
25 of it for the board.
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l

1 (Documents proffered to the Board.)
-

f'T
\/ 2 MR. TROUT: If you turn to page 32, you will find ]

3 the following ruling by the Board. I believe this is on ,

4 Town of Newbury Contention 1. "Certain bases we reject

5 because they treat topics previously litigated for which we
|

| 6 are not given acceptable reasons as to why the previous

7 litigation is inadequate. There are three such topics: |

|

| 0 human behavior, amount of travel speed reduction'to

9 accommodate adverse weather, and stalled vehicles." !

l

10 So the Board threw stalled vehicles out at the J

'

11 contention admitting stage.

12 JUDGE SMITH: It seems that we did.

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor. I have j

I
14 reviewed the Board's ruling on the issue of the stalled li

' () ]
15 vehicles. Again, the only issue that I see here is the' 4

16 issue of the breakdowns which I would interpret as including i
i

17 things other than stalled vehicles. Other than that -- I

| 18 JUDGE SMITH: Well, how does the Chief interpret'
1

l 19 it?

|
20 What do you mean by that? Talking about --

21 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Mechanical breakdowns of

22 traffic control equipment, breakdowns of barriers that are
|

| 23 set up by the people that are manning them, breakdowns of

24 vehicles in the street, so it's more than just motor

25 vehicles.

|
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1 JUDGE SMITH: As I recall, the reason we would not

2 accept those bases with respect to stalled vehicles is that

3 the tenor was the entire evacuation will come to a halt

4 because somewhere in that traffic ctream is a stalled

5 vehicle, and the queue of evacuees will just obediently wait

6 behind that stalled vehicle until somebody comes along'and

7 pulls it away, which is never going to happen anyway. And

8 we rejected that as having already litigated it as a human

9 behavior issue in that a rational population does not fail

10 to evacuate because of a stalled vehicle.- A rational

11 population removes the stalled vehicle by whatever ad hoc

12 means that are available. That is what my memory of our

13 treatment of that basis was.

14 In the context of this, it would seem to me
O

15 breakdowns are including that idea.

16 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Does include vehicles,

17 yes.

18 JUDGE SMITH: Does include --

19 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) It's not limited to '

20 vehicles.

21 JUDGE SMITH: -- a traffic stoppage because there

22 is a vehicle that won't go any more and nobody does anything
23 about it. Is that what you have in mind by that?

24 Let me tell you, if that's what you have in mind,

25 they win. i

i
1
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1 (Laughter.)

2 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Well, I mention --

3 MR. DIGNAN: Don't give him a hint.

4 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) I mentioned in other

5 portions of this disabled motor vehicles. I mean I didn't

6 indicate in this particular paragraph disabled motor

7 vehicles. I specifically identi.fied that, I believe, in

8 other parts of my testimony.

9 So, no, I didn't just mean breakdowns to be

10 consistent with a disabled motor vehicle only. You may have

11 a traffic carrier, for example, set up that's disrupted or

12 broken.

13 JUDGE SMITH: With respect to the human behavior

14 issue that populations will allow a stalled vehicle or a
9

15 broken down vehicle to remain blocking the evacuation

16 stream, do nothing about it, to the extent that that

17 testimony refers to that, you prevail. And it has already

18 been litigated. He will explain on cross-examination or on

19 redirect examination what he does mean by that in addition

20 to the stricken portion.

21 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, are the words " break

22 downs" in or out or are we sort of waiting to see?

23 JUDGE SMITH: The words " break down" are in,

24 because the Chief has explained that his meaning there goes
25 beyond the issue that we rejected.
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1 MR. TROUT: Very well.

2 JUDGE SMITH: What it does mean is subject to your
1

3 cross-examination or subject to Ms. Saint Andre's redirect
l

4 examination.- j

I5 MR. TROUT: Very well.

6 JUDGE SMITH: But to the extent that the Chief

7 talks about so-called helpless evacuating population

8 stopping their evacuation because of a stalled vehicle, that
)

's"out. We have already litigated that.i9

10 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, the next issue is. i

11 found on page 12.

12

13 i

i

14

(a~\
15

16
|
I 17

18

19

20 j,

1 i

21 )
,

22 i

23

24

25
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1 MS.-SAINT ANDRE: The. question is actually on the

- ( I

2 preceding page, page 11. it's question No. 23. But the

3 objectionable language, according to'the' Applicants, I

4 believe is at the top of page 12 where it begins: " Traffic

| 5 guides are ill-equipped to clear disabled vehicles from the

6 roadways, secure alternative transportation, and aid, injured
|

| 7 persons and resolve conflicts."

8 And the basis of this objection as I understand it

9 is the fact that the Board has ruled that we cannot litigate

10 the issue of the need forJuniformed police officers as
"

i

I11 opposed to traffic guides.

12 Again, Your Honor, the Applicants are reading the

13 testimony much too narrowly. The issue here is whether a
|

14 traffic guide, a person who is not in direct communication !
[}

1
15 with emergency vehicles -- with the emergency personnel -- '

16 and I believe this is brought up in another part of the

17 testimony -- whether they will be able to secure whatever

18 assistance is needed, first of all, to clear the roadways,

19 to get alternative transportation, to get emergency aid for

20 injured persons or to resolve whatever confrontation arise

21 between the motorists.

22 It's not just an issue of whether or not'it's a

23 uniformed policeman. One of the other problems with the

24 traffic guides is they are not in direct communication with
1

25 other emergency personnel such as the police, ambulance |
i

O rie 2- gereia, career eio-
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1 providers or whatever. Andiss a result they are not in e,

2 good position to fulfill these functions, as other regular

3 emergency personnel would be. I

4 So it's not just a question of do they have'a

5 uniform on, Your Honor. It's really a question of, are they:

6 equipped to handle these types of situations?

I7 HMR. TROUT: Your Honor.
'

8 JUDGE SMITH: Is that your understanding of the

9 . testimony, Chief?
I

10 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Yes, it is. j

'
11 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Trout?

12 MR. TROUT: Well, Your Honor, if we are to

13 understand that portion of Chief Cronin's testimony to mean

[)
that the traffic guides regardless of who they are can't ;14

15 ca31 for the help that they need, then our objection was

16 ill-founded and we would withdraw it, if that is what the

17 testimony is meant to mean.

18 JUDGE SMITH: That shows some, not much, merit to

19 my point that we should have deferred this till cross-

20 examination but let's find out what he means. If it.doesn't
I

'

| 21 mean that maybe you can revisit your motion. But it seems |

22 to be that's what he means.

23 MS. SAINT ANDRE: The next objection, Your Honor,
i

24 we're back for the third time to page 18 and that same

25 sentence which begins at the bottom of page 18 as mentioned

O rie 9- 9erei=9 corror tio=
'
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) earlier.

O
2 I believe at this time what they're objecting to

3 is the language which is found actually on the top of page

4 19, Your Honor, where it talks about the fact that personnel

5 would widely recognize authority to enforce traffic

6 restrictions.

7 JUDGE SMITH: That does seem to be squarely within

8 the isnue that we did address in -- I think that was the

9 order following -- the memorandum of order following

' 10 prehearing conference, which I don't have before me either,

11 but I hope you will help me out. Have you looked at that

12 and do you think that we have addressed that? If you have I

13 would appreciate if you would just acknowledge that and let

14 us move on. If we haven't let's stick with it then.ggg
15 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Frankly, Your Honor, I thought I

16 had everything here that I needed but I don't have a copy of

17 that either. My recollection is that the Board's ruling was

18 on the issue of the uniformed versus the non-uniformed
19 personnel.

20 JUDGE SMITH: It was the uniform versus non-

21 uniform, but in addition to that the public perception. As

22 a matter of fact, the public perception of the difference

23 between the two was the essence of our ruling, as I recall.

24 Can somebody help me on that? Does anybody have it or shall

25 we all sit around and speculate?
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16195

1 MR. TROUT: I have the passage, Your Honor. It's

O
2 quoted in Applicants' compilation $fthecontentions, the

3 series of Boa.id rulings following JI 4. ;

4- MR. DIGNAN: It's on page two of the February 23rd-

5 version, if that's the one that Your Honor has before him.

6 JUDGE McCOLLOM: February 28th version?
~

7 MR. DIGNAN: February 23rd, Your Honor. It's the
i

8 February 23rd, 1989 and'it's entitled " Joint Intervenor JI

9 Contentions of the Seabrook Plant for Massachusetts

10 Community, SPMC in the June 1988 Graded Exercise."

11 (Pause to peruse document.)

12 JUDGE SMITH: My memory is 180 degrees wrong. We

13 did not rule that the issue of the comparable effectiveness

{) of uniform versus non-uniform traffic guides was14

15 inappropriate. But we ruled that the contentions did not

16 raise the issue.

17 MR. TROUT: Yes, Your Honor.

18 JUDGE SMITH: And that was your point.

19 MR. TROUT: That was my point that this is another

20 late filed contention.

21 JUDGE SMITH: In fact, this is coming back to me.

22 I'm the author of that paragraph and I spent a lot of time

23 reading those transcript pages there and if that was what

24 was intended he did a very poor job at it.

25 Do you have anything further to say?

O a rie 9- 9eres=9 core r tio=
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4

1 MS. SAINT ANDRE: No,' Your Honor.
O

2 JUDGE SMITH: All-right, objection sustained. |

3 MS. SAINT ANDRE: The next one, Your Honor, is on
.

4 page 19. Question No. 31, I believe it's the fourth
.

5 sentence.

6 JUDGE SMITH: Well, wait a minute. The question
|

7 is, what does that do? And our earlier ruling was that we

8 would expect counsel to conform the testimony to comport

9 with our -- to conform it with our rulings. Instead of us,

10 at this time which is very difficult for us to do, picking-

11 out the exact questions -- I mean, the exact sentence to be I
I

12 deleted, we will expect you and Ms. Saint Andre to do it for

13 us and you submit it for our approval.

{} 14 MR. TROUT: Yes, Your Honor.

15 JUDGE SMITH: How we are on the legal delegation
|

| 16 authority question?
1
|

|
17 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor, C which is

18 response to question 31, page 19. There's a sentence that

19 says: "They will also have difficulty in resolving any <

| 20 confrontations that may occur with drivers who disregard

21 their direction since they lack any police authority."

22 Your Honor, again, as I understand the Applicants',

|

23 objection here, their objection is the same as they had to
,

1

24 the previous testimony which is the fact that the issue of

25 the uniformed versus non-uniformed traffic guides.

1 r
'

f Heritage Reporting Corporationf

(202) 628-4888

1
_ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ .



. ..
- _ - _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - _

,

CRONIN - DIRECT 16197

1 Apparently their objection'is that that is not'within the-

-

V
2 scope of this contention, as I now understand the Board's

3 ruling.

4 JUDGE SMITH: Yes, that would be consistent with- -

5 our earlier ruling, so wh make the same ruling.

6 MS. SAINT ANDRE: And the last one, Your Honor, is J

7 found on page 21'and.it's questions 38 and 39 -- I'm sorry,

8 just 38 and 39.

9 JUDGE SMITH: 37 and 38.

10 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I'm sorry.

11 JUDGE' SMITH: Wait a minute. Let me see your

12 number?

13 MR. TROUT: I knew I was going to need someone to
i

14 doublecheck my counting.
[}

15 JUDGE SMITH:- I think it should be 38 and 39, but-

16 it's 37 and 38. I have here question 37: "Does Amesbury

17 have an established procedure for interacting with another

18 community?"

19 38 question: "Have you as Chief. c.f Police ever

20 assigned police functions to any person other than duly

21 trained or sworn police officer?"

22 And 39: "Would you describe the circumstances

23 under which this has occurrod?"

24 I would view those as being the delegation and not

25 the ones you named.

.O seritase eerei-, cor,or eio-
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16198

1 MR. TROUT: The 38 and 39 are the ones that we

2 intend, Your Honor.

3 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) So you miscounted.

4 MR. TROUT: Yes, we did.

5 MS. SAINT ANDRE: With regard to those, Your

6 Honor, again I believe that the testimony of the Chief is

7 not being read correctly. He is not being asked whether or

8 not he can delegate authority to civilians. He is being

9 asked whether he has done that in the past, number one. And

10 he is indicating that he has -- well, the first question,

11 Your Honor, he is asked: "Have you ever assigned police

12 functions to any person other than a duly trained and sworn

13 police officer." That's the first question.

gg) 14 And the answer to that is, yes. And the only

15 instance he has done that is in the instance of Auxiliary

16 Police. And he is indicating that the Auxiliary Police

17 Officers obviously are Amesbury Auxiliary Police Officers

18 and they have certain instructions from the Town; they have
|
1

19 certain training from the Town.
'

20 And the point is, Your Honor, if you go further
|

21 into the testimony the point of this is the fact that rather

22 than having somebody such as an Auxiliary Police Officer who

23 is at least familiar with the Town, is familiar to the

24 Chief. The issue here is whether or not traffic guides who
.

!

25 are known to the Police Chief, who do not know the Town of

i
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1 Amesbury, who have not received any instructions from the
9

2 Police Chief as to how to conduct themselves, whether or not

3 they in fact will be able to carry out the SPMC in an

4 adequate manner. And I believe there is other testimony in

5 here that draws on that issue.

6 So this is not testimony on the issue of whether

7 he can delegate authority to train civilians. This is

8 testimony as to the fact that in the past he has not done

9 that and the advantages to him to having somebody that he is

h 10 familiar with, that he is familiar with their training, that

11 they have knowledge of the Town as opposed to somebody who

12 comes in from some unknown point. So it's not a delegation

13 of authority question.

ggg 14 MR. TROUT: Your Honor, it sounds like what read

15 as a delegation of authority argument has been

16 * transmogrified into a uniformed police versus volunteer

17 traffic guides issue.

18 So in one case it would have been objectionable

19 because the Board has already ruled on delegation of

20 authority. But in the other case it falls outside of the

21 scope of the contention.

22 JUDGE SMITH: Well, as another matter, but you

23 fail on delegation of authority. It is not a legal -- the

24 Chief is not expressing an opinion that he may or may not
25 delegate such authorities. He is expressing an opinion that |

'

l

|h Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888

_ _ _ - _ _ _ _ .



_ _ - _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

>

CRONZN - DIRECT 16200

1 he does not as a practice and gives his reasons for it. So

2 on delegation of authority issues you lose.

3 Now you could have raised the issue orally at the

4 time that testimony is presented on relevance, if you wish,

5 and for that reason we will let you add to this motion in

6 limine an objection on relevance and we will hear your

7 arguments on that, if that's what you are doing.

8 MR. TROUT: Would you like us to do that now?

9 JUDGE SMITH: Well, might as well since we're

10 already into the language and a convenient placs to do it.

11 Although it's outside your motion in limine, it is an

12 appropriate motion nevertheless.

13 MR. TROUT: If I understand the purpose of the

ggg 14 testimony as it has boon explained by counsel it is that the

15 Chief would always use uniformed auxiliaries, Amesbury
16 auxiliaries as he has in the past. And that gets us right

17 back into the same problem we had earlier.

18 JUDGE SMITH: Which is?

19 MR. TROUT: Which .is that Interveners had the
20 opportunity when they filed contentions to raise that issue

21 and they didn't, and it's not being raised now in the form
,

1

22 of a late filed contention.

23 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, if I could be just

24 heard briefly.

25 JUDGE SMITH: How we're still talking about JI

|h Heritage Reporting Corporation
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*

..

1 contention 47- '

2 MS. SAINT. ANDRE: No, Your Honor, we are not. We

3 are talking now about JI contention 27'. I think the problem

4 here, Your Honor, is that the Applicants are trying to

5 pigeonhole the testimony into the Board's ruling. This is

6 'not a uniformed policeman versus a traffic guide issue
l

7 either. 1

8 The issue under JI,27 is the issue of coordination
i,

I

9 between the various response organizations. And the point
a

10 that's being made here is:that.other than Auxiliary Police I

11 Officers with whom the Chief is familiar, with whom he has

12 had training sessions, who had. instructions from him, other

13 than those people he has always used police officers from

(]) 14 the Town rather than people who are coming now from another

15 organization. He is not familiar with them. He is not

16 giving them instructions. And whether or not he can

17 effectively coordinate with those people. This is a JI 27.

18 JUDGE SMITH: The argument is, it's beyond the

19 scope of the contention so we want to go to the contention

20 and read it.

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: It's JI 27, Your Honor, I think

22 it's clearly within the scope.

23 MR. DIGNAN: Your Honor, I would point out to the

24 Board, JI 27 has been since its inception classified on the

25 communication notification. As I understand it, we are here

O erieae. everei , cergeratie-
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,--j 1 to discuss the traffic management plan issues'not

V
2 communication notification. If that's the argument --

3 JUDGE SMITH: That's the third reason for

4 objecting to the testimony.

( 5 MR. DIGNAN: No, it's not a third reason.

6 JUDGE SMITH: Let us catch up on the second

7 reason.

8 MR. DIGNAN: Well, the point is we have switched

9 contentions here and my only point is, we are here to try

10 traffic management and I thought this was traffic management

11 we were going to try here. Now if we're not, okay, we will

12 take it on that basis and take a look at 27. I must say I-

13 think it's outside of 27, too.

[]} 14 JU~.&l; SMITH: Are you overriding Mr. Trout here on

15 this?

16 MR. DIGNAN: No.

17 JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Trout, do you want Mr. Dignan to

18 interfere with your argument?
,

19 MR. DIGNAN: No he doesn't.

20 (Laughter)

21 MR. DIGNAN: It's easier if I say it for him.
;

22 JUDGE SMITH: Well, Mr. Dignan has raised a point,

23 we don't have JI 27 in our document. I think it's clear

24 that we haven't had a chance yet to set up our filed j
!

25 contentions.
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'

1 MR. DIGNAN: And the next point, Your Honor, as

2 has been pointed out to me is JI 27 is scheduled under the

3 stipulation, under what the Attorney General did with this

4 to be tried in the second phase of the case. It's not up

5 for filing at this point.

6 JUDGE SMITH: What do you say to that, Ms. Saint

7 Andre?

8 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, my understanding of-

9 that is that in fact JI 27 is one of the contentions that's

10 in the second group. My understanding of'that was I was not

i

11 precluded from filing testimony earlier than the scheduled

12 date and rather than filing these three paragraphs or four

|
13 paragraphs separately I elected to file all of my testimony

14 at once and I don't believe that's against the Board's{])
15 ruling.

16 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I guess it's not. You could

17 have filed your testimony, although I would have expected

18 you to have identified it as being the second phase. You

19 know you can file it early certainly. But I think it was

20 clear that we were going to litigate in two phases.

21 Now what are we going to do about it? Now that

| 22 that is done what are we going to do about it? What's the

23 solution? First let's find out, is it within the scope of

24 277 It seems to be, doesn't it?

25 What do you think, Mr. Trout, is it within the

.
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1 scope of 27?

2 MR. TROUT: I'in having the same difficulty Mr.

3 Dignan did, Your Honor, in finding where it would fit into

4 27.

5 MR. DIGNAN: Perhaps counsel for Amesbury could

6 enlighten us as to where it fits, into which basis?

? 7 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, again, Your Honor, as I

8 pointed out the issue here is again -- I mean, 27 is the

9 failure of the SPMC and I'm reading from the contention, not

10 the basis, the contention itself: "That the SPMC fails to

11 adequately establish and define the relationships between~

12 the ORO and other organizations which are expected and

13 relied upon to perform emergency response activities." j

!

(} 14 Now certainly the failure to adequately coordinate

! 15 with the Police Department in the Town of Amesbury falls

16 within the scope of JI 27.

17 MR. TROUT: But the testimony doesn't go to

18 coordination, Your Honor. The testimony goes to whether

19 they would use their Auxiliary Police as opposed to our

20 traffic guides.

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: No , the issue -- I believe, Your

22 Honor, that the testimony --

23 MR. TROUT: It's not a coordination isse.e at all;

| 24 it's a substitution here.
1

25 JUDGE SMITH: The language that you have alluded

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 to, which I'm reading right now from contention 27 is: "At

rO!

2 the organizational. level" - this is a quote - "At the-

3 organizational level the SPMC fails to adequately establish

4 and define relationships between the ORO and other

5 organizations which are expected and relied upon to perform

6 emergency response activities."

7 . Now that is a structural. aspect of the SPMC.' The
I

8 contention does not allege that'it was well defined and i

9 adequately established but'in effective relationship as the

10 testimony would have us believe.

11 I mean, you are talking about the structure of the

12 SPMC, as I under='cand it.
,

'

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I believe that JI 27 goes to

() 14 that, yes.

15 JUDGE SMITH: The structure of the SPMC. Does it

16 adequately define the relationship?

17 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Correct.

18 JUDGE SMITH: It can adequately define a bad

19 relationship which I think that the Chief is saying. The

20 Chief isn't talking about the adequacy of the definition of

21 the relationships, he is saying if that is what they define

22 it's a bad one.

23 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, respectfully, Your Honor,

24 if that in fact is the reading of JI 27 it seems that it's a

25 very narrow reading. And if in fact the SPMC will be deemed

O oritas. gerei , Corgor eio-
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1 adequate, as long as it clearly defines but has ang

2 inadequate organization.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Well, point co a basis then as you

*

4 were invited to do earlier.

5 MS. SAIPT ANDRE: Basis A.

6 JUDGE SMITH: Basis A. |

7 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Where it talks about: "The

8 liaisons fail to establish any organizational or

9 communicational link between ORO and the local organizations

10 which are relied upon to perform certain emergency

11 activities." |

12 JUDGE SMITH: And then going back here to the i

13 Chief's testimony that he doesn't delegate.

'

14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, again, I don't think that

15 his testimony is not that he doesn't delegate. His |
|

16 testimony is that he has never before been in a situation I

17 where other than Auxiliary Police Officers who are from the

18 Town and who have training from the Town and are familiar to

19 him and receive instructions from him, where he has had to

20 coordinate with persons coming from he doesn't know where.

21 He doesn't know who they are or what they're doing. And now

22 he is supposed to coordinate with them.

23 (The Board conferring.)

24 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, we rule that it does not iall

25 within JI 27 nor the language cited to us from Basis A.

O eritase mererei-, correratie-
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1 Those contentions and bases being questions of definition ;

2 and provisions of the SPMC and the basic communication and

3 notification links.' The Chief's testimony doesn't relate to

4 those things. He is just saying whatever it is it's a bad

| 5 idea in his town.
6

6 So you won one. It's not the legal delegation t
i
!7 issue. But you lost another, so you're even.

8 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, maybe I will go back to r

9 the legal delegation argument, I was doing better. j

10 JUDGE SMITH: So that language will not survive.
1

'

11 That creates a little bit of a problem because we didn't

12 come to that part of the litigation yet. But let's mark it

13 for the ruling in the future.
"

| 14 Anything further? Any other objections?{])
15 Now if you have a problem you have to do that

I
'

16 before -- you have to mark up that transcript before the

| 17 evening is over so that when it's bound into the record it )

18 will appear there.

19 So let's take a short break while you do that and

20 it's fresh in your mind and then we will come back and Mr.

21 Lewald can begin to cross-examine.

22 MR. TURK: Your Honor, we may also have some
1

23 motions in limine to present at this time.

24 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, okay. Let's do your motions in

25 limine so that can be corrected during the break because it

O serieae. Rogerein, correlation
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1 has to be done before the testimony is printed.

I 2 MR. TURK: Shall'I proceed?

3 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.

4 MR. TURK: Your Honor, let me note at the outset

5 that the Massachusetts AG's office has requested that issues

6 be presented on a cluster by cluster basis. He did that.on

]7 behalf of all the Interveners including the Towns. >

8 When you look at the opening of the Chief's

9 testimony here he is asked, what's the purpose for his

10 testimony? Question and answer six. And he says: "The

11 purpose of the testimony is to describe traffic control in

12 the Town of Amesbury. To describe the inadequacies in the

13 SPMC traffic plan and bus circulation systems."

14 And he goes on from there to particularize that i

15 statement. But that really should be the thrust of his

16 testimony.

17 When you look at it however there are some

18 additional portions in the testimony that get at general )

19 objections to the nature of the utility beyond traffic |
20 management. I think those should really be taken out at

21 this time as not relevant to the cluster that we're

22 addressing. ;

23 JUDGE SMITH: Which ones?
124 MR. TURK: Starting at question 32. This is i
!

25 question 32 new page 20, old page 12. The question relates

1

O seriea9- Revereio, correratio- )
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1 to whether the Amesbury Police Department maintains a record- |

2 of phone numbers of the Selectmen. Irrelevant.
,

3 Question 33: "Has he had occasion to contact

4 members of the Board of Selectmen at home or at work?" |

l

'

| 5 Irrelevant..

6 "Have you encountered any difficulties contacting

7 Board Members?" Irrelevant. |

|
8 Then he goes on to another area.

9 JUDGE SMITH: If you're going to change subject

10 matters let's take it up.

11 Do you agree? i

12 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, again, having heard-

13 this now for the first time -- the particular testimony that

14 he is talking about is relevant to JI contentions 23.and 24,
(}

15 not contention 4. And I would also point out that when we
1

16 filed our supplemental -- second supplemental answers it was

17 pointed out that Chief Cronin would be testifying with

18 regard to all of the Joint Interveners Contentions which the

i 19 Town of Amesbury was participating as a litigant including

20 JI 23 and 24,

21 MS. DOUGHTY: Judge Smith, I would just add that
'

22 when we were litigating the New Hampshire portion of issues

23 often times the witness would be brought -- for example,

24 SAPL brought witnesses who gave testimony on several

25 contentions and it's a matter of practicality. It's very

O serita,- poreime corgeratiom
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1 difficult to get town officials to be able to free up time

O
2 to come in on several different days to piecemeal. |.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Yes, I know. We don't want the

4 Chief'to coming running back every time a piece of his

5 testimony touches on another issue if possible. However,'I

6- don't think you should just come walking into the hearing,
,

7 Ms. Saint Andre with testimony to be offered on a part
'

l

8 scheduled for another time and leave it to other people to q

l

9 flag that and identify it. You should seek leave of the j
1

10 Board if that's-what you're doing, if you recognize that it

11 was beyond the cluster being heard now. Because there may
|

12 be different lawyers involved. Different rebuttal witnesses j

13 involved.
4

14 But what is your view, is it beyond the cluster of(])
15 issues being heard now?

16 MS. SAINT ANDRE: No , Your Honor, it's not.

17 JUDGE SMITH: What contentions is it?: Which

18 contentions are involved?

19 MS. SAINT ANDRE: JI 24, Your Honor, is within |
|

20 this cluster. I would also point out the testimony has been

21 filed since February 21st.

22 JUDGE SMITH: I can't deal with all those things

23 at once. Let's take it, now is it within the cluster?

24 MS., SAINT ANDRE: Yes, it is, Your Honer, 24 is

25 within the cluster that is before the Board today.

O -ie , ~1m. cd-r ti-
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+c 1 MR. TROUT: We're doing traffic management, Your

2 Honor, that's JI 4, JI 5 and JI 7.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Well, as traffic management.that is j

'4 defined that --

5 MR.'DIGNAN: Yes. If you look in the table of

6 contents of. February 23rd, 1989 the subject matters are up.

7 And if you look at the AG's testimony they confine their' l
J

8 testimony to those contentions plus 60 which is one.that --

9 well, it's in. evacuation equipment and facilities by

10 stipulation. It came on at this time because it's. equipment

11- on traffic control points.

12 And the fact of the matter is 23 and 24 are under

13 the heading " PAR generation." Juud they appear on pages 30 )_

[]} 14 and 31 of the document'I have' referenced earlier.of the
15 February 23rd compilation. And assuming 23 and 24 are-up to

16 bat I would like to hear a specification from the Town of

17 Amesbury as to where under th?se contentions or bases these

18 particular questions Mr. Turk has objected to fit.

19 I'm having a hard time in squeezing questions

20 about whether you can get the selectmen or not into these
j

1
21 two contentions. '

22 And I would remind the Board, and especially the

'
23 Chairman, that we went ad nauseam in New Hampshire about.

24 whether you could get selectmen every day in a small town.

25 And I thin) the Applicant has conceded that it is entirely

.
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possible the selectmen will Ea out of town on any given day.1

O
2 JUDGE SMITH: We're talking about, can you get

3 hold of a selectmen? You point to the very words that is |

4 covered -- in your contentions where that's covered.

5 Because I can't read all of this, this is just too much

6 single spaced. You have to point it to us. I can't find it

7 in a fast reading. |
8 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Sure. JI 24, Your Honor.

9 JUDGE SMITH: I'm looking at JI 24, it's a big

10 single spaced deal. I can't read it all. Show me the

11 words? Give me the words?

12 MS. SAINT ANDRE: About the fourth line, Your

13 Honor, whera it says: "The anticipated protracted delay in

(3 14 obtaining this authority under emergency conditions would
V

15 preclude prompt public notification or timely public

16 emergency response." And then it goes on in more detail.

17 JUDGE SMITH: They would contact the Chief and the

18 Chief would say, "Let's get the selectmen and get some
19 authority 3:e. legated here. " And he can't find them; is that

20 what you're saying?

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor.

22 JUDGE SMITH: That's how it fits in; that's right,

23 isn't it? Does that fit in there?

24 MR. DIGNAN: It's the Commonwealth and EPZ

25 municipalities and under the SPMC the authority is sought i
,

O serita9e negarei 9 correraelen
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1 from the Governor.

O
2 JUDGE SMITH: Well, all right, that's another

3 point then. But does it fit in there?

4 MR. DIGNAN: The Governor does, but not the

5 selectmen.

6 JUDGE SMITH: See we don't have any evidence to

7 that. That is not in evidence.

8 MR. DIGNAN: If it would be an evidentiary-

9 question I think Your Honor is,right, Mr. Lewald can cross

10 it out. We didn't object to this one.

11 JUDGE SMITH:. Here is the contention: " Assuming

12 the Commonwealth and EPZ municipalities would delegate

13 authority to NHY to' perform governmental agencies which they

14 deny they can't get hold of." Now maybo that shouldn't have I{}
15 been in the contention, but it's in and the Chief properly

16 prepared for it, maybe at the wrong time. So it's within

17 24.

18 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, again, perhaps I'm |

19 in error but my recollection is when I read the memo that 24

20 was within the first cluster. If I'm in error and if

21 they're not prepared to litigate this today, then other than

22 the fact that I wouldn't want the Chief to come back, I

23 understand that that's the Board's ruling.

24 But my understanding was that JI 24.was within the

25 first cluster. Maybe I'm in error.

,
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1 JUDGE SMITH: He knows he can't get hold of the

2 selectmen. We know that you can't'always get hold.of the

3 selectmen. I don't think we have to bring him back. Cross-

4 examine him on it. It may be that the testimony will end up i

5 by being irrelevant. But just don't bring him back to make

6 that point. ;

7 HR. DIGNAN: Your Honor, I conceded in New

8 Hampshire and if I have to do it again in Massachusetts that

9 it is entirely possible on the day.of an accident the

10 selectmen, the police chief, any other local officials may

11 be out of town. We understand that and have planned

12 accordingly. If that's what is trying to be established by

13 these four questions, it can be deemed established.

(]} 14, JUDGE SMITH: Whether or not it falls within the

15 cluster of the traffic management testimony to be heard
i

I16 today, whether or not, the testimony remains and he can be*

17 cross-examined on it, if you choose or not if you choose.

18 MR. TURK: Your Honor, I found it particularly

19 helpful to have a specification from Amesbury as to which

20 contentions are even raised by these questions.

21 With your permission I would.like to proceed to

22 indicate areas that I don't understand to fit into this

23 cluster even if it means I g't nothing more than ae

24 specification of relevant contentions.
..

25 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, Your Honor, I object to

O ritas. R gorein , corporation
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1
1

1 this whole -- to this proceeding. I don't think that I'm

0
2 required to do that. Again, all of this testimony which is

3 in here was in our answers to interrogatories which were

4 broken down by contention and I don't think it's the duty of

5 the Chief to do that in his testimony. This is testimony.

6 Let's get on to cross-examination.

7 JUDGE SMITH: You had a few contentions. The

8 Board has to deal with many of them and so does Mr. Turk and'

9, the other people. It may be quite clear to you the

10 contentions that the Chief is addressing in his testimony.
I

'

.

11 It certainly is not clear to us. We don't have' instant

12 command of all of these. And normally -- well, I think we !

13 could level this criticism to all the parties in this

[}
14 proceeding. Sometimes it has -- very often it has been

15 difficult for the Board to know what contentions are being

16 addressed in the testimony and I think we all could do a

17 better job on it.

18 I would have liked to have seen testimony such as.

19 this and say, "What contentions are you addressing, Chief?"

20 And then he lists them and maybe even restates them, so we

21 have them right there. I think it's appropriate to find out

22 what contentions he is addressing in his testimony. I

23 It will save you time because they're going to

24 raise questions of relevance. I mean, you're going to have

25 to show every item of testimony is relevant to some

O serie se negorei , corgeratio-
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1

1 contention that you're litigating.

O
2 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, I understand that, Your

i

3 Honor. I guess my frustration is that this testimony has

4 been filed since February 21st. Our answers to

5 interrogatories have been filed starting back last fall. )

# 6 The answers to interrogatories identify as to this testimony

7 which contentions they relate to. ]
1

8 Now I have been able to go back through that and

9 understand which ones tiiey relate to. I don't understand |
|

10 perhaps why it's necessary for me to,do that process for the j

f

11 other parties to this proceeding.
i

12 JUDGE SMITH: To meet your burden of establishing i

13 relevance to the issues.

14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, I believe the burden

|
15 should be on them, Your Honor, to object to any specific

16 one.

17 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that is a way it can be done.

18 He could say, I object to such and such testimony because it

19 isn't relevant. And you come back and say,'oh, no, it's not

20 it's relevant to contention Y. So you want to do it that

21 way? The result will be the same. |
(

22 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Again, Your Honor, I think that, I

23 to me anyway, that would be a preferable way to do it rather

24 than to go through --
|

25 JUDGE SMITH: I see no difference. But if you're |

0 erieae. gereine corgeraeien
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1 more comfortable with that, it's your witness and'I think we-
'

() 2 will defer to your preference. .

''

3 Mr. Turk?
~ |

4 MR. TURK: ~ All right, Your Honor, let me continue '

5 along the same line then. The same page which is'new page
|

6 20, old page 12, question 35: "Have you reviewed the SPMC I

7 for any other community?" Irrelevant to traffic management. |

8 Question 36: "Does the Town of Amesbury have an
i

9 emergency evacuation?" |
;

10 JUDGE SMITH: Wait a minute. We can't handle all i

11 this information. I mean, I can't handle all this

12 information. How about that, is it relevant-to traffic 1

13 plan? |

14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Again, You'r Honor, that is

() l
15 relevant to JI 24 and/or 23. j

16 MR. TURK: Your Honor, in the interest of speeding

17 this along maybe the good course to follow is just specify
1

18 which contentions we have now, then let us look at the

19 contentions and renew the motion.

20 JUDGE SMITH: She doesn't want to do that.

21 MR. TURK: All right.

22 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, again, the
, , .

23 contentions that we're litigating and that the Chief is

24 testifying on has been on record for months. I would be

25 happy to recite them.

J
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Do you know how many issues:- 'we'

/"T j

\_/ 2 just counted them up -- do you know how many issues we have |
I

3 in this proceeding? 535 issues out of 175 contentions. f
4 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I don't direct that at you, Your

'
5 Honor. .

~1

6 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I know, but that's the I

7 problem. It's a big case management problem. I mean, we're

8 at C here. And do you know how long it has been since I

9 read these contentions? That was back in July. So we do

10 have a probism. You will have to be patient.

11 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I will be patient.

12 JUDGE SMITH: I know that this is not a familiar

13 process for you and you will have to be patient with us.

14 MS. SArHT ANDRE: I will proceed in whstever way

() 1

15 the Board wishes. I guess 1 don't understand what it is --

16 JUDGE SMITH: Well, here is the basic problem. 1

17 You cannot submit testimony in this case that is not k
!
i

18 relevant to an issue which has been admitted for litigation, )

19 and more particularly an issue that you have indicated that

1
20 you're going to pursue. j

!
21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Correct. I

22 JUDGE SMITH: Now when I read this 35 it is not

23 obvious to me what contention this relates to. And then

24 when you say 24, I go to 24 and I see a lot of words there <

25 that I am not as familiar with as you are and it's not that

r~g Heritage Reporting Corporation |
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1 easy to do. It is going to take time.

() 2 "Have you reviewed the SPMC for any other
,

3 community of Massachusetts for similar emergency evacuation

4 plans?" Now is this a measure of quality of the plan or is
i

5 it a measure of what?

6 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, again, this goes to j

7 both 23 and 24. 23 is=the issue of conflicting PARS between

8 the SPMC and the New Hampshire plan. And that I believe is j.

r

9 more close in line with that particular contention. But it
|

10 .also has a bearing, Your Honor, on JI 24.

11 (The Board conferring. )

12

13 |

14

O 15
t

16
!

17 j

<
'

18

19 {
!

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 JUDGE SMITH: It seems to be relevant. Now the

() 2 question is, is it under this cluster of issues?l

I
'

' ih . TURK: It's not traffic management, Your3 c

4 Honor. !

5 JUDGE SMITH': Doesn't seem to be.
f

6 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, my recollection is

7 that JI-23 is in the second cluster. JI-24 is in the first.
I' '

8 That's again my recollection of it.

9 MR. DIGNAN: Your Honor, I have a feeling that we q
!

10 had a miscommunication here, and if my sister from the Town j

|
11 of Amesbury would bear with me. ,

l

12 The term " cluster" as I have been using it and as

13 I believe Mr. Turk has been using it does not refer to the )
I

14 basic division of the case into two pieces. It refers,

O
15 rather, to the fact that there was agreement to try as a

16 cluster of issues the traffic management plan issues only

17 first. This is because of Mr. Donovan's unavailability.

I 18 And the cluster that we at least have been referring to

19 refer to pieces within the first phase of the case. And I

20 think there has been some confusion.

21 JUDGE SMITH: Right. I think maybe now this might

22 explain.

23 Are you aware of the telephone conference call we

24 had, the status conference call in which the question of

25 which order of proceeding we're going to follow?

.
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|

1 We decided that adequacy of the traffic management ]

2 g1an as the first cluster or issues would be taken up first, |O
3 and then followed by FEMA's defense of its reports. It is a

4 different cluster, it is a different division than the SPMC
l

5 versus the balance of the case, which was the basic filing |

6 differences. So now we are talking about the sequence of

7 the appearance of witnesses, not the filing dates.
)

8 Have you been sensitive to that during this

9' discussion?

10 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, up until this moment I
1

11 thought I had been, but perhaps I did misunderstand the

12 difference between the two. |

13 JUDGE SMITH: So I think there seemed to be a
,

14 failure of communication there. This does not scem to me to .)
O !

15 be a traffic management plan issue. It seems to be a PAR as j

|
16 stated, a PAR issue. Correctly under the SPMC, but |

17 incorrectly under traffic management adequacy. |

|
18 MS. SAINT ANDRE: My recollection was that before

19 the testimony was filed, we were informed that certain

20 testimony had to be filed on or before February 21st. Other {

21 contentions testimony as to those contentions was to be
:
1

22 filed by another date. That's my first understanding i

23 which -- !
i

24 JUDGE SMITH: You have thrown a new light on it.
I

25 You see, she correctly prepared testimony based upon the two ;

i
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1

1 divisions. She had a right to prepare it this way.

O.
2 Now the problem is it's prepared and people, .

3 without involving her, decided that the: issues would be

4 broken up yet further. So she can't help this situation.

5 We>have to accommodate her.

'6 MR. DIGNAN: ,I concur in that, and once again'
'

'7 raise the question party by party. It eliminates a lot'of
!

8 confusion. J

I
9 JUDGE SMITH: What do you say to that, Mr. . Turk?. |

|

10 She's faultless here, blameless. I
1

11 MR. TURK: I never intended to blame her

12 personally for anything.

)
13 JUDGE SMITH: Well, how do you --

| {) 14 MR. TURK: I do think it would'be easier for all

15 of us to follow the case' as the Board suggested; if we do,

i

16 it by cluster. That was the Mass AG's -- j
'

,

!
17 JUDGE SMITE: That's.right, but what are we going

18 to do when the Chief has got traffic to run over there?

19 (Laughter.)

20 JUDGE SMITH: And if he can't find a selectman --

21 (Laughter.)

22 MR. DIGNAN: He's got his auxiliary policemen.

23 Who is running Amesbury today?.

24 (Laughter.) o

25 MR. .DIGNAN: Because the board's here, the town is !

-

,

O rit e- eerei , co ver tie-
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1 vacant..

JUDGE SMITH: Mr. Turk?2 '

3 MR. TURK: At some point in time the Board is
I

4 go ag to be called upon to write a decision addressing all

| 5 parties' position with respect to particular issues. I

6 think it would be helpful to the Board, it would certainly

7 be helpful to me in writing findings if I can have a

1

8 specification of issues and be prepared to cross-examine'

9 when the time comes. I have a particular suggestion.

10 We have several towns who are participating in the

11 proceeding. We have, I think, five different witnesses who

12 are going to appear for the towns. If it's not too much

13 inconvenience, could we possibly ask that today and in the

{) 14 next few days we only consider traffic management, and ask

15 the towns to voluntarily withdraw testimony on other matters

16 until a later date? And then ask them to present their

i 17 witness at a later date on those other matters.
|

18 JUDGE SMITH: You can'ask that. Let's direct it
|

19 to them.

20 MR. TURK: I would certainly appreciate that
|

| 21 courtesy and favor. It would certainly help us prepare for

22 cross-examination. It would help'us in formulating our view

23 of the case.j

24 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Other than Chief Cronin, if I

25 can switch my hat now to the City of Newburyport, which is

() Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 the other Intervenor that I represent, my recollection of

O
2 the City of Newburyport's testimony is it is only on traffic

3 management and the bus evacuation routes; that there is none

4 of the other issues such as we have here today. I will

5 double check that this evening, however. So I don't think

6 that will be an issue.
>

7 My only request is since the Chief is here, if he j

l
8 can, testify. Obviously it would be more convenient for him. . ).

9 If FEMA is, or the NRC, excuse me, is not prepared to go

10 forward on that issue, you know, if we have to bring him

11 back, we can. It would be more efficient to try to finish

12 it.

13 JUDGE SMITH: To bring him back to somehow split

14 up his written testimony is going to be as confusing. I
[}

15 think we can handle this without bringing him back. )
16 With respect to the other people, take it up with

17 them individually. I don't know., Take it up with them if

18 you want to. We don't have a preference. But I don't want

19 to bring the Chief back. They correctly prepared the

20 testimony'and according to the breakdown that everyone

21 agreed up.
.

22 MR. TURK: Your Honor, I don't know if'that's

23 correct. The Chief's testimony here is addressed to the
|

' 24 second phase, not second cluster, but second phase; i.e.,
'

25 it's a mixed issue: What do.you do when you are looking
t

O eriease a-rew C-r ei-
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1 beyond the SPMC by itself?

2 Now maybe I am wrong, and I would ask other

3 parties to correct me, but it's not even supposed to be part

| 4 of the first phase of the hearing. I think it was supposed

5 to have been filed with the April testimony.

6 MR. DIGNAN: The fact of the matter is, Your

7 Honor, while the Staff is in a wonderful position on this

8 because they are not putting in all that much testimony, and
*

9 FEMA is in a great position also because they are going to

10 be taken in one fell swoop twice, I have some sympathy for

11 the towns on this one. And all I ask is I've lost the
1

12 battle of clusters. I understand that. But could we have a j

13 relaxation a little bit, because I'll tell you right now the
1

Q 14 Attorney General's testimony as it breaks down has faded

15 over into clusters, and so has mine, I think, at times. I

16 don't think anybody did it deliberately. I think the
,

|
'17 problem is when you start discussing a certain topic with a

18 certain witness, inevitably you get some.

19 This is why, not to beat a dead horse, why I have

20 always favored the party by party. But I think we can
|

21 handle it. And I sympathine with Mr. Turk, but the problem i

22 is, to put it bluntly, the government doesn't have the

23 problem because the Staff isn't putting all that much in and

24 FEMA is all taken care of because they are going to go twice

25 on two easily broken apart reports is what it comes down to.

O Nerieave aegerein, Correlation
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16226 |
J

4

|1 But as far as the Applicant is concerned, I don't

O l

2 have any problem with this provided that we do get responses |
)'

3 to objections that are made on relevancy grounds when it's '

4 not clear to us as to what contention it's under and we are

5 told, you know, here is the content. But with that going, I j

6 think we can, at least we feel we can cross this testimony.

7 I don't know how you can undo the problem of all the parties )
8 and the Board having to go back and pick it up when they do

9 propose findings.

10 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, now, let's hope that this I

|

11 experience with this testimony might be beneficial for the - |

12 balance of the week. Now I think you might recognize why

13 there may be some utility and fairness in you addressing an
|

14 overview of the testimony you are offering, all of you, as

15 to the contentions which it is addressed. And'if you know

16 that the testimony slops over into another area, say so and

17 then we will deal with it if we can. But'look at the time

18 we have wasted here to finally arrive at a rather simple

19 definition of what is happening. So let's one if we can't

i
20 be more cooperative.

,

21 We will be calling upon you, if it's not clear

22 from the testimony, to say specifically what contentions you

23 are addressing. And if there is a question of why it is

24 here instead of some other time, we will expect just a

25 forthright explanation of why it is, or you may disagree.

O ritas- merertine cereer tion
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1 You may think it's here properly. But4we just simply will

O
2 not ever get your witnesses.in and out if we approach it

3 this way. I mean it's too quibbling.
,

|

4 All right, is there anything further before the 1

5 Chief is cross-examined?
,

4

6 MR. TURK: I would note one thing and then turn to

7 Ms. Chan. I do have other questions ~that I have identified

'

8 as being beyond traffic management. I understand the'

9 Board's direction that we talk with town counsel and see-if

10 we can get that identified outside of this.

11 JUDGE SMITH: Yes, Mr. Turk. It seems to me you j

|>

12 are looking at only one side of the problem. You see an |

I
13 advantage on one side, and that is take purely traffic I

!

(} 14 management issues up. But you are not dealing with the fact

15 that the testimony is already prepared as it is, and that it

16 can't be changed now without additional confusion and some
!

I 17 accommodation should be made for the towns when they did
,

18 that. )
19 MR. TURK: I recognize that, Your Honor. I'm

20 suggesting only that at the next break I'll talk to town

.
21 counsel and get a specification of contentions so it's easy I

!

| 22 for us to cross-examine.

23 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, just the specification of

24 contentions.
,

l
! 25 MR. TURK: Yes.
t

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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1 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, I thought you were also asking

O
2 that they limit their testimony to the traffic management

3 plan aspect.

4 MR. TURK: I understood you had ruled me out on

5 that.
'

!

6 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I hadn't ruled you out of it.

|
'

7 I just didn't categorically think that we cannot ever have

|
8 them ever doing it,,but you are free to ask them.

9 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I would be happy to --
|

10 JUDGE SMITH: Just remember there is going to be a |
| i
1

11 lot of confusion with that result too.

12 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I'll be happy to talk to Mr.
1

13 Turk at the break and see if we can resolve whatever the I
|

14 issue.()
| 15 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.

,

,

16 MS. CHAN: Your Honor, a suggestion that might

17 eliminate some of this confusion.

18 Since the town counsel has to go through the

19 testimony and mark out parts that were stricken, perhaps

20 after the question for those contentions dealing -- for

21 those questions dealing with other contentions, they can

22 just in parenthesis put which JI contention it refers to,

j 23 and then it would be in the record for everyone,
i

| 24 MR. BROCK: Your Honor, if I could be heard for a

| 25 minute.

O seritase ne- rei-2 c - ration
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1 Provided that one contention is identified as

k) '

2 relevant, that the testimony is relevant to, that would not

3 preclude in proposed findings, we would think, relying on

4 that testimony perhaps running to other issues raised in

5 other contentions. I mean if it's an issue of relevancy, a

6 contention will be identified, we can address it on that
| ,

| 7 bacis.

8 But the fact that Amesbury might cite it for one
.

9 or two contentions to'which his testimony runs, we might j

10 look at that down the road and propose findings and want to i

!

11 rely on that for another equally relevant' contention, and we

12 understand that we would be permitted to do that, Your

|
13 Honor. 1

|
14 JUDGE SMITH: I don't believe the Board has ever{])
15 precluded that. We have required sharp division of issues

16 in the proposed findings, however.

17 MR. BROCK: Understood, Your Honor.

18 JUDGE SMITH: Now, do you have any more objections,

,

19 that are likely to result in striking testimony?

20 MS. CHAN: Yes, Your Honor. I would like to take

21 a moment to conform the testimony to the Board's order. In

22 the Board order, the second Board order at 11, the Town of

23 Amesbury had wanted to identify more intersection that

24 needed to be staffed, and this was rejected for lack of

25 specificity by the Board.

O =erita, megerun, c - ration
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16230 ]
,

1 And the Board further, at page 14 in'its order,

() i

2 limital the intersections to be litigated to those

3 bottlenecks, choke points, and traffic management areas ]
l

4 identified in the original bases. Those two intersections '

5 identified'were Friend Street' adjacent to Amesbury High
3

,

|

6 School, and Cashman Elementary School, and Amesbury transfer

l7 area.
l

8 In light of the Board's limitation on the

9 contention, the answers to Questions 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21

10 and 24 (A) , except for Friend Street and Main, which seems'to -|

11 be the Amesbury stating area, should be excluded-as beyondj

12 the scope of the contention.

13 Would you like me to read you those answers again?

(]) 14 JUDGE COLE: Please.

15 MS. CHAN: Beginning with Answer 16 through Answer )
I

16 21. I

17 JUDGE COLE: Sixteen through 21?

18 MS. CHAN: Yen. They deal with intersections
.

19 other than that of Friend Street adjacent to the high school

20 and elementary school, and the Amesbury transfer area.

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, I'm sorry, maybe I

22 am a little slow, but could I just have that repeated, the

23 objection? I didn't quite catch both of those objections.

24 MS. CHAN: The Board's order, the second order at

25 page 11 rejected the Town of Amesbury's contention that i

i

O erica 9- eores-, correratio-
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1- called for more intersection:ssto be staffed,-or for new

(:) i
2 traffic control posts at those intersections. It was

3 rejected for lack of specificity. And the Board elaborated |

4 at page 14 of the same order limiting the intersections to

5 those bottlenecks and choke points identified in the i

6 original bases. There were only two intersections, ;

7 bottlenecks or choke points identified in the bases of.

8 contentions. They were Friend Street adjacent to Amesbury q

9 High School, this is 4 (J); and Amesbury transfer' area.
,

l

10 And from reading the testimony, I will assume,

'

11 correct me if I am wrong, that Friend Street and Main, that

12- intersection is the Amesbury staging area or. transfer area

13 which is permissible. If that's incorrect, then that

14 intersection is - .{)
15 JUDGE SMITH: Which is permissible.

16 MS. CHAN: -- is also excluded. Answer 24 (A) . I

17 believe it's the seventh intersection listed under (A).

18 That's allowable if that's the same as the Amesbury transfer

19 area.

20 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, Your Honor, if I might, I

21 think I am going to need a minute to review this, if I.

22 could, before I reply.

23 JUDGE SMITH: Would you state again what you are

24 saying under 24 (A) ? I thought I heard you say --

25 MS. CHAN: Twenty-four. The answer?

O rites- eereine ce=reretie-
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1

1 JUDGE SMITH: Yes. |

'

2 MS. CHAN: The seventh -- i
1

3 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, seventh.
|

4 MS. CHAN: Seventh intersection, I believe, is the I
!

5 Amesbury transfer area which was one of the two identified
|

6 areas in the original bases,
i

7 JUDGE COLE: So it's still valid. l

|

8 MS. CHAN: Yes, if that's.the same intersection. I

9 ~ I'm not sure, because it's not identified the same way.

10 Perhaps the Chief could clarify it for us, whether or no't (
|

11 the intersection of Friend Street and Mkin Street is the

12 Amesbury transfer area.

13 Chief Cronin?,

14 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) I don't know.)
15 MS. CHAN: Is this your testimony?

16 THE WITNESS: (Cronin) Yes, it is.

17 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, wait. Excuse me, Your

| 18 Honor. Are we entering into cross-examination now?
l

19 JUDGE SMITH: No. Her point is we only allowed

20 two choke points to survive for litigation, and Ms. Chan

21 says that you have lots of them now, and you are only

22 allowed to have two of them. And one of the two that she

23 thinks that you are allowed to have is Friend-Street and

24 Main Street, because there was reference to the entrance and

25 exit of the staging area. And she asked the Chief if that's

O -iea - = rei , c-reei-
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1 correct. She is not sure that that's one of the two,_

2 factually.~

3 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well,'first of all, I think the

4 Chief should have a chance to take a look at the maps to see

5 where the transfer point is before he gives an answer. !

6 And secondly, I am not sure that I agree with the

7 argument, but I am attempting to check the bases here.

8 JUDGE SMITH: Okay.
.|

9 MS. SAINT ANDRE: If I had a little more warning, f
i

10 I would have done it earlier.

11 JUDGE SMITH: I think that what we are going to do !

12 is, instead of trying to rush us tonight, wc are going to j
i

13 withhold, Ms. Reporter, even though -- well, we haven't the j

{) testimony anyway, but probably what we will do is receive it14

15 tomorrow in its revised form so we don't have the big rush

16 to get it conformed to be bound in tonight.
:

17 MR. DIGNAN: Could I be clear on the objection

18 that's on the floor then? As I understand it, if the Board

19 will indulge me a question of counsel which we normally |
1
'20 shouldn't do.

21 Ms. Chan, the objections runs to the entire answer i

1

22 but for the question of whether this Friend Street and Main

23 Street is one of the intersect 3ons of this town?
I

24 MS. CHAN: Yes, because I thought from reading

25 this that -- ]
i

i
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1 JUDGE SMITH: How about the other choke points?

O 2 MS. CHAN: Well, I didn't see any mention of that i

|
3 in the' testimony, Your Honor, because it only refers to 1

.1

4 Friend Street adjacent to Amesbury High School and Cashman
1

5 Elementary, but doesn't give an intersection, an

6 intersecting street, so I was unable to identify which of

7 the choke points, if any, that would be.

8 JUDGE SMITH: Why don't we take a short break, 10

9 minutes, while you get on top of that ruling. And would you

10 give me a citation to it, Ms. Chan, the ruling that --
^ |

11 MS. CHAN: Yes, Your Honor. Your order at pages

12 11 and 14.
1

13 JUDGE SMITH: What order is that, order |
|

14 following --
)

| 15 MS. CHAN: Number 2.
|

16 JUDGE SMITH: Oh, No. 2. |
|

17 MS. CHAN: Yes.

18 JUDGE-SMITH: At what pages?

19 MS. CHAN Pages 11 and 14, Your Honor.

20 JUDGE SMITH: Okay.

21 (Whereupon, a recess was taken.)

22 JUDGE SMITH: Have you had an opportunity to refer

23 to the Board's ruling now?

24 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, Your Honor.

25 JUDGE SMITH: We don't have that ruling. Did we

O rie 9- gerei 9 Cerger eio-
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1 in fact limit it to two choke points?

O
2 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, Your Honor, if I could,

.

3 let me address both of the Board's ruling.

4 The first ruling was on Amesbury Contention 4,

i 5 Bases B. And under B (2) , the Town of Amesbury's basis as
1

6 stated, in effect, the Town of Amesbury will in fact require

7 substantia 11y'more than 16 traffic guides to staff

8 anticipated and significant traffic choke points.

9 Now, your ruling on that issue, Your Honor, was

10 that the first one referred to on page 11 of your ruling, it

11 says, "As to the town's claim that more intersections need

12 to be staffed, we agree that this assertion does not provide

13 adequate specificity. Except for this assertion, Basis 4 (B)
'

14 is admitted."{}
15 However, there was a second bases, Your Honor, if

16 I could, which was Bases 4 (J) . And that, in effect, said

17 that the traffic management plan is inaccurate or ]

18 incomplete, fails to depict certain anticipated bottlenecks
1

19 and choke points at key intersections in the town. Then it

20 lists some examples.

21 Now, your ruling on 4 (J) reads that, "We agree

22 with the Staff and admit the portion of Basis 4 (J) which

23 concerns the traffic management plan for the Town of

24 Amesbury to the extent that it relies upon bottlenecks,

25 choke points and the need for additional traffic management

.O n rieee- eerei , ce veratie-
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1 identified in the basis statement."

O
2 Now, my reading of that ruling ~was that under

3 Basis 4 (J) the entire issue of bottlenecks, choke points and

4 the need for additional traffic management was admitted as

5 an issue in this proceeding. That we were not limited to

6 what were simply examples listed in that particular basis. 1

7 So to that extent, I believe that the NRC staff is

8 in error, and- that in fact the issue of bottlenecks, choke

9 points and need for additional traffic management has in
,

|

10 fact been admitted as an issue for litigation before this j

11 Board. And that is what I believe Question 24 and Answer 24
i

12 is aimed at, and I would submit that all of the

13 intersections which are identified in that answer are

!
14 properly offered as relevant evidence to the Board.{'}

,

15 Now, I don't know whether you want me_to digress i
!

16 back to another point that was raised.- There was also a !

17 motion, I believe part of the motion was also Question 16

18 through 21. Now, I am a little confused on those, Your

19 Honor, because those questions deal with the inadequacies in

20 the traffic control points. It has nothing to do with other

21 anticipated bottlenecks throughout the town. And it seems

22 to me that the inadequacies of the various TCPs is well

23 within the scope of Contention No. 4. It's the very essence j

24 of Contention No. 4. So I am at a loss to understand why

25 there is a motion to strike Question 16 through 21.

h Heritage Reporting Corporation
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I

1 MS. CHAN: Your Honor, on page 10 of your July 29 +

'
'

2 memorandum and order,.Part 2, the last paragraph under 4 (B)

3 states, "Amesbury replies that traffic guide requirements

4 were determined by its chief of police, and that the needs

5 are a proper issue for litigation."

6 And the Board's reply to' that is that -- on the

7 next page, the top of page 11, "As to the town's claim that

8 more intersections need to be staffed, we agree that this

9 assertion does not provide adequate specificity."

10 And since the police chief is identifying --

11 JUDGE SMITH: What was our ruling?

12 MS. CHAN: Excuse me?

13 JUDGE SMITH: What was our ruling?

14 MS. CHAN: That was your ruling, Your Honor. I
{}

15 just read it.

|
16 JUDGE SMITH: You mean we left it dangling. We

| 17 didn't bring it to a conclusion? ]I
1

18 MS. CHAN: "Except for this assertion, Basis 4 (B)

!
19 is admitted."

20 JUDGE SMITH: All right.

21 MS. CHAN: But the assertion that other

22 intersections or more intersections need to be staffed was
|

23 excluded for lack of specificity. !
1

24 And here we have a number of intersections added

25 to the contention which no one was able to file testimony on

O rie 9- a gerei-9 cereer eie=
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)

1 because they were not in the original contention basis. j

O i
2 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, Your Honor, I must j

I

3 respectfully disagree. Again, there was a second basis, the
'

4 one that I alluded to.

5 JUDGE SMITH: 4 (J) .

6 MS. SAINT ANDRE: 4 (J) . And under there, some

7 examples were given. However, the Board's ruling on that !

8 did not limit us to those examples. So whan we. filed our !

9 answers to interrogatories, we went through all of the

10 intersections, which are now in the testimony that's before

11 the Board, so none of this should be a surprise.
,

12 MR. TROUT: Actually, Barbara, you did -- there
'

i

13 are some new ones in there, but that's beside the point. ]
!

|O ' **- $^'"' ^"""" ' d "'' **2**'* - ""' *" *"r-

15 event, we were not limited to, under 4 (J) we were not

16 limited to only certain specific intersections. Under 4 (J) ,

17 the Board's ruling was that --

18 JUDGE SMITH: You just read it.

19 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I'm sorry.

20 JUDGE SMITH: Did you read the entire ruling?

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Yes, I did. I will read it

i 22 again. "We agree with the Staff and admit the portion of
|

23 Basis 4 (J) which concerns the traffic management plan for

24 the Town of Amesbury to the extent that it relies on

25 bottlenecks, choke points and the need for additional

O. ritas. R.gorei , corror.eio-,

| (202) 628-4888
!

. .

_ _ _ - _ _ _ - _ .



v
- _

CRONIN - DIRECT 16239

1 traffic management identified in'the basis statement."

O
2 JUDGE SMITH: Does the basis statement identify

3 the bottlenecks, choke points and additional traffic

4 management identified?

5 MS. SAINT ANDRE: The-basis reads, "The traffic

6 management plan for the Town of Amesbury is inaccurate or

7 incomplete and fails to depict certain anticipated

| 8 bottlenecks and choke points at key intersections in the

9 town. For example," and then it lista some examples. I

10 will be happy to go through them if you want.

I11 And concludes --
i

12 JUDGE SMITH: Yes, but -- all right, go ahead.
'

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: And concludes, "The SPMC,
1

14 however, provides only two traffic guides to manage this
'

| {}
!15 entire area which would be wholly inadequate given

16 anticipated traffic volume, including emergency vehicles."

17 Now, based upon your ruling -- |

18 JUDGE SMITH: The basis did not identify

19 bottlenecks, choke points and need for additional traffic

20 management?

I 21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: The basis was that.the --
f

22 JUDGE SMITH: What was the basis again? How does |

* 23 the basis look under the Joint Intervention contentions? |
;
'

24 Which one is that?

25 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, thin is JI 4, Your Honor..

o
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1 JUDGE SMITH: JI wha 67
0

2 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Four.

3 JUDGE SMITH: Four. But what basis, or did the

4 basis evaporate?

5 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, again, Your Honor, the

6 bases have been reworded under JI No. 4. However, I believe

7 it comes under the contention itaelf where it says, "The

8 evacuation plan is so poorly designed and inadequately

9 staffed that even the state and local officials make best

10 effort response, there is no reasonable assurance that the

11 residents and transients will be evacuated as efficiently as

12 possible," et cetera.

13 And obviously, you know, the whole --

ggg 14 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I can't understand how we got

15 this far in litigation where here we have many examples
16 which were not alleged in the contention or in the basis,

17 nor apparently during discovery. And I recall very

18 particularly that every time Applicants or Staff made an

19 objection to a contention or a basis from the towns, or

20 agreed to a limitation only to the extent that examples were
21 set out, it was the Board's practice to say, "Well, you

22 know your town. You know, you know where your choke points

23 are. You know where your traffic is needed. If you don't

24 allege it in the examples in the basis, you can't litigate

25 it." Now we did that time and time and time again,
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CRONIN - DIRECT .16241

1 But now apparently you are pointing us to a

50
o

2 situation where we departed from that. We arrive at the
.s

3 litigation-with large number of examples that were never

4 apparently known by any of the parties before.

5 How does that happen? Where did the process fail?'

6 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, respectfully, Your Honor,

7 they were known. In the answers we filed December 7, 1988,

8 there are three single-spaced pages.where we go through, I ]
1

9 believe, all of the intersections which are not in the |

10 profiled testimony.

11 JUDGE SMITH: What do you say about Basis 4 (J),

12 Ms. Chan?

13 MS. CHAN: Your Honor, it's the Staff's

{}
14 understanding that Basis 4 (J) , where it says, the Board's

15 order says, "To the extent it relies on bottlenecks, choke

16 points and the need for additional traffic management
,

17 identified in the bases statement, that the only two

18 bottlenecks, choke points or needs for traffic management

19 were identified in the basis statement."

20 JUDGE SMITH: Which ones are those?

21 MS. CHAN: Two. Friend Street --

22 JUDGE SMITH: Well, I just asked you that and you

23 didn't read those back to me, Ms. Saint Andre.

24 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor. ;

25 JUDGE SMITH: Here is what our ruling was on Basis
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16242
. |*

1 4 (J) , I want to start fresh. !

O
2 "We agree with the. Staff and admit'the portion of

3 Basis 4 (J) which concerns the traffic management plan'for

4 the Town of Amesbury to the extent it relies upon

5 bottlenecks and choke' points and the need for additional

6 traffic management identified in the basis statement." |

7 I asked you to read me that basis statement, but

I
8 you didn't read those two intersections.

9 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I would be happy to read the.

10 entire thing right now if you want to. 1

1

11 JUDGE SMITH: Read the whole thing from the

12 beginning because I don't have it.

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: All right, fine.

(} 14 "The traffic management plan for the Town of

15 Amesbury is inaccurate or incomplete and fails to opict -{

16 certain anticipated bottlenecks and choke points at key
|
| 17 intersections in the town. For example, the routing map at

18 Amesbury Center, Appendix J, page A-3, TCP No. B-AM-01,

19 omits the intersection with Friend Street, although up to

20 one-sixth of Amesbury's resident population could be

21 expected during an amergency to access on to Friend Street,

22 which is adjacent to the Amesbury High School and Cashman

23 Elementary School. No traffic control is provided under the

24 SPMC for those likely contested areas even though the SPMC

25 itself contemplates that parents will be returning to
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16243

1 schools to pick up their children. SPMC Plan page 3.1-6..

2 Similarly, the Amesbury transfer area where evacuation buses

3 will be entering and exiting is, located approximately one-

4 quarter mile from Amesbury Center. The SPMC, however,

5 provides only two traffic guides to manage this entire area

6 which would be wholly inadequate given anticipated traffic

7 volume, including emergency vehicles."

8 JUDGE SMITH: Okay. Now,.that's going back to

9 what our practice was, to admit these contentions from the

10 towns when they allege a particular intersection or i

11 particular problem known to them better than anybody else in

12 the whole world, to limit the basis in the contention to the

13 examples they gave. We did that over and over and over

againwithrespecttoeverytNwn, and that's what we did
({} 14

15 this time, and our rulings were consistent all the way

16 through.
4

17 What do you believe that that phrase identified.in

18 the basis statement means?

19 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I believe, Your Honor, that that

20 refers to the fact that you wore excluding the very end of

21 that bases which talks about the fact, "The SPMC, however, *

22 provides only two traffic guides tc. manage this entire area

23 which would be wholly inadequate given anticipated traffic

24 volume, including emergency vehicles."

25 JUDGE SMITH: No, we consistently on the towns

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888

_ - _ _ - _



v . . .. .. .
.. ..

. __ - - _ - _ _ _ - . _ - - _ - _ _

a'

CRONIN - DIRECT 16244

1 required them to identify the particular traffic problem

O
2 thrit they were alleging was a problem. And we did not.

|
3 allow, in general, unspecified allegations to be admitted I

4 because in this instance we held the towns to a particular

5 standard of knowledge of the conditions within their town,

6 and that's what we did. I'm sure that other of your

7 colleagues from the towns can recall it has happened to them

8 in their contentions, and we did it in every instances, and

9 that's what I think we did now in this case.

10 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, I --

11 JUDGE SMITH: Now is that correct? Did we not

12 indeed follow a practice of not admitting contentions except

13 for the examples given out by the towns of their traffic

{} 14 problems; is that correct? Is that your memory, your

15 understanding of the practice?

16 MS. SAINT ANDRE: My recollection is, Your Honor,

17 that in some instances that is correct. I, frankly, don't

18 recall all of the Board's rulings.

19 JUDGE SMITH: Well, in this case.what you tell me

20 is not persuasive. My memory is, and my memory of the

21 practice is that what was admitted here was the bottlenecks,

22 choke points and needs identified in the basis statement and

23 nothing else. It was not an example. We did not accept

24 exemplary types contentions on traffic choke points and

25 bottlenecks in the towns or other problems, because we held

O erit ee negereine correratio-
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16245

1 them to a thorough knowledge of the problems that existed in
() 1

2 their town.

3 MS. DOUGHTY: Judge Smith?

4 JUDGE SMITH: Yes.

5 MS. DOUGHTY: 'The Seacoast Anti-Pollution
,

6 League --

7 JUDGE SMITH: Now, normally we are not going to

8 hear piggy-back arguments on contentions unless you have a

9 particular reason for interfering in this one. |
l

10 MS. DOUGHTY: Well, I do. j

11 Our position has always been that a contention

12 should be set forth with reasonable specificity and basis,

13 and we can say, for example, and not have to elucidate every

14 single bit of --

15 JUDGE SMITH: But you have repeatedly lost that

16 argument. I

1

17 MS. DOUGHTY: Well, I guess we are just preserving |

18 for the record our continued objection to that kind of

19 ruling, because we --

20 JUDGE SMITH: Well, do not do it, because that was

21 at the contention stage, and it is not now for you. We have
1

22 long since passed admitting contentions and issues into this

23 hearing. We are ready for testimony now.

24 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, then let me just go back

25 then to Question 24 and the answer.
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16246

1 As I understand what has just transpired, other

() -- I
2 than the testimony with regard to the intersection -- page

3 14 at the top of the page. My understanding is that the

4 testimony with regard to Friend Street'and Main Street is |

5 still relevant. And on page 15 --

| 6 JUDGE SMITH: If indeed that is, as the Chief
|

7 doesn't know, if that la the stationary choke point, or what

8 was it called in the basis?
,

9 MS. CHAN: Transfer point, Amesbury transfer --

10 JUDGE SMITH: Transfer area.

11 MS. CHAN: Transfer area.

12 ~ JUDGE SMITH: We don't know if it is-or not. The

13 Chief doesn't know. |
|

14 MS. CHAN: Your Honor, I think we might be able to |; ,q
| V

15 clarify this point. In consultation with the technical

16 staff of the Applicant, we have determined that the

17 intersection of Friend Street and Highland Street, which is

18 on the seventh from the last item, Friend Street and
|

19 Highland Street is the intersection that is adjacent to the

20 high school.

21 JUDGE SMITH: There were two intersections we

22 accepted, right?

23 MS. CHAN: And the second was Amesbury transfer

24 area which is close to Friend and Main.
25 JUDGE SMITH: That is what?
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16247

1 MS. CHAN: It is close to the intersections of
f

' 2 Friend and Main Street that I had mentioned earlier. It's

3 not exactly there, but that's the closest intersection.
1

4 MS. SAINT ANDRE: That's on page 14, Your Honor. j

i

5 So there is one on page 14 and one on page 15. |

6 JUDGE SMITH: Yes. ;

|
7 Again, I have not gone back and read the bases and {

a

l
8 the exact ruling. I am' going by the practice we followed j

|

'

9 and my memory of it, and the language that you have cited to

10 us, and I am confident that our ruling was that it was only j

11 those examples and those problems identified in your basis |

12 that were admitted for litigation.

13 And unless you have something further to add, Ms.

14 Chan is correct.

15 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, no, I obviously

16 misinterpreted the Board's ruling on that particular issue.

17 However, I think --

18 JUDGE SMITH: Now we didn't make it once. We made

19 it many, many, many, many times. It came up over and over

20 again, and I am really surprised that .it's coming up now.i

l
'

21 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, in any event, Your Honor,

| 22 I believe that the other issue is Question 16, 17, 18, 19,
1

i

23 20 and 21, which are the Chief's testimony with regard to |

|24 all of the traffic control points in the Town of Amesbury, j

]
25 and I'm not sure why those should be stricken simply becausei
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16248

1 of the Board's ruling on the choke points.

|

2 JUDGE SMITH: Okay, what contention did they

3 allude to?

4 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Contention No. 4, Your Honor.

5 JUDGE SMITH: And what basis under Contention No. |

6 4?

7 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Well, again, Your Honor, |

8 Contention No. 4 is the contention with regard to the

9 evacuation plan, and Basis C, the traffic control diagrams
i

10 contained in the SPMC are not sufficiently clear to allow

11 the SPMC's traffic management plan to be implemented.

12 JUDGE SMITH: I'm sorry, I didn't hear anything

4

13 you said.

14 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I'm sorry.

15 Basis C, Your Honor, again, Your Honor, these are

I16 the redrafted bases.

17

18

19

20

21 ,

22

23

|24
i

25
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16249

1 JUDGE SMITH: The basis is the traffic control

() I

2 diagrams contained in the SPMC are,not sufficiently clear to ;
i

3- allow the SPMC traffic management plan to be implemented.

4 And he is talking about in one instance inadequacies in the

5 description. That's question 17. I'

1

|

6 Do they fall under that basis, MA. Chan? '

7 MS. CHAN: One moment, Your Honor.

8 (NRC counsel conferring.)

9 MS. CHAN: Your Honor, it is my understanding

10 based on the grouping under traffic management plan in the

11 joint stipulation that the Town of Amesbury 4J is the only
>

12 part that's listed under traffic management and not 4C.

13 JUDGE SMITH: That's categorization?
,

|
14 MS. CHAN: Yes, Your Honor.

|

15 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that seems to be a traffic

16 management plan by its very terms actually.

17 MS. CHAN: Well, this is under the February 23rd' |

18 compilation of contentions.

19 JUDGE SMITH: I'm looking at February 23rd, page

20 one, evacuation process under that B, traffic management

21 plan and under that contention J 4. Under. contention J 4,

22 contention C, traffic control diagrams contained in the SPMC

L 23 are sufficiently clear to allow the traffic management plan

24 to be implemented.

25 Ms. Chan, something is wrong with our
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16250
,

1 communication.

2 MS. CHAN: Yes, Your Honor, I was looking at 4C of

3 the original contention. I apologize.

4 JUDGE SMITH: You take a look at it and see if you

5 agree.

6 MS. CHAN: Yes, I agree that the traffic control
;

7 diagram deficiencies would fall under that basis. !

|
8 JUDGE SMITH: It's categorized under traffic

9 management plan and.even refers to it in the body.

10 MS. CHAN: Yes, Your Honor.

11 JUDGE SMITH: So do you withdraw your objection as

12 to those 16 through 217

13 MS. CHAN: As brother Dignan would say, I subside.

14 (Laughter)

15 JUDGE SMITH: That's a luxury that only lawyers

d16 have. We can't do that. Well, your objection is overruled. '

17 MS. CHAN: Only lawyers and the tide, Your Honor.

18 JUDGE SMITH: Your objection with respect to ]

19 everything except 23 is overruled and 23 you're sustained

20 except 24.
|

21 MS. CHAN: 24, Your Honor.

22 JUDGE SMITH: 24 you're sustained unless there's a

23 mistake in fact here with respect to everything except

24 Friend and Main on page 14 nnd Friend and Highland on page

25 15.
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16251' {
'

i

I1 Anything further?

) 2 I'm also aware of another lapse of manners here.,

i 3 I think you have all met Jean Williams now who is working

4 with the Board, she is a law student working part-time. She
;

5 had until this afternoon aspired to be a lawyer. .

6 (Laughter)

'
7 JUDGE SMITH: How she is going to dental school.

8 But we are pleased to have her for the time that she thought

9 this was a noble profession. She has been a very large h(alp
i

10 to the Board getting organized this week.

11 Now I think that takesRoa're of it. Do you have

12 something more?

13 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Your Honor, if I could. To

14 hopefully avoid the same conclusions as we had today I now
k

15 have for the City of Newburyport's testimony copies with-the

16 questions and answers numbered. If you would like I would
.

17 submit those to yourself and the other parties in

'

18 anticipation of those witnesses.

19 JUDGE SMITH: I'll tell you what will be best.

20 Now we're not going to receive it until tomorrow. -We |

21 already have it renumbered.

22 MS. SAINT ANDRE: I'm talking about the City of

23 Newburyport.

24 OUDGE SMITH: Excuse me.

25 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Those will be the next witnesses
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| CRONIN - DIRECT 16252

1 after Chief Cronin finally has a chance.. I

') 2 JUDGE SMITH: Yes. That's fine. We appreciate ),

3 that, j
)

4 MS. SAINT ANDRE: It may be helpful if I give them |

1

5 out now so people can look at them.

6 ' JUDGE SMITH: Yes, it would be, right.

7 MS. CHAN: Your Honor, the Staff has one more

8 thing it would like to raise. This is on the order of the

9 driver behavior issue which has been litigated previously.

10 I had some questions for the Chief, perhaps I can
I

11 reserve it for cross-examination but maybe he could >

12 straighten it out now.

13 JUDGE SMITH: Is this likely to lead to striking

14 testimony?
>O

15 MS. CHAN: Yes, Your Honor. On answer to number

16 17 he refers to: " Probable heavy volume of traffic along

17 Route 110, Haverhill Road heading southwest is likely to

18 cause motorists to change direction and cross over to Route

19 150 connector towards I-495."

20 And my reading interprets that to be a driver

21 behavior aspect. If he means something other than driver

22 behavior then I withdraw my objection.
|

23 MS. SAINT ANDRE: Again, Your Honor, I don't

24 believe that this particular testimony is the type of driver

25 behavior which this Board has excluded.
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16253

1 JUDGE SMITH: Well, that's'right. On behalf of

O 2 the Applicants' witness tre. have allowed them to testify and
i

'

3 often persuasively'y that -- and Mr. Dignan has recently 1

4 agreed -- that driver behavior reacts ~to congestion. And

5 drivers do not mindlessly sit in a queue when another route

6 is open to them.

7 Our driver behavior issue was that they don't
!

8 panic. They don't drive erratically. They don't drive in

9 the face of oncoming traffic and that type of' thing.

10 I think that this is squarely within the issues. !

11 Do you agree, Mr. Dignan?
!

12 MR. DIGNAN: Yes, Your Honor. I took that answer
,

13 to mean that what the Chief's point was that because there's
,

14 a lot of volume he thinks there needs to be more traffic4

| 15 guides to keep'them going the way you want, not that he'was
|

16 talking there about people' disregarding the traffic guide.
1

17 JUDGE SMITH: Yes, we have accepted the testimony j
i

18 of experts here that rational traffic reacts to trip points

19 and congestion. i

20 MS. CHAN: The, Staff has no objection based on

21 that explanation. Thank you. )
22 JUDGE SMITH: All right, if there is nothing

23 further this evening we will leave it to you to. mark up your ]
i

24 testimony and have it prepared for offering in the morning. j

f 25 la there anything further this evening? Oh, we
|

1
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CRONIN - DIRECT 16254
,

1 will be not in this room in the morning, we will be in the

6-
'

2 Bankruptcy Court.

3 (Whereupon, at 4:58 p.m. the hearing was adjourned ,

4 to reconvene at 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, March 22, 1989 at |

'

5 Bankruptcy Court.)

6
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